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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision
to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the Directors of the Company collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules for the purpose of giving information with regard to
the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge
and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive, and there is no other matter the omission of which would make any statement herein
or this report misleading.
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BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 1009, Exchange Tower
33 Wang Chiu Road
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon
Hong Kong
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AUDITOR

Mazars CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants & Registered Public Interest
Entity Auditor

42nd Floor, Central Plaza

18 Harbour Road, Wanchai

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER

Howse Williams
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Hong Kong
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OFFICE
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DEFINITIONS
Bx

Term
g
J A

Articles
41 81

Audit Committee
BZEZEE

Board
EE

Company
ZAN/NS

Companies Ordinance
NCIRESY

CG Code
EERFA

Dafeng Port Development
Group

ErERELE

Dafeng Port Overseas

AEgE &I

Director(s)

5%

GEM Listing Rules
GEM L7 3 Al

Group
REE

Hong Kong
BE

HK$/HKD
AT

Jiangsu Hairong

TER B R

Definition

B=x

The articles of association of the Company, as amended from time to time
AAGHABERME - ERFEET

The audit committee of the Company
RRAREZZEE®

The board of the Directors
£Eg

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
LEMIER RO ARAF

Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong)
BB A FE622F A&

The Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 15 of The GEM

Listing Rules
GEM 43 B 8% + R P& (b R E )R <7 8l

LR AR EEREEBEABRAAE (Jiangsu Yancheng Port Dafeng Port
Development Group Co., Ltd.*), formerly known as JT# X L /58 £ @A
R A a] (Jiangsu Dafeng Harbour Holdings Limited*)

THERAEREEREEREAERLG  AIMIHAALBEEREEFERLQF

Dafeng Port Overseas Investment Holdings Limited

REBBFIREEBRER AR

The directors of the Company
ZAYNSTE- ==

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange
Bt 32 P GEM 38 25 71 #7 Bl

The Company and its subsidiaries

EN/NCTDS N NN

The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
REEERITR R

Hong Kong dollars
BT

L& EW A A E AR QA (Jiangsu Yancheng Port Hairong
Petrochemical Terminal Co. Ltd*), formerly known as /L& 8 g K 2% B m b
TH5SEAMRAF] (Jiangsu Hairong Dafeng Port Petrochemical Product Terminal
Company Limited*)

THERESRAIEEEGRAR  AIMIKSRAEE Dt THEGR

NG

Oé Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited

Annual Report 2022



Jiangsu Yancheng
T % B8 K

Legal Committee

EREBRE

Nomination Committee

RERE®

Port Shipping International

76 M B R

Port Storage Petrochemical

BREAL
PRC/Mainland China
BB

Remuneration Committee

¥FHEzEe

RMB
AR

SFO
& 75 M HR B AR A7)

Share(s)
%15

Stock Exchange
B <X AT

USD/US dollars
ETT

Year

REE

*Note:

DEFINITIONS
Bx

T ER B BRI EEE AR AR (Jiangsu Yancheng Port Holding Group Co.,
Ltd.®)
THERBIEREBERAR

The legal committee of the Company
ARBERZE®

The nomination committee of the Company

ARFRBRES®

LB A EMBIRE S ER AR (Jiangsu Yancheng Port Port Shipping
International Trade Co., Limited*), formerly known as EZ 5k K 2 FEE (R & 5
BB A7] (Yancheng Dafeng Heshun International Trading Company Limited*)
T ERBEMERESBERAR  AIBEBERAREBNIEHEFEESHER AR

L & B8 B @ At AR 2 A (Jiangsu Yancheng Port Port Storage
Petrochemical Co., Ltd.*), formerly known as JT#FEEALEREERAF
(Jiangsu Zhongnanhui Petrochemical Storage Company Limited?*)

IHERBEFAOLCERIR  AIBIATEHEALLERARRAR
The People’s Republic of China, excluding Hong Kong, Macau Special
Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan for the purpose of this report

REARKME plAHREMS  TEEEE  BRAKITHERLEE

The remuneration committee of the Company

ZAN/NCTEC S =

Renminbi Yuan

AR

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong)
BEREDNESNEZEHF N ERD

Ordinary shares of the Company
KRR E B

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBARSMAERAT

United States dollars
=V

1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022
—E - _H-A-HE-T-__F+-A=t—H

I EE

For the purpose of this report and unless otherwise specified, the English BAREME  BESEHEBI REBEGFMALIORR A
translation of the name of the companies incorporated in the PRC are used for BE RSB EEEER -

identification purpose only.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN

MACRO SITUATION REVIEW

During the Year, the Group faced complex macro situation which
has a variety of impacts on the business development of the
Group.

Impact of the COVID-19 epidemic

The risk of the global economic slowdown has been escalating
by the global outbreak of COVID-19 epidemic. The uncertainty
and lethality of the global pandemic continued to jeopardize the
confidence in all industries worldwide. The lockdown imposed
in many countries and regions, including the PRC and Hong
Kong, has caused disruptions to production activities and has
an adverse impact on the livelihood of people and the economy
globally, including the PRC. This situation caused a serious
negative impact on trading business of the Group.

Decreased Demand for Petrochemical Storage

In this Year, as a result of the Russia-Ukraine conflict, the global
commodity prices rose significantly, which indirectly led to an
increase in the annual operating costs of the petrochemical
storage industry. As oil prices rise, global inflationary pressures
are rising rapidly. At the same time, under the impact of
the pandemic and geopolitical tensions around the world,
the recovery of the world economy was difficult, the global
production and supply cycle was not smooth, and the global
annual demand for petrochemical storage industry shrank, which
led to a reduction in the occupancy rate of the petrochemical
storage industry.

08 Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the Group is principally engaged in trading

business and the provision of petrochemical products storage

business.

Our major business activities can be divided into the below

segments during the Year:

1.

Trading Business

The Group is engaged in the trading and import and
export businesses of electronic products, petrochemical
products and various other products. During the Year,
the Group's trading business recorded revenue of
approximately HK$787.2 million (2021: approximately
HK$882.5 million). The decrease in revenue in this segment
was mainly attributable to (i) the fifth wave of community
outbreaks caused by the Omicron variant of the
coronavirus and the sharp increase in COVID-19 confirmed
cases in Hong Kong in 2022, which had a significant
adverse impact on cross-border transport and logistics,
and a decrease in trade volume due to weak market
conditions; and (ii) the Group had taken risk management
measures and terminated the trading of some products
which were loss-making or with higher operational risks.

Petrochemical Products Storage Business

The Group is engaged in petrochemical products storage
business through Port Storage Petrochemical. During the
year, the Group's petrochemical products storage business
recorded a decrease in revenue by approximately 66.0% to
approximately HK$8.8 million (2021: approximately HK$25.9
million). The decrease in revenue was mainly due to the
impact of the surge in COVID-19 confirmed cases in the
Yangtze River Delta region, and the strict control of various
transportations such as dangerous chemicals vehicles
and outbound oil tankers, which seriously hindered the
development of petrochemical products storage business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN

OUTLOOKS

The PRC economy is expected to gradually recover from the
COVID-19. Going forward, the Company will adopt a prudent
approach to run the Group's existing business and also actively
to seize the opportunity of integrated development of Jiangsu
Yancheng, the Group will rationally reorganise and optimise the
resources of the Company, simplify and restructure to conserve
resources and prudently identify investment opportunities.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group's revenue decreased by approximately 12.4% to
approximately HK$796.0 million for the Year (corresponding
period in 2021: approximately HK$908.4 million). Regarding
reason of the decrease in revenue, please refer to the paragraph
headed “Business Review" above for details.

The Group's cost of revenue decreased by approximately 13.3%
to approximately HK$781.1 million for the Year (corresponding
period in 2021: approximately HK$901.2 million). The decrease
in cost of revenue was mainly driven by the effect of decrease
in revenue of the Group's trading business.

The Group recorded a gross profit margin of approximately
1.9% for the Year (corresponding period in 2021: approximately
0.8%). The increase in gross profit margin was mainly because
the Group had taken risk management measures and terminated
the trading of some products which were loss-making or with
higher operational risks.

The Group's finance costs amounted to approximately HK$39.6
million for the Year (2021: approximately HK$36.9 million).
Finance costs mainly include interest on bank loans, listed
credit-enhanced guaranteed bonds and amounts due to related
companies. The increase in finance costs was mainly attributable
to the loan agreement entered into between Port Shipping
International and Dafeng Port Development Group on 7
September 2022, in respect of a loan of approximately RMB131.2
million (equivalent to approximately HK$148.5 million) which is
unsecured, interest-bearing at 7% per annum and repayable on
8 September 2025.

1 O Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group recorded loss for the Year of approximately HK$64.2
million (2021: approximately HK$70.7 million). The decrease in
the loss was mainly due to the stricter cost control measures
the Group have taken in the Year and a reversal of impairment
loss on property, plant and equipment during the Year. The
loss attributable to the equity holders of the Company was
approximately HK$62.0 million (2021: approximately HK$73.5
million) and the basic loss per share was 4.81 HK cents (2021:

5.70 HK cents).
Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had net current liabilities
of approximately HK$34.6 million (2021: approximately HK$156.5
million), including net amounts due to connected companies of
approximately HK$37.6 million (2021: approximately HK$224.4
million).

The Group’s equity capital and bank and other borrowings have
been applied to fund its working capital and other operational
needs. The Group's current ratio as at 31 December 2022 was
approximately 0.94 (2021: approximately 0.61).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's gearing ratio (defined as
the ratio of total interest-bearing borrowings to total equity) was
approximately negative 124.6% (2021:
101.6%).

approximately negative

In order to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall
due within the next twelve months and improve the Group’s
current ratio. The Group has taken and will continue to take a
series of measures and arrangements, which include but not
limited to the following:

(i) Negotiating with financial institutions or connected parties
for the renewals of the Group's bank and other borrowings
upon expiry, obtaining new borrowings and applying for
future credit facilities;

(i) The Company has obtained a RMB1 billion (equivalent to
HK$1,131,900,000) financial support in formal writing from
Dafeng Port Development Group, a connected company
which has 40% equity interests in Dafeng Port Overseas;
and

(i) Improving sales and strictly controlling costs to generate
adequate cash flows to maintain its operations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's total deficits attributable
to equity holders of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$523.5 million (2021: approximately HK$467.0 million). The
capital of the Company only comprised of the ordinary share.
There was no movement in the issued share capital of the
Company during the Year.

Issuance of US$55,000,000 credit-enhanced
guaranteed bonds to be purchased by professional
investors only and to be listed on the Stock
Exchange

On 17 March 2021, the Company, as issuer, Dafeng Port
Development Group, as guarantor, and Tensant Securities
Co., Ltd., Haitong International Securities Co., Ltd., BOSC
International Company Limited, Shanghai Pudong Development
Bank Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch, CEB International Capital
Corporation Limited, China Everbright Securities (HK) Limited,
Huarong International Securities Limited and China Industrial
Securities International Brokerage Limited (together, the
"Placing Agents”), entered into a placing agreement pursuant
to which the Company agreed to appoint the Placing Agents as
placing agents for the purpose of procuring, and to use its best
efforts, the subscription of the bonds of up to an aggregate

principal amount of US$55,000,000 (the “Placing”).

The Placing was completed on 24 March 2021. Pursuant to the
results of a book building exercise, the bonds in the principal
amount of US$55 million has been placed to bondholders at a
coupon rate of 2.4% per annum and for a term of 3 years.

The net proceeds from the Placing, after deducting the
commission to be charged by the Placing Agents and other
fees payable in connection with this offering, was approximately
US$52.7 million. The net proceeds have been used in repayment
of the principal of US$50 million and interest of approximately
US$1.9 million of the unlisted secured bonds due on 28 March
2021, and the balance of approximately US$0.8 million has been
used to satisfy the Group's normal working capital requirements.

For further details in relation to the Placing, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 24 March 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Dividend

The Board did not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the Year (2021: Nil).

Significant investment, material acquisitions and
disposals

As at 31 December 2022, we were interested in approximately
RMB100 million registered capital in Jiangsu Hairong, a company
providing integrated logistics handling services in the PRC
market, representing approximately 40% of its total registered
capital.

Jiangsu Hairong is a private company and there is no quoted
market price available for the investment. The carrying amount
of the investment is nil as at 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil). The
Group has not recognised further losses as the Group's share
of losses of Jiangsu Hairong exceeds the carrying amount of
its interest in Jiangsu Hairong. The unrecognised share of loss
of Jiangsu Hairong for the Year and cumulative up to the end
of the Year amounted to approximately HK$7.7 million (2021:
approximately HK$5.0 million) and approximately HK$24.6
million (2021: approximately HK$16.9 million), respectively.

We hold the investment with the primary objective to
maintain to the synergy effect between integrated logistics
handling services with our petrochemical trading business and
petrochemical products storage business, and the investment
may allow the Group to benefit from the potential upside of
the integrated logistics handling business in the future when
the operational environment of the integrated logistics handling
business improves.

Save for the 40% equity interests in Jiangsu Hairong held by
us, the Group had made no significant investment, no material
acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries and associates during
the Year.

Pledge of assets

The Group used bank facilities and other borrowings to finance
its business expansion. As at 31 December 2022, the loan from
a connected party of approximately RMB13.4 million (equivalent
to HK$15.2 million) is secured by prepaid lease payment of
approximately HK$37.8 million (31 December 2021: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN

Restricted bank balances

On 12 January 2021, an independent third party (the “Plaintiff”)
lodged a petition in The Primary People's Court of QianHai
Cooperation Zone of Shenzhen City of Guangdong Province
("QianHai Court”) for the dispute on the sales and purchase
contract entered between A/ XM EECEI) BR QA
(Qianhai Mingtian Supply Chain (Shenzhen) Company Limited*)
(“Qianhai Mingtian”) and the Plaintiff. The Plaintiff has claimed
for the refund of the contract sum, amounting to RMB9,500,000
and other costs, including the cost of delivery of the alleged
refunded inventory, amounting to RMB186,000, insurance cost
of RMB24,000, legal fee of RMB800,000, breach penalty of
RMB1,900,000 and other associated costs. On 6 September
2021, the QianHai Court has dismissed the claim from the
Plaintiff other than the breach penalty of RMB186,000, which
was determined by the QianHai Court. During 2022, the Plaintiff
has lodged an appeal in Shenzhen Intermediate People’s Court
of Guangdong Province (the “Intermediate Court”), claiming to
withdraw the verdict issued by the QianHai Court and to amend
the judgement or remand for a retrial. The Plaintiff also applied
to freeze the bank balances of Qianhai Mingtian, amounting to
RMB4,083,000 (equivalent to HK$4,622,000). On 29 November
2022, the Intermediate Court upheld the verdict issued by the
QianHai Court. Subsequent to the year end, on 4 January 2023,
Qianhai Mingtian has applied for the discharge of the freeze.

Foreign currency exposure

The income and expenditure of the Group are mainly carried
in HKD, RMB and USD. Exposures to foreign currency risk arise
from certain of the Group's trade and other receivables, trade
and other payables and cash and bank balances denominated
in RMB and USD. The Group mainly adopts measures such as
adjusting the time of foreign exchange receipt and payment,
matching the balance of foreign exchange receipts and
payments, and signing foreign exchange lock agreements with
banks to control foreign exchange risks. The Group does not
use derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency
risk. The management team of the Group reviews the foreign
currency exposures regularly.

Employees and emolument policy

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed a total of 95
employees (2021: 122 employees) based in Hong Kong and the
PRC. During the Year, the total staff costs, including Directors’
emoluments, amounted to approximately HK$17.6 million (2021:
approximately HK$21.8 million).

14 Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
Annual Report 2022

3 PR & $R 1T 4 &R

R-TBE-_—F—A+=-H —Z2BIE=7R
ENAERRHEECRIDER AR ([AE
PBRDERETUMNEESRUDRERE R
JmaEEIERDHEARZER ([REER]D R
R - REZEKRREARFTARKS500,000
TREMKA  HPEBEXINAERERTE
"X AN A R #186,0007T + 1R E A R 24,000
TC R EAE AR #800,0000T C BEHERAR
#1900,000 R EMHBEER - RZTE=—F
NARA BREAEERBETHENIRARE
186,0007T %) + AIAABE B Bl R EFFRE o M
BER—_Z-_—_FERMEBEREFITHEAR
SEBT ([FRRGERR ) 12 _E5F - Bk I/ AR
BHOH R WERHRKBERERE - REN
F RS R 45 AT B B R A IR 77 45 2 A R 54,083,000
T (FE & 704,622,000870) c RZTE = —F +—
AZ+N8 - hE AT 45 p1E A B 3 83
R RNZEEHERE  NZE-_=F—AWNH
RIERRERBEMBREE RS -

S5 L B

AEEBZWARAXEZALET ARBEEE
TTEHE - SMERERREAEEE THAARE K
I EZESRAMBERKE BHREM
ENHREANB S RRITESR - AEEETER
A 8 B SN O U SRR - B S T A ST A B R
R 1728 5] SMME HUE %5 % 5 15 0 A R AR SINEE R
G o NEE I EAE A OTAE S B T A hE S
KRR AEEEEESEREHNIINERR -

BERMEHE

RZZE-_—F+-_F=+—H AEEERA
HOBZEB(ZCE - —F IRBEB)REHZE
BRAE REAFE  BREFHEEAZE
8 T A% 517,600,000 T(ZZE = —F : 4
21,800,0007% 7T) °



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Remuneration of employees is determined with reference to the
market terms and commensurate with the level of pay for similar
positions within the industry. Discretionary year-end bonuses
are payable to employees based on individual performance. The
Group provides benefits in accordance with the relevant laws
and regulations.

Pension Schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong for all of its employees
in Hong Kong who are eligible to participate in the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the "MPF Scheme”). The Group
and its employees in Hong Kong are each required to make
contributions to the MPF Scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in the
PRC are required to participate in the central pension schemes
operated by the local municipal governments (the "Central
Pension Schemes”). According to the relevant regulations,
contributions that should be borne by the companies within the
Group are principally determined based on percentages of the
basic salaries of employees, subject to certain ceilings imposed.
The applicable percentages for the Central Pension Schemes for

the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are listed below:

Percentage
Pension insurance 12.0-20.0%
Medical insurance 5.2-10.5%
Unemployment insurance 0.32-1.5%
Housing fund 5.0-12.0%

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (2021: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN

Event After the Year

Save as disclosed in this report, no other event has occurred
after 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this report which
would have a material effect on the Group.

Environmental, Social and Governance

The Company attaches great importance to environmental,
social and governance ("ESG”) risks and has been improving its
ESG management. The Board retains overall responsibility for
the Group’s ESG governance and establishes an ESG working
group ("ESG Working Group”) that reports to the Board to
implement ESG management. During the Year, the Company
engaged a professional third party institution to assist us
to thoroughly evaluate ESG risks and opportunities of the
Company, accordingly establish risk management and internal
control policies, and draft management approaches, strategies,
and objectives.

Meanwhile, the ESG Working Group has been actively
communicating with our stakeholders through various channels,
for fully understanding their expectations, interests and
information needs with the help of the professional third
party institution. The Company's key stakeholders include
shareholders and investors, customers, employees, suppliers,
the community, etc. The ESG Working Group listens to
stakeholders’ feedback via questionnaires, visits, phone calls,
to understand their interests on ESG information. During the
Year, the ESG Working Group screened ESG issues that are of
importance to the Company according to stakeholders’ opinions
and drafted ESG report based on such important issues.

A detailed ESG report is set out in pages 53 to 114 of this
report.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhao Liang (“Mr. Zhao"), aged 35, was appointed as an
executive Director and Chairman of the Board on 27 May 2022.
He has served as the assistant to general manager of Dafeng
Port Development Group and the general manager of Port
Shipping International, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company since May 2022. He has also served as a director
and deputy chairman of JT&# I EFEREIFHERBR QA
(Jiangsu Yueda New Energy Technology Development Co., Ltd.*),
a connected company which is owned as to 30% by Jiangsu
Yancheng, a controlling shareholder of the Company which
wholly-owns Dafeng Port Development Group since April 2022.
Between January 2021 and May 2022, Mr. Zhao successively held
various positions in the group of companies of Jiangsu Yancheng.
Mr. Zhao obtained a bachelor degree in Chinese language and
literature (online course) at the Southwest University of Science of
Technology (78 F &l 3 K 2) in July 2017 and a bachelor degree
in electrical engineering and automation at the Yancheng Institute
of Technology (E&3k T £ F%) in June 2010.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ji Longtao (“Mr. Ji”), aged 58, was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 23 February 2015. He owns 55% equity
interest in each of Success Pacific Investment Group Limited
("Success Pacific”) and )L % /§1% & AR A 7 (Jiangsu Huahai
Investment Company Limited*) (“Jiangsu Huahai”), which in turn
owns 18% and 10% equity interests in the Dafeng Port Overseas
respectively. Mr. Ji owns 50% equity interests of EAY T 2E1E B %
BPFRAT] (Yancheng Longgiao Property Development Limited*),
which is engaged in property development and investment
business. He is a director of Dafeng Port Overseas and an
executive director of each of Success Pacific and Jiangsu Huahai,
both of which are engaged in investment and asset management
businesses.

Mr. Yang Yue Xia ("Mr. Yang”), aged 50, was appointed as a
non-executive Director on 12 March 2015. He was an executive
Director from 20 December 2013 to 11 March 2015. He is a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He is a director
of HE®RAEREABMRAHF (Luck Sign Investment Development
Limited), EZRE AR5 (Evertime Management Limited) and
EFEERBR AT (Worldly Development Limited), which are
subsidiaries of the Company. He has many years of experience
in corporate management. He gained working experience across
different industries such as trading and property development.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS
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Mr. Zhang Shukai (“Mr. Zhang"), aged 25, was appointed as a
non-executive Director on 11 January 2023. He has served as the
deputy general manager of Dafeng Port Development Group,
a controlling shareholder of the Company, since September
2022. Between January 2021 and September 2022, Mr. Zhang
worked at Jiangsu Yancheng, with his last position as an assistant
minister of the investment and financing department. Mr.
Zhang obtained a master degree in international finance from
the University of Glasgow in December 2020. In July 2019, Mr.
Zhang obtained a bachelor degree in computer technology and
network from the University of Hertfordshire.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Bian Zhaoxiang (“Dr. Bian"), aged 56, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 15 May 2015. He was
educated in F R EEE K (Nanjing University of Traditional
Chinese Medicine®), 1t R/ % 4% K2 (Beijing University of
Traditional Chinese Medicine and Pharmacology*) and & /I & &
2 KRE (Guangzhou University of Traditional Chinese Medicine*)
and was conferred the Ph.D. degree in Integrated Chinese and
Western Medicine. Currently, Dr. Bian serves as a director of
the clinical division of the School of Chinese Medicine, and an
associate vice-president of the Hong Kong Baptist University. He
has engaged in clinical and basic research in digestive diseases
and involved in publication of many experimental and clinical
researches. He was awarded a second prize of National Science
and Technology Award of China in 1999.
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Mr. Lau Hon Kee (“Mr. Lau”), BComm, MPA, FCPA, CPA (Aust.),
aged 52, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 31 May 2016. He was the financial controller and
company secretary of |15 Z& Tk %5 % &£ B i {7 B BR 2 7] (Shandong
Luoxin Pharmaceutical Group Stock Co., Ltd*) (a company
previously listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code: 8058;
currently delisted) from March 2003 to 31 December 2017 and
a joint company secretary of Zhejiang Tengy Environmental
Technology Co., Ltd (a company listed on the Stock Exchange
with stock code: 1527) from 1 November 2014 to 31 January
2018. Mr. Lau has been an independent non-executive director
of Astrum Financial Holdings Limited (a company listed on
the Stock Exchange with stock code: 8333) since 23 June
2016. Mr. Lau was an independent non-executive director of
Strong Petrochemical Holdings Limited (a company listed on
the Stock Exchange with stock code: 852) from November
2008 to January 2012. Mr. Lau obtained a bachelor’s degree in
commerce from the Australian National University in April 1994
and a master's degree in professional accounting from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in October 2009. Mr. Lau has been
a Certified Practising Accountant of CPA (Aust.) and a certified
public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since 1999. Also, he has been a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
2006 and FCPA of CPA (Aust.) since 2020.

Mr. Yu Xugang (“Mr. Yu"), aged 54, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 31 May 2016. He has
also served as an independent director of Polaris Bay Group
Co., Ltd. (@ company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
with stock code: 600155) since December 2016. He was a
partner at Beijing Dentons Law Offices, LLP from August 2001
to December 2003 and has been promoted to a senior partner
at Beijing Dentons Law Offices, LLP since January 2004. Mr. Yu
was an independent director of Da Cheng Fund Management
Company Limited from August 2008 to August 2011. Mr. Yu was
an independent director of Inner Mongolia Baotou Steel Union
Co., Ltd (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
with stock code: 600010), from August 2009 to August 2015,
an independent director of Hubei Shuangjian Blower Company
Limited (@ company listed on National Equities Exchange and
Quotations with stock code: 833468) from October 2012 to
October 2015, and an independent non-executive director of
Central China Securities Co., Ltd. (@ company listed on the
Stock Exchange with stock code: 1375) from December 2015
to February 2022. Mr. Yu obtained a bachelor’'s degree in law
from the China University of Political Science and Law in 1990, a
master’s degree in international economic law from the Peking
University in July 1998 and a doctorate degree in law from the
Peking University in July 2001.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWRE

The Board herein presents the annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the Year, the Group is principally engaged in trading
business and the provision of petrochemical products storage
business.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Year is set out in
the section headed "Management Discussion and Analysis” on
page 9 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is committed to fulfilling social responsibility,
promoting employee benefits and development, protecting the
environment and giving back to the community and achieving
sustainable growth.

A detailed environmental, social and governance report is set
out in pages 53 to 114 of this report.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs of
the Company and of the Group as at the date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 123 to 243 of this
report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the Year (2021: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the revenue attributable to the Group's largest
and the five largest customers accounted for approximately
46.5% and 79.1% (2021: 16.9% and 43.3%) of the total value of
the Group's revenue, respectively.

During the Year, the purchases attributable to the Group's
largest and the five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 48.0% and 85.9% (2021: 15.7% and 54.6% ) of the
total value of the Group's purchases, respectively.
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Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
to the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their close associates, or any shareholder of the Company (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of
the Company's issued share capital) had interest in any of the
Group's five largest customers or suppliers during the Year.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during
the Year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There is no change in the share capital of the Company during
the Year.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at
31 December 2022 are set out in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed
securities.

The Company and its subsidiaries did not redeem, purchase or
cancel any of their redeemable securities either.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company's reserves available for
distribution to the shareholders of the Company comprised
of share premium account of approximately HK$201.4 million
and accumulated losses amounted to approximately HK$668.0
million. Details of the Company’s distributable reserves as at
31 December 2022 are set out in note 33(a) to the consolidated
financial statements. Movements in reserves of the Group during
the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 127 of this report.

DONATION

During the Year, the Group did not make any charitable
donations (2021: Nil).
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INTEREST CAPITALISED
No interest was capitalised by the Group during the Year.

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 244 of
this report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the
date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Liang (Chairman)
(appointed on 27 May 2022)

Mr. Yuan Qingfeng (Chairman)
(appointed on 25 February 2022, and
resigned on 27 May 2022)

Mr. Tao Ying (Chairman)

(resigned on 25 February 2022)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ji Longtao

Mr. Yang Yue Xia

Mr. Zhang Shukai

(appointed on 11 January 2023)
Mr. Miao Zhibin

(resigned on 11 January 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Bian Zhaoxiang

Mr. Lau Hon Kee

Mr. Yu Xugang

Mr. Zhang Fangmao
(resigned on 11 January 2023)

Biographical details of the Directors currently in service are set
out on pages 17 to 19 of this report.

In accordance with article 83(3) of the Articles, Mr. Zhao Liang
and Mr. Zhang Shukai as an executive Director will hold office
until the AGM and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election
at the AGM.
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of the Articles, Dr. Bian

Zhaoxiang and Mr. Yu Xugang as an independent non-executive

In accordance with article 84(1)

Director will retire from office by rotation at the AGM and, being
eligible, offer themselves for reelection at the AGM.
received from each

The Company has independent

non-executive director an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and

the Board considers them independent.
DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company and is subject to termination by either party giving
not less than three months’ prior written notice to the other.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Each of the non-executive Directors (including the independent

non-executive Directors) has entered into service contract
with the Company for a fixed term of three years, subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGM in accordance

with the Articles.
DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ remuneration is subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Remuneration Committee with reference to Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

During the Year, Mr. Tao Ying has waived his emolument,which
was HK$160,000, Mr. Yuan Qingfeng has waived his emolument,
which was HK$320,000, and Mr. Zhao Liang has waived his
emolument, which was HK$480,000.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors are set out in note
10(i) to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees and their emoluments are set
out in note 10(iv) to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or which
were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules relating to securities transactions by the Directors, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME, CONVERTIBLE
SECURITIES, WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives, recognising and
acknowledging the contributions that eligible persons had made
or may make to the Group. The Scheme was adopted pursuant
to the written resolution passed by the sole shareholder of the
Company on 3 August 2013. The expiry date of the Scheme is 2
August 2023. For further details of the Scheme, please refer to
note 27 the consolidated financial statements. Since the Scheme
came into effect after the Company was listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange, no share options have been granted, exercised
or cancelled by the Company under the Scheme and there
were no outstanding share options under the Scheme as at 31
December 2022 and as at the date of this report.

Up to 31 December 2022, the Company and its subsidiaries
have not issued or granted any convertible securities, warrants
or other similar rights.

24 Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
Annual Report 2022

RZEBE-_—F+-_A=+—H MWMEZFEHAR
REIFEBITHRABRAQR SAERABE EE (F
EABHERBEBRMEXVE) 2B H - HER
HEEEEY BETEHREZEFRBEEKH
EXVEBRTR8D B A & AN F) KB B2 hE
ER A (BREREFESFRBEKAEGEGKX
BEREESARBABZERIORR) - HIRIE
BH N HE RO 535216 A B RD R sZ IR SCRT
ERfMAZEZIOAE - KB IEGEM TR A
FLAGES MG EHESETELRRGLATA
MEXRE RBMRAz2EmIAR -

BRESTE  TEeREr  RRE
& B 2E LR R

RARZBEBRETE(ZTED  BEEHE
RETEERATEHAKEAEEEL 2B
Bte Zat8l IR BEARRB—BRER-_ZT—=
FNAZHRBZEERZREN - st &8
NZZEZ=FNAZ-HEMm BEZTE &
— B BR2HGRAYBHREWE2 - B%
FTBI R AR R X FTGEM £ 18 R BA K -
BEEABRERBZTIERD 7 E
AATEY BN —ZE-—F+-A=+—H0K
ABEBH  ZFEIETHERNRTE ZEBR
7 o

BHEZZE-__F+-A=+—8 AR REWH
BRATEBITHRETMITLKES BR
HEEEMEUER -



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, so far as the Directors are aware,
the following persons/entities (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) had, or were deemed to have,
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Capacity/Nature of interests

Name of shareholders

BEREBE B EEHE
Dafeng Port Overseas (Note 2) Beneficial owner
ANEEFINFE2) EmEAA
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KRBT :

% of the
Company'’s
issued share
capital
(Approximate)
EARRF
ERTRAHN
B2t (B 4)

Number of
Shares held
(Note 1)

FrERo#E
(B &E1)

Dafeng Port Development
Group (Note 3)
RNEBFEEE T3

Jiangsu Yancheng (Note 3)

7T 8% 58 5 (BT 5E3)

B3k T A R BT (the People's
Government of Yancheng
City*) ("PGYC") (Note 3)

B A R BUS
(TEmHHmARBAD (M E3)

Mr. Jiang Wen (Note 4)

& X 58 4 (i 7E4)

Ms. Li Qiu Hua (Note 5)

FIEE 2+ (Ff5ES)

Interest of controlled corporation
R EEES

Interest of controlled corporation

ARG E R

Interest of controlled corporation

R PN

Beneficial owner, interest of controlled
corporation and interest of spouse

BERBEAAN ZEEDEER S MECE
¥

Beneficial owner and interest of
spouse

ERBAEANMEBER

740,040,000 (L) 57.46%
740,040,000 (L) 57.46%
740,040,000 (L) 57.46%
740,040,000 (L) 57.46%
75,470,000 (L) 5.86%
75,470,000 (L) 5.86%
REBENIENERO AR E
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Notes:

The letter "L" denotes a long position in the interest in the issued share

capital of the Company.

Dafeng Port Overseas is a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability, and is owned as to 40% by Dafeng Port Development
Group, which in turn is wholly owned by Jiangsu Yancheng, 40.2% of which
is owned by PGYC.

Dafeng Port Development Group, Jiangsu Yancheng and PGYC are
deemed to be interested in the Shares of the Company held by Dafeng
Port Overseas under the SFO.

Mr. Jiang Wen,
representative of Qianhai Mingtian which is an indirect subsidiary of
the Company, directly and beneficially owns 51,350,000 Shares. Ms. Li

the director, the general manager and the legal

Qiu Hua, the spouse of Mr. Jiang Wen, directly and beneficially owns
10,520,000 Shares. Jing Ji (Holdings) Co., Limited, a company wholly-
owned by Mr. Jiang Wen, directly and beneficially owns 13,600,000
Shares. As such, under the SFO, Mr. Jiang Wen is deemed, or taken to
be, interested in 75,470,000 Shares.

Ms. Li Qiu Hua directly and beneficially owns 10,520,000 Shares. As Mr.
Jiang Wen's spouse, she is, under the SFO, deemed to be, or taken to
be, interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr. Jiang Wen is

interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Directors

were not aware of any other persons or entities (other than

the Directors and chief executive of the Company) who had

interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of

the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS" ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or its ultimate holding company or any subsidiary
of such ultimate holding company a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures)
of, the Company or any other body corporate, neither the
Directors nor any of their spouses or children under the age of
18 had any right to subscribe for the securities or debt securities
of the Company or had exercised any such right.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There were no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
any of the Company’s directors or an entity connected with a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Group were entered into or in
existence during the Year.

EXEMPTED CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Financial assistance received by the Group

The details of financial assistance received by the Group from
connected companies are set out in note 24(b) to the financial
statements.

Since the financial assistance received by the Group is provided
on normal commercial terms and is not secured by the assets of
the Group, according to Rule 20.88 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
financial assistance received by the Company was exempt from
the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
and the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer Shares on a pro rata basis to its existing
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float in the issued share capital of
the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

COMPETING INTERESTS

Dafeng Port Development Group, a controlling shareholder of
the Company, has a direct wholly-owned subsidiary, namely
L ar BB HERMEEBBR QA (Jiangsu Yancheng Port
Supply Chain Technology Group Co., Ltd*) (“Yancheng Port
Supply Chain”), and has a direct non wholly-owned subsidiary,
namely L& EB AV R ERBR AT Jiangsu Yueda Harbour
Logistics Development Company Limited*) (“Yueda Logistics”)
which are engaged in trading of various goods including coals,
metal ores, non-metallic ores, non-ferrous metal, chemical
products, non-metal construction materials, scrap steel and
wood. In addition, the Group is also developing the trading
businesses of electronic products, petrochemical products and
various other products. Accordingly, the businesses of Dafeng
Port Development Group and its subsidiaries may be construed
as businesses which compete with or are likely to compete with
one of the core principal activities of the Group. Other than
Mr. Tao Ying who was a director of Dafeng Port Development
Group until 18 February 2022, a director of Yueda Logistics until
8 February 2022 and an executive Director of the Company until
25 February 2022, there is no overlap in the directorships among
the Company, Dafeng Port Development Group, Yancheng Port
Supply Chain and Yueda Logistics.
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that the Board can
independently from Dafeng Port Development Group, because

The Directors consider operate
(i) pursuant to the Articles, a Director shall not vote on any
board resolution approving any contract or arrangement or any
other proposal in which such Director or any of his associates
has a material interest nor shall he be counted in the quorum
present at the meeting; and (ii) the Directors are fully aware of
their fiduciary duties owing to the shareholders of the respective
companies and their duty to avoid conflicts to the shareholders
of the respective companies and their duty to avoid conflicts of
interests in carrying out their respective duties as directors of
the relevant companies.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors, controlling shareholders of the Company or their
respective close associates had any interests in a business, which
competes or is likely to compete either directly or indirectly
with the business of the Group which would be required to be
disclosed under Rule 11.04 of the GEM Listing Rules.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiries
to all the Directors, the Company was not aware of any non-
compliance with the required standard of dealings and its code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors
during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

A detailed corporate governance report is set out in pages 31
to 52 of this report.
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AUDITOR

Mazars CPA Limited acted as the auditor of the Group for the
Year.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
Year were audited by Mazars CPA Limited.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming AGM to re-
appoint Mazars CPA Limited as the auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
Zhao Liang

Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance. The Company has adopted a set of
corporate governance practices which aligns with the code
provisions of the “CG Code".

The Company has implemented a number of Group-wide
governance policies and systems, which are subject to regular
review, to support its commitment to high standards of business,
professional, and ethical conduct, and to ensure best practices
across the organisation. The Company has also established
whistleblowing channels for external parties to raise concerns in
relation to possible misconduct of the Group, its employees or
directors in a confidential or anonymous manner, or both. The
Board has delegated authority to the Audit Committee to review
the Group Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy and the
Group Whistleblowing Policy periodically and receive updates
on matters concerning breaches of the Group Anti-Bribery and
Anti-Corruption Policy and whistleblowing disclosures.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with
all the code provisions set out in the CG Code during the Year.
The Company will continue to review its corporate governance
practices in order to enhance its corporate governance
standard, comply with regulatory requirements and meet the

growing expectations of shareholders and investors.
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
Conduct on share dealings

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company has made
specific enquiries to all the Directors who have confirmed their
compliance with the required standard of dealings and the code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors
throughout the Year. No incident of non-compliance was noted
by the Company during the Year.
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CORPORATE MANAGEMENT
Board of directors
Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board is comprised of 7
members, including one executive Director, namely, Mr. Zhao
Liang (chairman), three non-executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Ji Longtao, Mr. Yang Yue Xia and Mr. Zhang Shukai and
three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Dr. Bian
Zhaoxiang, Mr. Lau Hon Kee and Mr. Yu Xugang.

The Company has received annual written confirmations from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect
of their independence to the Company in accordance with the
guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and
believes that their independence is in compliance with the GEM
Listing Rules as at the date of this report.

Directors’ training

All Directors should keep abreast of the responsibilities as
a Director, and of the conduct and business activities of the
Company. During the Year, the Company had organised a
professional seminar conducted by a professional firm which
provided the Directors with updates on the latest development
and changes in the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable
legal and regulatory requirements. All Directors including newly
appointed Directors were provided with written training reading
materials.

The Directors were also provided with regular updates on the
Company's performance, position and prospects to enable the
Board as a whole and each of the Directors to discharge their
duties. The secretary of the Company from time to time updated
and provided written training materials to the Directors relating
to the roles, functions and duties of a director.

All Directors confirmed that they have complied with code
provision C.1.4 of the CG Code on directors’ training. During the
Year, all Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by reading materials or attending seminars/
briefing sessions to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills and provided a record of training to the Company.
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Independence

The Board has also established mechanisms to ensure
independent views are available to the Board, including
providing the Directors with sufficient resources to perform
its duties and shall seek, at the Company’s expense,
independent professional advice to perform its responsibilities
if necessary. The Board shall at all times comprise at least
three independent non-executive Directors that represent at
least one-third of the Board, such that there is always a strong
element of independence on the Board which can effectively
exercise independent judgment. All the Directors, including
the independent non-executive Directors, are given equal
opportunity and channels to communicate and express their
views to the Board and have separate and independent access
to the management of the Group in order to make informed
decisions. The chairman of the Board will hold meetings
with the independent non-executive Directors without the
involvement of other Directors at least annually to discuss
any issues and concerns. Any Director or his associate who
has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the
Board will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather
than by written resolutions. Such Director will be required to
declare his/her interests before the meeting and abstain from
voting and not counted towards the quorum on the relevant
resolutions. Independent non-executive Directors who, and
whose associates, have no interest in the matter should attend
the Board meeting. The Board has reviewed and considered
that the mechanisms are effective in ensuring that independent
views and input are provided to the Board during the Year.
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Board process

The Board met regularly throughout the Year to discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operational and financial
performance of the Group. Notice of at least 14 days were
given to all Directors of a regular Board meeting. All Directors
will have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda
for the regular board meetings. For all other Board meetings,
reasonable notice were given to all Directors. The Board
delegates necessary powers and authorities to the executive
Directors to facilitate the efficient day-to-day management
of the Group's business. During the Year, the Board held 7
scheduled full Board meetings. In addition, executive Board
meetings were convened when necessary to deal with day-
to-day matters that required the Board's prompt decisions,
and therefore usually only executive Directors attended such
meetings. Individual attendance records of full Board meetings
and committees meetings are set out on page 35 of this report.
Directors who are considered to be having conflict of interests
or material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to be
discussed would not be counted in the quorum of meeting and
would abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions subject
to certain exceptions set out in the Articles and the matters to
be dealt with by the Board would be dealt with by a physical
Board meeting rather than by a written resolution. Independent
non-executive Directors who have no material interest in the
transaction and their close associates would be entitled to
attend the Board meeting. The secretary of the Company
maintains minutes of the Board meetings and meetings of
Board committees for inspection by the Directors. All Directors
have access to the services of the secretary of the Company
who regularly updates the Board on corporate governance
and regulatory matters. Any Director may seek independent
professional advice at the expense of the Company should they

so wish.
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Board and board committee attendance

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The following table indicates the number of Board meetings,

committee meetings and general meetings throughout the Year,

and the number of attendance by each of the Directors:

TEERRSE

EFZSERESZETHER

TRETVRAFEANRTZEZTG SR %8
FEBEMBRRERRGRE URBSESZ2HER
2

Number of meetings attended/held

Audit
Committee

ERZEE

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zhao Liang (Note 1) 5 (i EE) 33 -
Mr. Yuan Qingfeng (Note 2)  RE#%E (152 33 -
Mr. Tao Ying (Note 3) CE PR %) 1 -
Non-executive Directors FUTES
Mr. Ji Longtao HRELE 6/7 -
Mr. Yang Yue Xia BHExE 771 -
Mr. Miao Zhibin (Note 4) B 5 A (Hf 24) w7 -
Independent Non-executive BIUFHTES
Directors
Dr. Bian Zhaoxiang TREEL 77 4/4
Mr. Lau Hon Kee HERELE 17 4/4
Mr. Yu Xugang Tam%E 717 -
Mr. Zhang Fangmao (Note 5) 5 /7 /& 5 4 (B 55) 17 4/4
Notes:
1. appointed on 27 May 2022

2. appointed on 25 February 2022 and resigned on 27 May 2022

3. resigned on 25 February 2022
4. resigned on 11 January 2023
5. resigned on 11 January 2023

Pursuant to code provision C.1.6 of the CG Code, independent
non-executive directors and other non-executive directors
should attend general meetings. During the Year, all of
the independent non-executive Directors except Dr. Bian
Zhaoxiang and other non-executive Directors attended the
general meetings of the Company in person or through
telecommunication.

Pursuant to code provision C.2.7 of the CG Code, the
Chairman of the Board held a meeting with independent non-
executive Directors without the presence of other Directors on
9 December 2022.

WE/ B8 E8E
Legal
Remuneration ~ Nomination ~ Compliance General
Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
ERER
FHMzEe RE#ZRE 88 RRA®
- - 2/2 -
2/2 212 212 17
1 1 - -
- - - 11
- - 4/4 11
- - - 11
33 - - 0/1
3/3 3/3 - 171
- - - 11
- 3/3 - 1
B 5
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Directors’ duties

The Board is in charge of leadership and supervision on the
Group's affairs, establishing the purpose, values and strategy of
the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Group. Each Director has a duty to act in good
faith and in the best interests of the Company.

Matters that require decisions by the Board normally include
but not limited to overall Group strategies, major acquisitions
and disposals, annual and interim results, recommendation on
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors, and other
significant operational and financial matters. The Directors are
kept up-to-date by monthly management information on a
timely basis as well as on major changes that may affect the
Group's businesses, including relevant rules and regulations.
The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
financial statements and have them audited on an annual basis.
The Company has adopted the generally accepted accounting
standards in Hong Kong in preparing financial statements.
Reasonable and prudent judgement and estimates have been
made. The Group will announce its financial results on a timely
basis.

Senior management’s duties

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are delegated to the senior management of the
Company which include evaluating business and operational
performances, ensuring effective implementation of the
Board'’s decisions, ensuring adequate funding and monitoring
performance of the management of the Group. The senior
management of the Company is being closely monitored by the
Board and is accountable for the performance of the Company
as measured against the business targets and management
directions set by the Board. The senior management of the
Company and the management of the relevant subsidiaries have
meetings on a regular basis to review and discuss operational
and financial matters in order to enhance and strengthen
internal communications and cooperation within the Group. The
delegated functions and work tasks were periodically reviewed.

Indemnification of directors and officers

Pursuant to the Articles, directors shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his office or elsewhere in relation
thereto, provided that its provisions are not avoided by the
Companies Ordinance. Such provisions were in force during the
Year and remained in force as of the date of this report.
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Chairman and chief executive officer

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the role of
chairman and the chief executive officer should be separated
and should not be performed by the same individual. The
division of responsibilities between the chairman and the chief
executive officer should be clearly established and set out in
writing.

The chairman of the Board is responsible for overall strategic
planning, development, decision making and management of
senior executives of the Group and providing leadership to the
Board, monitoring Board effectiveness, fostering constructive
relationships among Directors. The chairman of the Board is also
responsible for taking the primary responsibility for ensuring
that good corporate governance practices and procedures are
established.

Mr. Tao Ying resigned as an executive Director, chairman of
the Board and compliance officer on 25 February 2022 due to
the reaching of his age of retirement. Upon his resignation, he
ceased to act as the Authorised Representative, the chairman of
the Legal Compliance Committee and Nomination Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Yuan Qingfeng resigned as an executive Director, chairman
of the Board and compliance officer on 27 May 2022 due to
the fact that Mr. Yuan has taken seats in various management
positions in other companies designated by Jiangsu Yancheng,
and it was decided that Mr. Yuan ought to focus on his other
designated positions. Upon his resignation, he ceased to be an
authorised representative of the Company, the chairman of the
Legal Compliance Committee and the Nomination Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee.

In place of Mr. Yuan Qingfeng in respect to all the posts
previously held, Mr. Zhao Liang was appointed as an executive
Director, chairman of the Board, compliance officer, Authorised
Representative, the chairman of the Legal Compliance
Committee and Nomination Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee on 27 May 2022.

The Company has not appointed any chief executive officer
during the Year. The daily operations and management of the
Company is monitored by the executive Director and the senior
management.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has received appropriate delegation of its functions
and powers and has established appropriate Board committees,
with specific written terms of reference in order to manage and
monitor specific aspects of the Group's affairs. The terms of
reference of the Board committees are posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange and are available to
the shareholders of the Company upon request. The Board and
the Board committees are provided with all necessary resources
including the advice of external auditor, external legal advisers
and other independent professional advisors as needed.

In relation to the Board's corporate governance functions, the
Board has determined the policy of the corporate governance
of the Company and has performed its duties by firstly,
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance; secondly, reviewing and monitoring
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; thirdly, developing and monitoring
the codes of conduct applicable to the Directors and employees
of the Company; fourthly, reviewing the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in the corporate governance
report, and lastly, receiving and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of the Directors.

The Board has established the Audit Committee the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Legal Compliance Committee with defined terms of reference.
The Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee
are chaired by independent non-executive Directors, the
Nomination Committee and the Legal Compliance Committee
are chaired by the chairman of the Board.

(@) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 3 August 2013
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules
5.28 to 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules and code provision
D.3.3 of the CG Code. The Audit Committee is currently
comprised of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lau Hon Kee (chairman), Dr. Bian Zhaoxiang
and Mr. Yu Xugang. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and removal of the external auditor,
review the financial statements and related materials and
provide advice in respect of the financial reporting process
and oversee the financial reporting system, the internal
control and risk management system of the Group.
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During the Year, the Audit Committee reviewed the
quarterly, interim and annual results of the Group and
reviewed, with both the auditor and management,
the audit approach and methodology applies, and in
particular to those key audit matters included in the annual
auditor’s report. The Audit Committee also reviewed
the internal control procedures of the Group, including
financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk
management functions as well as the findings reports from
the internal audit department of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on
3 August 2013 with written terms of reference in
compliance with code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee is currently comprised of one
executive Director, Mr. Zhao Liang, and two independent
non-executive Directors, Dr. Bian Zhaoxiang (chairman) and
Mr. Lau Hon Kee. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to make recommendations to our Board
on the overall remuneration policy and structure relating
to the Directors and senior management of our Group,
review and evaluate their performance in order to make
recommendations on the remuneration package of each
of the Directors and members of the senior management
as well as other employee benefit arrangements.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee determined
the policy for the remuneration of the Directors, assessed
performance of the Directors and approved the terms
of the Directors’ service contracts. The Remuneration
Committee also reviewed, confirmed and recommended
to the Board the remuneration package of each of the
Directors and senior management of the Company.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 3 August
2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with
code provision B.3.1 of the CG Code. The Nomination
Committee is currently comprised of one executive
Director, Mr. Zhao Liang (chairman) and two independent
Lau Hon Kee and Mr.
Yu Xugang. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are to nominate potential candidates for
directorship, review the nomination of Directors, make

non-executive Directors, Mr.

recommendations to the Board on the appointment of
Directors and assess the independence of independent
non-executive directors.
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TRERARSE

Board Diversity Policy

The Company had adopted the board diversity policy in
accordance with the requirements as set out in the CG
Code. The Board recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. The board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural background and ethnicity, in addition
to educational background, professional experience, skill,
knowledge and length of service.

Measurable Objectives: The Company aims to maintain
an appropriate balance of diverse perspectives that are
relevant to the Company’s business growth. The Company
is also committed to ensuring that recruitment and
selection practices at all levels (from the Board downwards)
are appropriately structured so that a diverse range of
candidates are considered. The Nomination Committee
will discuss periodically and when necessary, agree on the
measurable objectives for achieving diversity, including
gender diversity, on the Board and recommend them
to the Board for adoption. In particular, the Nomination
Committee will identify and make recommendations to
the Board to implement programmes that will assist in the
development of a broader and more diverse pool of skilled
and experienced employees that, in time, will prepare
them for Board positions. The Board has set the target
that the Board comprises at least one female before 31
December 2024.

The Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and
skills, including knowledge and experience in the
areas of trading business and petrochemical products
storage business, auditing and accounting, business
administration. The Directors only comprise males
currently. Although there is currently no female director on
the Board, we are aware of gender diversity and we fully
welcome female members to the Board. The Board will do
the best of its abilities to bring female candidate to join
the Board in the future and achieve the target before 31
December 2024.

The Company is also committed to adopting a similar
approach to promote diversity of the management
(including but not limited to the senior management) and
employees to enhance the effectiveness of corporate
governance.

The Nomination Committee will take opportunity to
increase the female members over time when selecting
and making recommendation on suitable candidates for
Board appointments.
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The Nomination Committee will review and monitor the
implementation of the Board diversity policy, to ensure the
effectiveness of the Board diversity policy and discuss any
revision that may be required and recommend any such
revision to the Board for consideration and approval.

Nomination Policy

When making recommendations regarding the
appointment of any proposed candidate(s) to the Board
or re-appointment of any existing member(s) of the Board
based on the Board diversity policy, the Articles and
other appropriate rules and regulations, the Nomination
Committee shall consider a variety of factors including
without limitation the followings in assessing the suitability
of the proposed candidate:

(i) Reputation for integrity;

(i) Accomplishment, experience and reputation in the
relevant industry and other relevant sectors;

(il)  Commitment in respect of sufficient time, interest
and attention to the Company’s business;

(iv)  Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background,
experience (professional or otherwise), skills and
knowledge;

(v)  The ability to assist and support management and
make significant contributions to the Company’s
success;

(vi)  Compliance with the criteria of independence as
prescribed under Rule 509 of the GEM Listing
Rules for the appointment of an independent non-
executive Director; and

(vii) Any other relevant factors as may be determined by
the Nomination Committee or the Board from time
to time.
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Procedures for Nominating Director

Procedures for the appointment of any proposed
candidate(s) to the Board or re-appointment of any existing
member(s) of the Board are as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The secretary of the Nomination Committee
shall invite nominations of candidate(s) from
Board members (if any), for consideration by the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee
may also nominate candidates for its consideration.

In the context of appointment of any proposed
candidate(s) to the Board,
Committee shall undertake adequate due
diligence in respect of such individual and make
recommendations for the Board’s consideration and

the Nomination

approval.

In the context of re-appointment of any existing
member(s) of the Board, the Nomination Committee
shall make recommendations to the Board for
its consideration and recommendation, for the
proposed candidates to stand for re-election at a
general meeting.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to its recommendation of candidates to
stand for election at a general meeting.

The work performed by the Nomination Committee during
the Year included:

(i)

(i)

to assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors;

to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board and make recommendations on any
proposed change to the Board to complement the
Company's corporate strategy;
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(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of,

individuals nominated for directorships;

(iv) to review the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee; and

(v) to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the
Board’s structure, number of members and composition
taking into account the Board diversity policy and formed
the view that the Board has maintained an appropriate mix
and balance of skills, knowledge, experience, expertise
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the business
requirements of the Company.

Legal Compliance Committee

The Legal Compliance Committee was established
on 30 April 2013, which is mainly responsible for the
Group's internal control matters and ensuring the proper
compliance of the laws and regulations relevant to the
Group's operations as well as the adequacy and the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control measures.

The members of the Legal Compliance Committee
currently comprises one executive Director, Mr. Zhao Liang
(chairman), one non-executive Director Mr. Yang Yue Xia,
the secretary of the Company, Ms. Xu Jing, and a deputy
chief executive officer of the Company, Ms. Xu Qi.

The Legal Compliance Committee also assists the Board
in overseeing the Group's corporate governance functions
which include but not limited to the followings:

(i) to develop and review the Group's policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board on a quarterly basis;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management of the Group;

(i)  to review and monitor the Group’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;
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(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual applicable to the Directors
and employees of the Group; and

(v)  to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the corporate governance report.

During the Year, the Legal Compliance Committee
held four meetings to review the internal control and
compliance matters and the findings of which were

reported to the Board.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Board is committed to providing a balanced, clear and
comprehensive assessment of the financial performance and
prospects of the Group in all the disclosures made to the
shareholders of the Company and the regulatory authorities.

Timely release of quarterly, interim and annual results
announcements reflects the Board's commitment to providing
transparent and up-to-date disclosures of the Group's
performance.

The Board, assisted by the Audit Committee, oversees the
financial reporting process and the quality of the financial
reporting of the Group. The Audit Committee reviews and
monitors the integrity of the Group's quarterly, interim and
annual financial statements. It also reviews the appropriateness
of the Group's accounting policies and the changes to these
policies as well as ensuring these financial statements to comply
with accounting standards and regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the accounts of the Company and the external auditor
acknowledges its responsibilities in respect of financial
reporting which are set out in the independent auditor’s report
on page 115 of this report.
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External Auditor

The Audit Committee recommends the re-appointments of
Mazars CPA Limited as the auditor of the Group and the Board
has adopted such recommendation.

During the Year, the fees paid/payable to the Company’s auditor,
Mazars CPA Limited, in respect of audit services and non-audit
services provided by the auditors of the Company are as follows:

Category of services

IR 3% & &

Audit services
Audit fee for the financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022

ERRB

Non-audit services FEZRE
Other services H b AR 75

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take
in achieving the Group's strategic objectives, and maintaining
sound systems of risk management and internal control and
also reviewing their effectiveness to safeguard interests of the
shareholders, customers, employees, and the Group's assets.
However, such systems are designed to manage the Group's
risks within an acceptable risk profile, rather than to eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives of the Group,
and can only provide reasonable assurance and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has established an on-going process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the
Group and this process includes enhancing the systems of risk
management and internal control from time to time in response
to the changes to the business environment or regulatory
guidelines.
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The Company also maintains strict anti-corruption policies to
recognise and deal with bribery and corruption and to handle
corporate donation and sponsorship activities of the Group,
which applies to all employees and related third parties who
deal with the Group. The Company has a whistle-blowing
policy that serves the purpose of establishing whistle-blowing
procedures for employees and other relevant external parties
of our Company, in order to report and escalate any suspicious
misconducts. In accordance with the policy, we protect all
whistle-blowers from any kind of retaliation. All the information
provided by the whistle-blowers will be strictly confidential.

The Board always regards risk management and internal
control process as an important task and believes that effective
corporate risk management and internal control process is an
essential element of good corporate governance. The Legal
Compliance Committee and the Audit Committee have been
established by the Board, which are responsible for monitoring
and reviewing the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group.

Detailed procedures for our shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director are available on the Company’s
website.

During the Year, the Company's internal audit department
has carried out review on the internal control system and risk
management system of the Group. The review involves all
material monitoring aspects, including but not limited to finance,
operation, compliance and risk management. The internal audit
team has conducted analysis and assessment on the adequacy
and the effectiveness of the internal control system and risk
management of the Group, and has submitted the findings and
rectification measures to the Audit Committee and the Board.
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Risk Management
Control environment

The Group believes that risk management is the responsibility
of everyone within the Group. It aims to develop risk awareness
and control responsibility as our culture and the foundation of
our internal control system. The internal control system applies
to the Group's critical business processes including strategy
development, business planning, investment decisions, capital
allocation and day-to-day operations.

The Group also believes that corporate governance is often
associated with business ethics. In order to ensure the
enhancement of the Company’s reputation by the honest, loyal
and ethical behaviours of its staff, the Group has formulated a
formal staff code and whistleblowing policy. Furthermore, the
Group has from time to time arranged different levels of staff,
ranging from top management to front-line staff, to participate
in a series of business ethics seminars conducted by the
Independent Commission Against Corruption, reputed lecturers
or internal audit functions of the Company and the Group in
order to enhance the staff's recognition and commitment to the
staff code.

Management has also conducted annual self-check to see
whether the rules and guidelines specified in the staff code
have been properly adhered to, and the respective written
declarations have been documented and reported to the Audit
Committee.

Control activities

The Group's control activities have been built on regular top-

level reviews, segregation of duties and physical controls.

Currently, the key features of the internal control system include:

J the design of an organisational structure with defined lines
of responsibility and delegation of authority;

o the setup and adherence of authorisation and approval
limits of the Company and each business unit;

o the establishment of policies and procedures to support
deployment of management’s directives; and

o the systems and procedures to identify and mitigate risks
on an ongoing basis.
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Major operational risk factors and measures

The Group seeks to have risk management features embedded
in the day-to-day operations. At the beginning of each year, the
Group conducted a risk assessment on the existing or potential
risks that may impact the achievement of business objectives
over the course of business operation. The assessment includes
potential likelihood and impact of the identified risks. For the
risks identified, the Group determined the action plans and
management targets. The management of each business unit
of the Group is responsible for managing their respective day-
to-day operating risks, and implementing measures to mitigate
such risks.

Corporate affairs department monitors the implementation of
risk management, and continuously reviews and assesses the
efficiency and adequacy of action plans on a regular basis. Such
assessment results will be regularly communicated and reported
to the Legal Compliance Committee and the Board.

During the Year, the Legal Compliance Committee and the
Board were not aware of any unexpected adverse changes that
were significant to the risks related to the Group's businesses.

Internal Control

The Board recognises the overall responsibility for the
establishment, maintenance, and review of an internal control
system that provides reasonable assurance of the reliability and
integrity of financial and operational information, effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, the safeguarding of assets
and the compliance with laws and regulations and reviews
the internal control system annually. This system of internal
control is designed to manage rather than eliminate all risks
of failure where its goal is to provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance regarding the achievement of organisational
objectives.

The Company has an internal audit function to perform the
review on the internal control system of the Group (including
financial,

operational and compliance controls and risk

management functions).

The Audit Committee comprising three independent non-
executive Directors, which will retain overall responsibility for the
internal control matters of the Group and assess the robustness
of our regulatory compliance procedures and system reviewed
by the Legal Compliance Committee to ensure, among other
things, that the Group fully complies with all applicable laws
In addition, the
Audit Committee will make recommendations to the Board for

and regulations relevant to our operations.

the improvement of our regulatory compliance procedures and
system as is necessary.
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The Board conducted a review of the internal control system of
the Group for the Year. Having reviewed the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control system through the Audit Committee,
the Legal Compliance Committee and the external auditor,
which covers all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance control and risk management functions, the
Board is satisfied that such system is effective and adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary plays an important role in supporting
the Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board
and the Board committees. The company secretary advises
the Board on corporate governance matters and facilitates
the induction and professional development of Directors. The
company secretary also attends and ensures that all Board and
Board committees meetings are properly convened, and that
accurate and proper record of the proceeding and resolutions
passed are taken and maintained. The Board approves the
selection, appointment or dismissal of the company secretary.
The company secretary reports to the chairman of the Board
and/or the chief executives of the Company. All Directors
have direct access to the advice and services of the company
secretary.

As at 31 December 2022, Ms. Xu Jing is the company secretary
and an employee of the Company. During the Year, Ms. Xu
Jing has confirmed that she has taken not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening extraordinary general meeting and
putting forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

Pursuant to the Articles, shareholders should follow Article 58 of
the Articles to propose new resolutions at the general meetings.
Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, general meetings shall be
convened by any one or more members holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company,
to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty one (21)
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Dividend Policy

The Company may consider the declaring and paying dividends
to the shareholders of the Company provided that the Group
records profits and that the declaration and payment of
dividends does not affect the normal operations of the Group.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining
the dividend amount, the Board shall take into account, inter
alia:

the general financial condition of the Group;
ii. capital and debt level of the Group;

iii.  future cash requirements and availability for business
operations, business strategies and future development
needs;

iv.  any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be
imposed by the Group's lenders;

V. the general market conditions; and
vi.  any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.
Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board of the Company by addressing them to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit 1009,
Exchange Tower, 33 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon,
Hong Kong by post for the attention of the secretary of the
Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATIONS

The Company believes that effective communication with our
shareholders is essential for ensuring that they are provided
with timely access to important information about the Company,
including its financial performance, strategic goals and plans,
material developments, governance and risk profile, in order to
enable them to exercise their rights in an informed manner.

General meetings of the Company provide the best opportunity
for exchange of views between the Board and our shareholders
by maintaining an on-going dialogue with our shareholders.
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o Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general
meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote on their
behalf if they are unable to attend.

o The process of general meetings will be monitored and
reviewed by the Board on a continuous and regular
basis to ensure that shareholders’ needs are best served
and, if necessary, changes will be made to safeguard
shareholders’ interests.

o The chairman of the Board as well as the chairmen of
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee or, in their absence, other
members of the respective committees will attend general
meetings to answer shareholders’ questions. The chairman
of the independent board committee or, in his absence,
other members of the independent board committee, will
also be available to answer shareholders’ questions at
general meetings convened for the approval of connected
transactions or any other transactions that are subject to
independent shareholders’ approval.

o The Board will ensure appropriate arrangement is in
place to encourage shareholders’ participation in general
meetings.

In an effort to enhance communications with shareholders
and

(www.dfport.com.hk) to disseminate information relating to

investors, the Company maintains a website
the Company’s information such as announcements, circulars,
financial statements and notices of general meetings. The
Company regards the AGM as an important event as it provides
direct communication between the Board and its shareholders.
All shareholders of the Company are given at least a minimum
of 20 clear business days notice of the date and venue of the
AGM at which time the Directors and committee members are

available to answer questions on the business.

The Company has in place a shareholder communication
policy to ensure that Shareholders’ views and concerns are
appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to
ensure its effectiveness.

Shareholders or investors may also make enquires with the
Company through the channels mentioned above the section
headed “Shareholders Enquires”, and provide comments and
recommendations to the Directors or managements at any
time. Upon receipt of written enquiries from Shareholders, the
Company will make responses to the shareholders as soon as
possible.
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ERERBE

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL EEXH#HEXRE2H
DOCUMENT

During the Year, there had been no change in the Company’'s RZAFE KRR ZEBEXH W HEEEF) -
constitutional document.
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ABOUT THE REPORT

The report is the sixth annual environmental, social and
governance (“ESG") report issued by Dafeng Port Heshun
Technology Company Limited (“the Company”, “Company”
or "we") for the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December
2022. The report provides a comprehensive overview of
the Company’'s management policy and performance in
environmental, social and corporate governance in 2022,

focusing on issues of concern of stakeholders.

In the preparation of the report, we strove to include the
information in accordance with the Stock Exchange’s principles
of materiality, quantitative and consistency. We will continuously
strengthen the collection of information to enhance our
performance and disclosure of sustainable development issues.

REPORTING BOUNDARY

The policy documents, statements and data set out in the
report cover the Company and its subsidiaries engaged in
manufacturing. Other subsidiaries engaged in trading business
are not covered in this report because the ESG risks involved
are not material risks.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The report was prepared pursuant to the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the
the Listing Rules. The material aspects and general disclosures
as defined in the ESG Reporting Guide which are considered
to be relevant to the Group's businesses and operations will be
presented under the four subject areas, namely, Environmental,
Employment and Labour, Operational Practices and Community.

The report has been prepared according to a set of systematic
procedures which include identifying and prioritising significant
stakeholders, identifying and prioritising material ESG-related
issues, determining ESG reporting boundary, collecting relevant
materials and data, preparing data based on the information
collected, and reviewing data in the report.
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DATA AND RELIABILITY STATEMENT

The disclosures in the report are mainly derived from the
The
Company undertakes that the report does not contain any false

Company's statistical reports and relevant documents.

record or misleading statement, and takes responsibility for the
authenticity, accuracy and completeness of the content in the
report.

The Board of Directors and senior management of the Company
monitor the content of the report to ensure that there are no
false record, misleading statements or material omissions in the
report.

The report was approved by the Board of the Company on 23
March 2023.

ACCESS AND RESPONSE TO THE REPORT

The report will be available on the HKEXnews website (www.
hkexnews.hk) or the Company's official website (www.dfport.
com.hk). The Company believes that effective communication
with its shareholders is essential in ensuring that they have
timely access to important information about the Company,
including its financial performance, strategic goals and plans,
significant developments, governance and risk profile, in order
to exercise their rights in an informed manner.
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BOARD STATEMENT

In order to better integrate the sustainable development
strategy into the day-to-day governance of the Company, the
ESG Working Group under the Board of Directors takes major
responsibility for issues related to sustainable development
and comprehensively oversees the work related to sustainable
development. The ESG Working Group is mainly responsible for
guiding the formulation of sustainable development strategies,
objectives and management approaches, coordinating the
resources required for sustainable development goals, paying
attention to the actions taken to achieve strategic sustainable
development goals, reviewing the progress made against
sustainable development goals, supervising and inspecting
sustainable development activities, and reviewing and
submitting the annual sustainable development report to the
Board for approval. All departments of the Company and
relevant departments of its subsidiaries assist the ESG Working
Group in implementing sustainable development work, including
organising research on policies, rules and standards related
to sustainable development report, formulating sustainable
development management system, and regularly reporting
the work progress and results to the ESG Working Group.
The ESG Working Group will make an annual report to the
Board to improve the bottom-up communication system. In the
meantime, the Board, as the highest decision-making body,
reviews and authorises the sustainable development strategies
and policies formulated by the ESG Working Group, while the
ESG Working Group further guides, supervises and assesses
all departments of the Company and relevant departments of
its subsidiaries, forming a top-down supervision and guidance
mechanism. A third party is invited annually to conduct an
external audit, in order to continuously improve the Company'’s
sustainable development governance system. We also review
international sustainability trends and compare peer standards
on a regular basis to continuously improve our sustainability

performance.
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With importance attached to the expectations and demands
of all stakeholders, we hold regular internal and external
activities to closely communicate with stakeholders, identify
and evaluate material ESG issues, and discuss and review them
at Board meetings. Based on the external macro environment
and the Company’s development strategy, the Board discusses
and identifies the risks and opportunities in environmental,
social and corporate governance for the Company, and makes
decisions on the annual important ESG management activities
and projects. During the reporting period, we identified the
risks and opportunities arising from climate change to our future
operations, assessed the relevance and impact of the risks and
opportunities, and formulated targeted countermeasures. At
the same time, we set environmental targets and actively took
various green and low-carbon actions in response to the national
“carbon neutrality and carbon peak” strategy. We will monitor
and examine the achievement of future targets, and constantly
adjust and expand investments in sustainable development
based on the sustainable development trend at home and
abroad.
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Sustainable Development Governance
Structure of Dafeng Port Heshun Technology
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CHAPTER ONE LEAN GOVERNANCE

We always put sustainable development as the top priority
when it comes to achieving progress, and constantly carry out
sustainable transformation to make us a pioneer in the industry.
The principal businesses of the Company include the trading
and import and export businesses of electronic products,
petrochemical products and many other products, and the
storage services for petrochemical products.

In order to better identify and manage the ESG risks related to
its diversified businesses, the Company has established an ESG
Working Group led by the general manager office to jointly carry
out the ESG management together with the safety management
committee and other relevant key departments of the Company.
The ESG Working Group is responsible for communicating with
the stakeholders of the Company, identifying and evaluating the
ESG risks in relation to the Company’s operations, summarising
and analysing the Company’s ESG information, and reporting
material ESG issues to the Board on a regular basis.
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The Board is responsible for the review and decision-making of material ESG issues

The ESG Working Group led by the general manager office and comprising persons-

in-charge of various departments is responsible for the ESG management
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ESG executives
ESG#1T[E

All departments of the Company and relevant departments of its subsidiaries shall
carry out ESG work according to the deployment of the management
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Compliance Management 11 ERERE

We firmly believe that a sound corporate governance HMEBER2OCETAEERELLNT
structure is the cornerstone of our long-term and stable BREHABTERNEEEAL @ BREST
development. We strictly comply with various laws and (REARKEMBERAGE) (FEARHK
regulations, including the Company Law of the People's MERESHEE) (REARKEME R
Republic of China, the Law on Anti-Corruption and (XBRBEEER) (FEARHEMBERTIE
Anti-Bribery of the People’s Republic of China, the Law EBRFE)SEREEEEE  BEMEN
on State-Owned Assets in Enterprises of the People’s EBREBRETIE o ARIAHBMBEIT(RER
Republic of China and the Unfair Competition Law of BREGE) (NEHE)EHFHEBEBREA
the People’s Republic of China, in a bid to prevent and B ERSE  RETS(EITRNEE
control internal risks. The Company implements the Anti- BER BB ETITA  BREIEZ
fraud Management System, the Internal Control System BRRBETAERN - NBR - TEE -
and other management systems on business ethics, and MEAFELEFFERZR KRR
continuously improves guidelines including the Code TERBERENDEIRE -

of Conduct for Employees, in order to standardise the
behaviour of employees and ensure their compliance with
the code of professional conduct. In our daily operations,
we build a culture of integrity and create a clean and
positive business environment.

We have established the Internal Control System, in order ABREQARNIEENET  BMERET
to ensure the stability of internal operations. We carry CREHIE) - BRANITEERNEBEFT L
out the corresponding audit work via the annual internal EIFRERMENETIE  HEANRIBEZE
audit and plan, conduct compliance review and evaluation FlEERFAREGHBEESMTME - WHERD
on the existing internal control system, and come up with 2 Bz B 4R A FE B BRI B E 5 i - IRFE
corresponding solutions and improvement measures for NEARES - Al - RTRENEER
the risk points found to ensure compliance operation. MAEMARWEBEBRERER S - RIFHE
Meanwhile, we actively roll out business ethics training BHETEXRBRBEINRFEELTE
and anti-fraud publicity activities, and imprint our anti- HARIRBHEBHIERABEILRE -

corruption system on the mind of employees, aiming to
promote the deep integration of business ethics culture
and our management policies.

In 2022, the Company, based on “Legal Escort” of Jiangsu Yancheng, attached importance to improving
its ability to prevent risks, and launched the anti-fraud publicity campaign themed on “keeping purses
safe and protecting happy families”. Through cooperation with police, the Company guided cadres and
employees to enhance their anti-fraud awareness, laying a solid foundation for further creating a law-based

business environment. The effective training and publicity campaign not only improves its compliance
governance, but also accelerates the pace of high-quality integrated development, and highly enhances
the risk prevention ability.

TR CF . RENIAERDEHEM I BZERR/RL  ERRSCEARYEEN  RRTITER
KT TEEBFXIORFESLY  BRELAF SIEEABRYBRTERARFER RE-—FEE
FERLERRRETREEAR -ZBIEFEDINERHARE  TERSTEEARERN  LMEHEE
TREERABRIK SEEBRTEERBRPHES -
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1.2

60

The Company always takes a serious attitude towards
the information reported by internal and external
whistleblowers, and insists on broadening and smoothing
the reporting channels. For this reason, it has established a
violation reporting system and a whistleblower protection
system. Multiple channels, such as letter, telephone and
email, are available for whistleblowing. We uphold the
basic principles of “combining punishment with prevention
and giving priority to (#&P7 I #8 - EEFE )" and
“whistleblower protection and avoidance for investigation
(BB RIR#E - FHELI#)", and investigate and resolve the
reported corruption problems involving employees in a
timely manner. In order to protect the rights and interests
of whistleblowers, we have established the whistleblower
protection system and promise to keep whistleblowers’
identity information confidential and prohibit any
retaliation against whistleblowers, including termination,
suspension, threats and harassment, or any other form of
discrimination. If any of the above retaliatory acts occurs,
punishment will be imposed according to our system or
the relevant case will be transferred to judicial organs for
handling.

During the reporting period, there were neither closed
or pending corruption lawsuits against the Company and
its employees nor violations of relevant national and local
anti-corruption laws.

Stakeholder Engagement

We are keenly aware that our sustainable development
will bring long-term value to stakeholders, so we value
listening to and responding to our stakeholders’ needs
and feedback in a timely manner. Our products and
services have a direct or indirect impact on stakeholders.
In the course of operation, we have conducted in-depth
exchanges and discussions about governance, products,
services, communities and other aspects with stakeholders
through a normal communication mechanism, so as to
deliver sustainable value to stakeholders.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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Official website
B 77 48k
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1.3 Materiality Analysis

62

We conducted a questionnaire survey for principal

stakeholders, such as government and regulatory
shareholders and
employees, suppliers, media and communities, in order

to understand stakeholders’ concerns and expectations

agencies, investors, customers,

for ESG management in time. A materiality matrix was
created through a materiality analysis conducted based
on the global sustainable development trend, national
macro policies and our sustainable development goals. We
have identified 14 highly important issues, 7 moderately

1.3 EXMEDH

RRFBERSDEHQRESGEEMAE T
HHIE - RS ERAREE®RE  RR
HIEEE KPP BT HERN - Kig.
HBREXBHNERRTHESAN - B8
E-—STHRAZEAFERRBY  BX
RERRNMARARKEERAGETTE
AEBEIMERAFEEANEZERE
- RPABAINHAESEEEZRE 7
BEHEEEHE 1H-REE2HE K
PIERAREAFAREEBAR -

important issues and 1 generally important issue, which
will be disclosed in detail in the report.

Materiality Analysis of ESG Report 2022 of Dafeng Port
REB - - _—FESCGHREEEMIMN

20

Importance to stakeholders
HANRBETNEZN

v

Importance to enterprises

HEENERM

Figure: Materiality Matrix of 2022 ESG Report of Dafeng Port
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List of major ESG issues of Dafeng Port in 2022
EBR_B__FESGEEZRBEI X

Type of issues No. Issues
SERR FF 5% BE
3 Waste treatment and disposal
BEYREEEE
2 Investing resources to reduce pollution emissions
BAERBDISRERE
1 Discharging pollutants according to relevant standards
BREHCERD BT E
6 Potential environmental risks in controlling storage operation (such

as chemical leakage and explosion)

EERMELANEFENRERR(MEEYRE BESFH)

1 Employee training and development
BT EER
13 Establishment of a production safety system
RELEERERER
21 Risk management
Highly important issues &
EEEESE . |
19 Business ethics
BmEER
14 Quality of products and services
EmkREEE
22 Anti-corruption
RES
16 Supply chain management
Hrgae
20 Compliance management
BRRE
15 Information security and privacy protection
SRR MELRZE
7 Climate change
RARE (L
10 Occupational health and safety
BEEmiie
18 Corporate governance
NI
4 Rational use of water resources
BEERKER
Moderately 5 Energy conservation
iImportant issues &5 4 8 R
hWEEERE A
8 Legitimate recruitment and use of workforce
BEBRRAT
12 Employee care (such as enriching employees’ lives)
BTHE(WEERTIARS
9 Protection of the rights and interests of employees
REEI#ER
Generally important issues 17 Community investment and charity
BESEEHE HEEREENT
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CHAPTER TWO LOW-CARBON DEVELOPMENT

The Company, which has always upheld the concept of
green and low-carbon development, adheres to the path of
sustainable and circular development, actively responds to the
call of national policies, and fully implements environmental
protection-related measures. With strict compliance with the
environmental protection approaches, policies and regulations
of the national and local governments, we always adopt the
environmental target responsibility system, and establish and
improve relevant management systems and work plans, in a
bid to constantly promote low-carbon operation and green

development in terms of norms and systems.

The Company formulated the Environmental Impact Assessment
Report, further improved the ledger for environmental
protection operation and the ledger for incomings and
outgoings of hazardous waste on the basis of the original
environmental management systems and rules, such as
Environmental Management System and Measures and
Environmental Protection Responsibility System, and strictly
complied with the Regulations on the Administration of
Pollutant Discharge Permits. Each of the Company’s production
business units, under the supervision of the leading group for
environmental protection, actively adopted pollutant treatment
technology to reduce emissions, and proactively identified
environmental risks associated with the operation process. In
2022, we carried out environmental protection acceptance for
completed projects of the oil tank group, and newly launched
the online monitoring system for oil vapour recovery. We plan
to add eco-friendly biochemical treatment plants and hazardous
waste storage projects in 2023, as efforts to always devote
ourselves to protecting the ecology and environment around the

port.

Environmental Emergency Management
With constant focus on environmental management, the
Company constantly improves the working mechanism of
organisation and command, monitoring and early warning,

reporting, etc.,
Emergency Plan, and regularly organises emergency drills to

information formulates the Environmental
effectively improve its emergency management capability.
Aiming to effectively deal with major accidents or emergencies,
the Company has established the corresponding management
measures from the aspects of system improvement, post
setting, handling procedures, etc., including specially-assigned
staff, emergency preparedness and response, and post-event
reporting. We always give the top priority to the protection of
the environment and ecology, and prevent and eliminate the
occurrence and impact of environmental incidents.
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Management by Environmental Objectives REBEERE

Guided by ecological and environmental policies and industry {KEALRBRENBKIBERTEERRER
development trends, the Company has set objectives and 35| AGIEIEEREHRAZETEHIRRE
requirements in relation to environmental quality, ecological & - A AEINAERM E 4th B4 REIRIRRERE N E
function and ecological and environmental protection 12MEsK - BIEREE - &g - &K BESZSNT
within the corresponding planning period, namely four RK#&E BEREZRBEEME2/LFE - AR @ &
dimensions of emission reduction, energy conservation, MITENRILEZEER HEEROBMESHBPAR
water conservation and waste reduction, so as to focus on HIEBAFIMEEEN VEEZEMRBEERREE -
the objectives and conduct quantitative evaluation. In the NGB Z#ERR K HEKEE -

meantime, we continuously deepened the management

by objectives by breaking down the objectives to all our

departments and relevant departments of our subsidiaries,

earnestly implementing relevant management measures, and

strengthening efforts to track and give feedback to the progress

towards the objectives.

In terms of emissions

Energy use efficiency

Water use efficiency

Waste reduction

BEHENE BEREARESH KR T RS H
Objectives: Objectives: Objectives: Objectives:
B B B B :
e Gradually  establishing a Strengthening the management Increasing the investment e Optimising waste

carbon emission management
system, striving to reduce
carbon emissions year by year

BLRBEREERRE

NFERBRIREZFIRE

of energy consumption in the
production process to increase
energy use efficiency

MR AEEBRERREEER -
RTTREREE A=

in water-saving process and
technology to improve
water use efficiency

IR &K TE K &1l a4
A RE AR

management level and
reducing waste discharge

BILEEWEERKT - BE

R HEIR

Core measures:

Core measures:

Core measures:

Core measures:

BRI BEE BB RS
e Using secondary seals for Gradually phase out Standardising the cleaning of o Strengthening equipment

floating roof tanks

4T TRIERA — R E

equipment and facilities with
high energy consumption,
and strengthen energy-saving

oil tanks, reasonably
prolonging the cleaning
cycle, and using clean and

management to reduce the

phenomenon of leakin

9

and reduce the quantity

* Installing breather valve technological transformation efficient  dispersants  to and probability of
baffles on the top of oil tanks e NS R reduce the water discharged hazardous waste
) TR 22 5 M OR R 42 4R i ISR ETRERRER HEEE LR - SBER generation

Strengthening the inspection
on tank accessories, and
regularly inspecting flame
arrester, hydraulic oil seal and
dip hatch to ensure that air
tightness meets the
requirements

DR R R R - HE
NER M - B EES
BEMEREMEFEEKR

Filling the oil tank to the
permissible level to reduce
losses

i m R R = L FTEE A
DR S

Carrying out low
carbon-related publicity and
training for employees
HETHREREENEE
2=l

Reasonably adjusting nitrogen
valve pressure to reduce
nitrogen waste
AERGARKES - B
ARHPRE

Raising energy conservation
awareness of employees to
reduce waste caused by
leaving lights on, keeping
air conditioners  running
when no one is around, etc.
MAHETHEHERRE
B RO RAR  EAZEH
SRERR

HEEEES - RABRS
BEERA - WA B SR

=

Improving the secondary
utilisation rate of clean water

TRRIBE K ZIRAMAER

Reasonably controlling
cooling water consumption
of equipment
BEEFIRELAVKBE

Raising water conservation
awareness of employees to
prevent the waste caused
by leaving a hose on for a
long period

MR s E THEIKBRE
& {ORBHBRKRR

MARBEENE B

9\

B8R RERR BRE

R R E BB AR

of waste
internally and externally

InsEE MES RRES E

of waste

Strengthening the publicity
reduction

Actively exploring upgrading
reduction

technologies and improving
waste disposal management

EERRBMERK - TERE

RMEEERE

HRNERBERGERAR
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2.1

ERA®ME

Emission Reduction

The Company strictly abides by relevant national laws and
regulations, such as the Environmental Protection Law of
the People’s Republic of China, the Environmental Impact
Assessment Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Law on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution of
the People’s Republic of China, the Law on the Prevention
and Control of Atmospheric Pollution of the People's
Republic of China, the Law on the Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes of the People’s
Republic of China, and the Law on the Prevention and
Control of Noise Pollution of the People’s Republic of
China. It sorted out its production and operation process,
and identified the emissions and discharges generated in
the daily operations, including wastewater produced from
washing of storage tanks, volatile organic compounds
(VOCs") and solid wastes produced in the operation
process. The Company earnestly implemented its internal
management systems including the Environmental
Management System and Measures and the Environmental
Protection Responsibility System, and accordingly
established and improved the relevant rules and norms
of emission and discharge management. The Company
formulated management rules including the Hazardous
Waste Management Rules and the Responsibility System
for Prevention and Control of Hazardous Waste Pollution
for various types of waste, and strictly monitored the
emissions and discharges. The purpose is to actively
control the impact on the surrounding ecology and
environment. We regularly conduct self-monitoring and
submit quarterly and annual pollutant discharge reports
to meet the management requirements of pollutant
the
Company did not have any illegal emissions or discharges.

discharge permits. During the reporting period,

" VOCs is the abbreviation of volatile organic compounds.
T VOCsZHE#E M A ILE Y (volatile organic compounds) ) T X4 & ©
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2.1

DB

NAERETF(REARAMBERFERE
EXREARAMBIRIEZEFEEXP
EAREMBHKFRBEAEEKFEARH
FRFTRGREXTEA R HFEE 8
BEY SR RBHRIENFEAR LK
RESARA)SERBEERERE
koMEBEEFEEELRE  HAEERM
E%Laﬂﬁqﬂﬁiﬁ’ﬂ#ﬁ&%@% B#

MEELNEK BLBETELNESR
£ 5 # % (VOCs') &I EEENE - R1E
BIEFHERERRENTE - ARRE

ER(RREEENELERRRERESR
ERDERMEERGE B MTEYN
MERMBERERS  HYSHRLE
EnricE(eRERNEEERENER
BMASRAATIEELIDEANEESR
B WERRITHENERDEEER -
BPBREHFSHUTBEEER EHE

TEITER  EHLERISFE FER
F o MEHRA - RERBERBIERNE
;El o

Figure: Photo of pollutant discharge permit
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Exhaust Gas Emission Management

We strictly abide by relevant emission standards, continuously
improve production and operation process, innovate in storage
and transportation processes, and effectively reduce the
impact of exhaust emissions on the surrounding ecology and
environment through technological innovation, source control
and other measures to meet the requirements of the Law on the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution of the People's
Republic of China.

We carry out the prevention and control of VOCs pollution
according to the Technical Policy for Prevention and Control
of VOCs Pollution, in order to control the possible leakage
of VOCs during storage. In 2022, the Company added the
Operation Rules for Oil Vapour Recovery to further standardise
the operation process to avoid VOC leakage during storage.

During the reporting period, we strengthened the management
of exhaust emissions, and engaged a qualified third party to
conduct a comprehensive inspection on unorganised exhaust
gas in the industrial park according to the Standard Operating
Procedures and Technical Specifications for VOCs Leak
Detection and issue a detection report. After inspection and re-
inspection, the Company’s unorganised exhaust gas emissions
from storage tanks meet the relevant national and local emission
standards. In addition, the Company also engaged a third-
party detection agency to conduct exhaust leak detection and
repair by detecting nearly 1,700 sealed points in the tank farm
so as to make all-round investigation for the environmental risk
in the storage process. It turned out that the Company can
well manage and control the VOC leak risk with a good sealed
petrochemical storage and transportation pipeline.

To further control VOC emissions in the process of oil loading
and unloading, we implemented the following measures:

o We strengthened the maintenance of equipment and
facilities, and conducted high-frequency inspections
on the equipment, such as entrusting a third party
to carry out leak detection and repair (LDAR) on the
equipment to prevent the case of “leakage”;

° The oil vapour recovery unit was put into use to
recover the volatilised oil vapour from the storage
tank, with a recovery efficiency of 95%;

R #HERERKRSE

BREREE

WPIBARETHBHENIRE - TEHRCELEES
ERiE AIMRERESTE  BERWMEN -

IR 98 Y 11| 5 45 e B SBUR D BE SRR T 8 AR AR
RENTZE  URR(hEARKMBERRIGR
Piiak) B o

REBRFBRPAKFEVOCSIRE - HFIE
BCEBIEE Y (VOCs) )5 R BT R R B
RVOCs/5RFETIE - ZT =% NAEIHE
ChHRERBRIERRE)  E—FRBRIERE -
DA S 3 PR R B AZ R AYVOCS R -

HBEMA - RAMRHERFEREE  BF
BEME=TRBKIE(VOCsE R R AR £
BRVEMAR R Bl AR &0) S (B [ 70 8 AR A E R
TREARRY S AERBRE - Kl RiER
NEIHHENBEARERERTEERKE)
AEABERAIRE < thoh - RRIERBFE =T A
BERARERZRRAEBETHE HEREI
L700EZHEETRA - 2HFERFBEN
RERR #RETAFAOLRARERERE
HUERSY HVOCsRRRARER TR EEEE
5 o

A — R H fn R HB R P R VOCsHEIB
Mo BPIEM T AT EE:

. MR R HEREOEERE LY
HEETEEANNKE  WEF
B HHRBETERRBAREE
(LDAR) #8 - LA 4B 1 5 MR A9
MREA

e KRAMROWEKE HRHEEHEN
HARAETTEIN - B R EF95%
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Figure: Online Monitoring System for Oil Vapour Recovery

68

Loading of the tank car on the loading platform
shifted from the original top loading to the safer and
more environmentally-friendly bottom loading, and
the vapour generated in the loading process was
collected and connected into the oil vapour recovery
unit;

Nitrogen storage facilities for storage tanks were put
into use to reduce the unorganised volatilisation of
VOCs in the pipeline;

Water spraying helped cool down the tank body
in summer, reducing the volatility of the storage
medium in the tanks, thereby reducing the exhaust
gas generated by the volatilisation of the medium;

Nitrogen valves were recalibrated to reduce vapour
emissions via nitrogen sealing;

Dust-proof mesh was added to the surrounding bulk
cargo yards, and spraying was applied on a regular
basis to reduce dust, which greatly reduces dust
pollution;

A pressure test was conducted on hoses on a regular
basis to prevent leakage.

REQEREHRANKENSE
22 FRENEHEESTA A
RYEREBRETELMNREBETR
S YEANHREWEES:

RMARENRRIFRE  BIE
AR VOCs Y A0 BB 3

EEFBAKERN S X HEEH®
TR BREEBARTNENE
Bl WO EIEEE AR E
i

EFEREARMEA  BBAAHRD
H SRR

SRR EEISERNES T8
1T TR B HE O A KTEIE T B
CREY

HEEETHMETHABHBRRBEN
A -

During the reporting period, the Company built a new online monitoring system for oil vapour recovery
to provide 24-hour online monitoring of VOCs. At the same time, it strengthened air control according
to the requirements of the competent environmental protection department, and took measures such as
suspension and reduction of production load depending on the air pollution situation to further ensure
that the PM 2.5 meets the standard.

HERR - RRFEMRLQKERERS  BIR24NDEHVOCSHEITELR R - RRRERREE I
EBRMBAREZENE  REARSABARREE RBRATEESER £ FRIPM2SIEREHE -

C MR B W FE AR BRI R A
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Wastewater Discharge Management

In strict compliance with the Law on the Prevention and Control
of Water Pollution of the People’s Republic of China and the
Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standard of the People’s
Republic of China, the Company performs the integrated
management on water pollutants, and strictly prohibits the
direct discharge of wastewater containing pollutants, such
as oil, acid and alkaline fluid, into water body to prevent
water pollution. Meanwhile, the Company has established a
wastewater network to collect ground wastewater and tank
cleaning wastewater, tank bottom oily wastewater and rainwater,
and has the wastewater treated by a self-built wastewater
treatment station and then sent to the industrial park wastewater
treatment station for further treatment until
discharge standard. Office wastewater is discharged into the
municipal wastewater network and disposed of in the local

it meets the

municipal wastewater treatment plant. During the reporting
period, we repeatedly monitored the surrounding seawater to
have a real-time understanding of our impact on the surrounding
waters and promptly respond to unexpected incidents. The
Company expects to operate a new biochemical wastewater
treatment plant in 2023 to further improve the wastewater
management capacity.

RE HEREAHRS

BKEERE B

NEBEEBERFEAR LB R EE)
(REARAFMBSKEAERZENEBR
E o UEMITKSEMGREERIE B
BERKEBHERHRE  BEURBERESHSE
PRI REK - DABTIE /KBS - RAIRER M IF5KE
AW SR RO 5K - BERISKER
K BBERSKERETERE 525K
Uk B TR 1% 805 K EE A B &5 KR IR Uk i T —
PTRIE  BERKEZHER - RS KEIFEA
MHES/KER  AEMTERSKERBETS
REE WMEHARN - RMZAFAEREGKE
A LERZERMEFAEKRENFZEBE R
HENEHERBEERE  ARET-E=-=
FHEFESKELCEREENE—FIRSISK
B -

Type of pollutants
SR EE

Chemical oxygen demand (COD) 450ppm
L2 F4 & (COD)

PH 6~9

B i E (PH)

Concentration limit for
pollutant discharge

R BEROR ERE

Annual average pollutant
discharge concentration

FREFGFZRYEIORE
230ppm

7.5
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Solid Waste Management

The Company strictly complies with the Law on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes of
the People’'s Republic of China, the Regulations on Safety
Administration of Hazardous Chemicals, the National Catalogue
of Hazardous Wastes, the Standard for Pollution Control on
Hazardous Waste Storage, the Measures on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution of Hazardous Chemical
Waste, and the Measures on the Management of Hazardous
Waste Manifests, based on which it formulated the Hazardous
Waste Management System to ensure the proper disposal
of hazardous waste, so as to reduce the pollution caused by
the solid waste generated by its operating activities to the
surrounding ecology and environment.

Hazardous waste generated in our production and operation
mainly includes waste oil in grease trap, oily waste and liquid
waste. The Company has defined relevant treatment procedures
in the Hazardous Waste Management System:

EEERWER

NA) B A% ST (P A R S B [E] 88 BE )05 IR
BhaEXERIEERR2EREIXBERE
B BE 1) 2 85O T8 B BE WD BT 1705 2R 4 I AR 2B K B
ZBERSAREN AWEXCREED
BEBREEEMA)NOERAER TBRUFIET
(EREERMERHE) KRAEHE LRER
BMEENKEZERE WAL RBELEHE
EMERERMHRELRREEKAITR

BMWEELLEBEPEENEREZDEL
TERERBMER SHBEYRER - A7
T EREEMERGE)RETHENEER
F:
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Effluent from cleaning production
equipment is transferred to the
wastewater  treatment  station
through pipelines.

REFKEIRL o
effluent

Untreated  production

should not be directly discharged
to the sewer.

EEFARERETSEEFATK

3 o

Production and domestic sewage is
discharged to a designated
collection pool and transferred to
the wastewater treatment plant
after going through wastewater
treatment facilities and reaching
discharge standards.

EE - EESKGEREEERED
KT ERIR AR e 2 B HE AR R BE AR
EIFKEER

The production and equipment
departments should be notified in
time for repair when the
wastewater treatment station fails
to operate due to malfunction.

57K BE IR vk FE A RS T RE B I R % B
BAEERERHETHERS ©

Production and domestic waste
should be stored separately in the
designated location.

H£E - EENRMASREEREEE
o o

The general control department
collects and stores samples and
cleaning effluent into special
containers and dispose of them in
accordance with requirements for
“recycling of liquid waste”.

BENRXERBAERETREER
B BER [ EREW ] NEREHE -

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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Waste oil should be collected in
time for centralised storage, and oil
on the ground must be cleaned up
immediately.

B N B B W SR R BT 7 - AR M E
HSRAETIERE ©

Paint, rock wool and dust-prone
materials generated in the repair
process should be stored in the
designated location.

EEBRELNHZE ERREEE
MENRIEERER -

All  hazardous waste should be
stored in designated containers and
be placed in hazardous waste
warehouse in an orderly manner.

e BREZYEFIRFSREN
éﬁ&@%ﬁ BFEFRTEERERYA
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According to the Hazardous Waste Management System, the
production and equipment departments classify and count
hazardous waste collected and send the waste to the safety
and environmental protection department that transfers them
to the hazardous waste warehouse in kinds and batches, in
order to better pretreat, classify and store hazardous waste. The
Company can classify and store hazardous waste generated in
the course of business in the hazardous waste warehouse in its
plants. Hazardous waste can be monitored via the live video
outside the warehouse. Requirements for containers and storage
of hazardous waste of the Company are set out below:

. Container tanks or boxes should be available
for hazardous waste

RERMBERYERRAIE

R HERERKRS

RITEFNEGREZEMETRERER Y T
T T(EREEYERHNEINEET £ E

HEBEEHREINNEREZEDHETOESR
i BREATERRABEEREED Y EOI
BRERERE ARAEEBTRELENGR
By RRRENSENEREEYEBEET

"*Eﬁ,ﬁq © B2 A A A R E S ) B R AR SR 3R
ZRRRERY - ARIHBRERYE =M
T‘xﬂﬂllﬂtaﬁﬁa’\-

 Containers should be stored in a safe and secure way and kept away from fire and water

RERRRE - BE - EBER - KR

2. Containers for direct storage of hazardous waste
should satisfy the following requirements:

HEFRERERVNER[AMEUTER

® Materials of containers should be compatible with (does not react with) the hazardous waste

BV BV ARBREZRNET (TEERRE)

 Containers should satisfy relevant strength and protection requirements

AERAM AR R E AN E B R

e Containers must be intact and tightly sealed to prevent leakage during transfer and transportation

e WATHEE  HOBRE - AR NERRIZTRE

® Each container holding hazardous waste must be affixed with a clear label or a new label, indicating the Chinese name and

nature of the substance contained. The labels cannot be altered

BEREERERNNA R LMBAMB RS

SHBA ERTAIRE

AERTERMENT X ERE RIS - RRTEAZNRY

® All containers containing liquid hazardous waste should have appropriate space

RBERRECREZRNNRRLAEFBEER

3. Temporary storage of hazardous waste
should meet the following requirements:

WA FRr AR L AME

* Hazardous waste should be stored separately in kinds. Incompatible materials should be stored separately to prevent danger

ERD RGN - THRENMERDRENR - AhELEER

* Direct packaging materials for fragile package should, according to their nature, be fixed in wooden case or firm cartons,
and fillers should be added to prevent collision and extrusion to ensure safe storage

SEBEYHNEEBRMERIEE TR B EEEAEREENAMAET - WINFETY - 0 IERE - HBE - UWRELZZ2FR

® Containers directly containing hazardous waste should not be tilted and tipped to avoid leakage during storage

EERERERERVNASEFITBETERELER - BREMRR
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The Company strictly follows the Manifest System for Transfer of
Hazardous Wastes, and the safety and environmental protection
department engages a qualified unit to dispose of hazardous
waste. Through the Dynamic Management Information System
for Hazardous Wastes, the Company updates and inquires about
information in real time, such as order placement, acceptance
of wastes by qualified units, removal from the plant, and
confirmation of the transfer amount, so as to track the treatment
of hazardous wastes in time. In addition, we transfer non-
hazardous wastes and domestic garbage generated in storage
and operation to a material recycler for unified treatment or
recycling.

The non-hazardous waste involved during the operation of
the Company mainly includes office domestic waste and
office paper. During the reporting period, we advocated the
environmental protection concept of paper recycling in the
office area to reduce the non-hazardous waste generated during
operation.

ARRBEEATCEREMEBIBESE)
MEZ2RAMBEREZRVEZEEEENEN
ETHR—L2RE - RARBBIEREVIE
EEEREAMIEREFMERNTE - BEHE
NEXERY BHRER BBERAFT X
JIMER  NERKRMEREZYMNEIERE
Mo dsh RMPESRKRREELTELENE
TEEVREENREBENEORENETT
FmEXLEEMNA -

ARBEELBED TEHRNBEZEEDR
WMAETERIR LW AR - MEBRR - RME
WMARBEGE REBREARRES - AR
DARRREELBRETEENEZTERY -

In August 2022, Port Storage Petrochemical assigned employees to participate in the training of hazardous
waste disposal, which further improved their hazardous waste disposal skills and strengthened their

environmental consciousness.

“ECFN\R - BRALCEBEIZNGEEREMBEI

MBBTRBERETH -
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Photo: Dafeng Port Hazardous Waste Disposal
Training
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Tackling Climate Change

Dafeng Port is aware of the increasingly serious global warming,
which has brought big changes to the environment that we
live in. With active efforts made to explore energy-saving
technologies, we use low-carbon energy and other means to
continuously reduce the greenhouse gas emissions during
operation. Considering the major environmental risks we
face, we formulated the Emergency Response Plan for Severe
Weather. We fully take into account the acute risks caused by
extreme weather such as flooding, strong winds or cyclones,
and the chronic risks caused by long-term climate patterns
such as rising temperatures, and include them into the plan,
aiming to further enhance the disaster prevention and mitigation
capabilities.

2.2 Resource Conservation

Energy Management

We constantly improve our energy use structure and
increase energy use efficiency. By setting annual
and monthly production objectives and plans, and
incorporating energy use into performance indicators for
production management, we make regular statistics and
analysis on energy use per unit of capacity, in order to
discover the factors affecting energy efficiency and put
forward corresponding improvement measures to strike
a good balance between environmental protection and
business growth.

We fully implement the concept of greenness, low carbon,
energy conservation and consumption reduction through
the following measures:

o Continuously standardising the use and management
of company cars;

J Using more energy-efficient LED bulbs for street
lamps, and setting the time to switch on the lamps
according to seasonal changes;

o Strengthening the electricity and water conservation
management in the office area to eliminate waste of
electricity and water;

R #HERERKRSE
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° Setting energy saver mode on air conditioners;

J Adopting spraying to cool down tanks in the tank
farm in hot summer to reduce material loss;

J Setting frequency regulation mode for pumps to

reduce power consumption;

J Using double-sided printing in the office area as
much as possible, and advocating paperless office.

We actively carried out the Work Plan on Control of
Greenhouse Gas Emissions during the 13th Five-Year Plan
Period released by the State Council, in order to achieve
the energy use efficiency targets. We optimised energy
structure, used low-carbon energy, saved energy and
increased energy consumption efficiency to continuously
reduce greenhouse gas emissions in the operation
process, committed to building ourselves into an energy-
efficient enterprise.

Water Resources Management

The water used by the Company mainly comes from the
municipal water supply network in the port area, and the
water consumed in the operation process mainly comes
from petrochemical storage, tank washing, fire fighting
and so on. The Company strictly abides by the Water Law
of the People's Republic of China and other relevant laws
and regulations, and puts forward targeted measures for
the rational use of water resources from the perspective

of its own water resource utilisation:

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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Petrochemical storage Tank washing Fire fighting

AL Ef#

e The Company measured
water consumption and
wastewater discharge
during the storage
process and improved
the statistics of water
consumption and
discharge data, so as to
comprehensively
monitor the water
resource utilisation in
the operation process.
BB A R ETEL N RE
IKBEEIETE - TERAK
NHKBAE - LS HEE
RIE 2 B P HIKE IR
FIER -

It strengthened the
control over cooling
water in a canned pump,
and controlled the
opening angle of the
cooling water valve as
much as possible on the
premise that cooling is
achieved, in a bid to
reduce water
consumption.

HF MR Ak NEE
1 fERE MR < AT
T BB AKX
B RDRKE -

According to seasonal
temperature changes, it
adjusted the water
usage for tank body
cooling through spraying
and anti-freezing
insulation.
RIBEFEREE (L - B
T B8 P38 TEOM K 7 R RO
BFRYFAZKIB M ©

i

e Through reasonable
planning of material
classification and
storage area, the
Company reduced the
length of the pipe in the
tank washing process, in
order to increase the
efficiency of water
resource utilisation.

BEA IR DT
FiRis - BT ER
RE - RIVKERNAR

B

e The Company regularly

organised emergency
fire drills and gave
priority to the use of
emergency equipment
such as fire
extinguishers to reduce
spraying time of water
guns and reduce water
resource consumption.
TE BRI R e OB B B AR
FREBIE BN R EFE
SEE - OB IKIRIEM
R - R AIKEIRIBRE o

It conducted
comprehensive
inspections on all fire
hoses in plants and
promoted the repair of
all leakage points to
prevent water resources
waste caused by
leakage.
SRR AR AR K E
TEREARSE - #ERE
RIREHMEE TR IIE - [
IERRERKERRE -

Before winter came, all
pipes were checked to
prevent freezing
damage.

REHREGRRT - REMAE
AETTHRR - DA RIE -

REBNERBERBERD R
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CHAPTER THREE PRODUCTION SAFETY

3.1

76

Safety Risk Control

The Company actively safety

management policy of “safety first, prioritise prevention”,

implemented the

aiming to provide a healthy and safe working environment
for its employees. We strictly abide by rules and
regulations regarding production safety in relation to oil
and petrochemical storage business, including the Safety
Inspection Management System, the Risk Identification
and Assessment Management System, the Safety Facilities
and Technical Requirements for Petrochemical Wharf and
Storage Area, the Regulations on Safety Administration of
Hazardous Chemicals, and the Regulations on the Safety
Management of Hazardous Goods in Ports. Attention was
paid to the safety risk management during the operation
process to ensure that employees work in a healthy and
safe working environment.

Dafeng Port has specifically formulated the Management
System for Safety Inspection and Potential Accident
Investigation and the Risk Assessment and Control
System. With total employee involvement, the safety
and environmental protection department is responsible
for leading the identification of hazardous and harmful
factors from a multi-level, all-round perspective. Moreover,
the Company has also established a risk identification
management process to deal with risks quickly and
efficiently.
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Risk Identification Management Process

RE HEREAHRS

BB EERRE

During the process of risk identification, the Company
established quantitative risk assessment criteria according
to the probability of risks and the consequences of
accidents, and categorised risks as material, large, general
and low based on risk level and accordingly developed
control measures and implementation deadlines.

ARERBRBEBIBEF - RIER RO HE
EERMEBEXNER - K TELH
REBFHEEE RRABRERIAD/EK
R~ AR - — A ERAEREE - )
EREOESEE R BEHR -
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21=25 Material risks Operations should not continue until measures are taken to reduce harm and

FRER evaluate improvement measures

ERBEREERET - TREBEE HUCERRETTGE

16-20 Large risks It takes emergency measures to reduce risks and establishes operation
E N control procedures to conduct periodic inspection, measurement and
assessment
KREsEREERR B2 ETEGREF ks  RHERFME
6=15 General risks It may consider setting targets, establishing operating procedures and
— AR B B strengthening training and communication
AEZREZVAR BUBRERRE  MAREBILER
1-5 Low risks It may consider establishing operating procedures and operating
1K 2, B instructions, but regular inspections instead of control measures are

required, and records need to be recorded
AIZEEVIRERE (EXEEE EETHRENEFTRBEHE
M+ IR A7 0 8%

During the reporting period, according to the Opinions WMEPRN - REAEB(RBEBIBENR
on Deepening Efforts to Prevent and Defuse Major Risks ftiEtMc2EESESRRABRIENE
in Production Safety of the Ministry of Transport, the FYNEXREIKL 2 EERRBRYREE
Company updated the Hierarchical Risk Control System for wE) BRTEAZEZERIAEEE]
Production Safety, clarifying the “five lists” of major safety WRBAND  BERERERERFE -
risks, namely the list of basic information of major risks, BEESTEE DiEEmEE  BREE
the list of division of responsibilities, the list of prevention BENMESREESE -

and control measures, the list of monitoring and control
and the list of emergency response.
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In strict compliance with the Production Safety Law of
the People’s Republic of China, the Company established
a dual prevention mechanism of hierarchical safety risk
control and hidden hazard investigation and control, and
constantly improved the mechanism for preventing and
defusing risks to improve the production safety level and
ensure safe production. During the reporting period, we

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE #HEREARE

BTWTI{E:

carried out the following work according to the internal
Safety Inspection Management System:

It identified risks in operating
activities and equipment, and gave
notice of large risks and above in
the storage area.

e EB MR RV E P - 0%
EERARAULEBRETAR

In respect of the important high-risk
areas such as nitrogen room,
fire-pump room and wastewater
treatment station, the Company also

conducted specific safety
inspections, and promptly checked
and eliminated faults in equipment
and facilities or unstandardised
operations.

HHBENSEBEHNARE - B
BiRE - SKEEILESHREEE
2 0 REHFERBERIEETHIE
HASBBIRIEITR o

e The Company

conducted
comprehensive safety inspections on
production and operating activities on
a regular basis, ensuring that each
production and operation unit shall
achieve safety targets and carry out
work plans, follow safety management
rules and operating procedures, and
effectively identify safety hazards and
offer rectification advices.

HEEKETDRREHNGE RS
BE  BRELELEETEERZ S
BER TS BELZE2EERTE
REERRE  ARERZERBELRE
HEYIZR -

The leading group for safety
conducted routine and irregular spot
checks, gave targeted rectification
suggestions on major problems

discovered, and required
corresponding positions to complete
the rectification and re-inspection as
soon as possible.

Z2TFASEFREBERTEHH
HERARRN T EEER LR
R WERHEMUBREERT
RERLESE -

REBNMENEBRBERAT
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We established a safety management system according
to the entire operation process. We educated outsiders
entering the production unit about production safety,
informed them of safety precautions and provided them
with protective equipment, so as to fully guarantee the
safety management and build and share a safe business
environment.

Safe Operation Management

Dafeng Port strictly abides by relevant systems such as
the Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Fire Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China and the Regulations on Production Safety of Jiangsu
Province. The Company attaches great importance to
production safety and adheres to the principle of “Safety
first, prioritise prevention and comprehensive control (%
2E— - FEhAE - £4812)". Continuous efforts were
made to improve the safety management structure of
oil and petrochemical storage business, and establish a
leading group for production safety to implement the
production safety responsibility system. The Company
has constantly improved its safety system. Supervised
by the production safety committee, the leading group
for production safety organised the preparation of the
Company's production safety rules and regulations,
operating procedures and emergency plans for safety
accidents, including the Production Safety Responsibility
System, the Production Safety Management Network,
the Leadership and Duty System, the Administrative
Measures for Production Safety Deposits, the Production
Safety Meeting System, the Production Safety Inspection
System, the Production Safety Accident Reporting and
Investigation System, the Inspection and Rectification
System for Hidden Hazards in Production Safety, the
Production Safety Education and Training System, and
the Reward and Punishment System for Production
Safety. According to the relevant requirements, we
updated the Safety Production Expenses Accrual and
Investment Guarantee System, re-planned and clearly
divided the withdrawal amount and use scope of safety
funds, and revised the Special Operation Management
System according to GB 30871-2022 Safety Code for
Special Operations of Hazardous Chemicals Enterprises.
According to their own business characteristics, each
production and operation unit has improved the safety
management structure of the Company, and the person-
in-charge of each part shares different safety management
tasks according to their positions.

3.2

R #HERERKRSE

BMEARARKRENE2RERLABER
2EEHE KEERBEARRLE
EBETNINFAEBHRLZZEEHRE
THLEIBEE RHEZEMHERE
PHREZZ2EBIEEEA  HEHE
RERKERE -

ZEEEER

CAEBRET(RFEARKNBELZ 24
EEXFPEARKMBEEPNE) R OL &S
REEEKRIDSHENE ERL 2L
E BRIZ2%F- BHAX &4
BN BETEHRALLERER
MEZE2EERE EYLTE2LEERE/)
M BEREELREERES - ARRE

TELEER AREALEZESER.
RELERENHABRELRLTEE
EREHE REEERLZE2ZERER
BE BIE(Z2LEREEHIXEER S

EEBAEETHNERNEXE 2
TERBSEEREINLEEESHH
BXZ2EEREHEXEERE2EHR
EMBAEHENKLELEEREHERE
HEENXLE2EEREHIHEXZ 2
EEREHE) RMARBEAEBELEN
2L EEAFRMEARESE) -
HRZE2REBENENEENRAEBEE
ETEHRSMARES D - AKRIEGB
30871-2022( fERIL BmERBFIKERL
E2REIEFT TCERIEXEEBE) - &
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Safety Management Structure of the Company
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General manager

Safety director
oot Y-

Area director

EREE

Be responsible for organising quarterly safety

inspection and hidden hazard investigation of the
Company, the supervision of company-level safety
inspection and the rectification and supervision of
major hidden hazards.
BERRFEREREEBBRFENEM R ATR
LERENER BERLERBNEBEREW -

Implement production safety approaches and
policies, and incorporate production safety into
development strategy and long-term plan.
RELEEENHEBE  BLEEEMALEHE
FREMBERERE o

Be responsible for organising monthly safety
inspection and hidden hazard investigation,
seasonal safety inspection and hidden hazard
investigation, pre-festival safety inspection

and hidden hazard investigation, special safety
inspection and hidden hazard investigation, and
entrust a third party to organise safety inspection
and hidden hazard investigation; Be responsible for
the implementation, follow-up and supervision of
rectification measures for potential safety hazards.
BERRRAELREREEBESE  FHURE
BREEEBHE LR ElEEHE  HRA
ZEREHEBEHERERF=FLEREERBE
FEmER: AET 2B EBRE MR E HER M

B -

Assist in implementing the safety responsibility
system, organise the leading group for safety’s
quarterly meetings, as well as summarise and
deploy safety management work. The production
department organises the formulation of annual
production goals, and arranges the formulation or
revision of operating procedures according to the
actual production situation.

BEELZEMEH  HABREFERE2EE /A
BE BERTNERE2ERI N - £EMEBNTE
FEEETFEER  REBEEERBERABS EX
ERTIRIERAE -

Be responsible for organising routine safety
inspection and hidden hazard investigation, and the
implementing corrective measures within the scope
of his/her duties.
EEHBEBERNMTLZEREEREHENE
B BOUEREEEIE-

organise the formulation of annual production
goals, and arrange the formulation or revision
of operating procedures according to the actual
production situation:

HEHNTFELEETHEER RELEERBRA
Bl ESRERTIRIEMRE

Be responsible for the safety management of
equipment power, devices and industrial buildings
and structures, the preparation of equipment
management systems and operating procedures,
and organisation of trainings to ensure the training
and certification of professional qualifications for
special posts.

HREDN RERTEREREY BEYNLEE
B REBEREEEHERBREMRRE - LALEI
THt RESKIEENEXEENIEIERE -

REBHNIERFERDERA A
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Safety and
environmental
protection
department
IR B

Be responsible for organising departmental

safety inspection and hidden hazard investigation
and preparing and implementing hidden hazard
rectification measures, and organising safety
inspection and hidden hazard investigation,
preparing hidden hazard rectification measures and
supervising the implementation of the rectification
measures for the shifts it takes charge of.
BENFIRZERECEBTHENES BEER
BENRUEZETF  AEMBHEARERESR
BREHENAS BERREENRREZENE
EEBIE-

Be responsible for the safety management of oil

and petrochemical storage facilities, identifying
national and local safety-related laws and
regulations, identifying hazards and investigating
hidden hazards in production safety accidents,
assessing the current status of safety management,
and organising drills for emergency rescue plans.
EEHBRALERRENTEZRETEIE - &
PR i3t 75 2 2 HRERER - FRERIR Y H
RErEEEHREEHS  Ahe2ERRM -4
BEREHESMERER -
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We periodically summarise hidden hazard investigation
work. We carried out hidden hazard rectification for the

RE HEREAHRS

BMTHFAREEFEI(FAE  REH
NEHBEBRONTHERRBEENRT

following problems found during the reporting period:

f

-

e Equipmentis old and
is not maintained well.

DRBELRDRE -

e Due to insufficient
human resources,
some of the
Company's production
facilities cannot be
maintained or updated
in time.
DNEAADERTE B
DEERETRERER
BHREREH ©

We will increase
investment in
manpower and material
resources when
appropriate to reduce
the proportion of
material factors in

potential safety hazards.

~

Ve

e The implementation of
the production safety
responsibility system
needs to be improved.
ZEEEEEHNEE
BHEFRS -

e Many material factors
are caused by people's
weak sense of
responsibility.

REMOVEREERRA
B L ARMERLAY ©

Efforts will be stepped
up to evaluate the

production safety
responsibility system.

~N

-

e The incidence of
potential safety
hazards remains high.
22 BENLAIKESR

,%o

A production safety
management system
will be established and
improved, and
assessment will be
strengthened on safety
responsibility.

ByRERELE

SEBEEMA
AB - PHES
B BURDY)
NEEEZZRE
BRAILEA o

ES% T
RREEEEE
BERTIE -

=

Through HAZOP? analysis report, Dafeng Port identified,
analysed and evaluated in advance the potential hazards

in the production plant from a systematic point of view.
It identified the design, operation and maintenance
procedures of the production plant, and put forward
opinions and suggestions for improvement, so as to
improve the safety and operability of the process of
the plant and provide the basis for making decisions
for basic disaster prevention measures and emergency
plans. In the meantime, we completed the SIL assessment
and determined the safety integrity level of each safety
instrumented function. When determining the SIL® level,
we took into account the risks of casualties, the risks
of environmental damage, and potential economic risks
and reputational risks caused by equipment damage and
shutdown.

No safety accidents occurred during the reporting period.

=

EEEHE A
FIERERE &
FrinE = 28 E
E o

=

REBBBHAZOP DT ME @ LR AW
AEHBEHEEREFEENERET
BRHBER - DOWAFE - BHLEER
ERFARBEMBERFF - AR UCE
EANER URREKETEZEBENR
2EMATRAIELE - A6 E E A S i A
ESERETRERMEE R &
PIER TSI  BETE—EAX2E
RNBENZE2TBUESTR  BESILEFR
THERREETABSGTHAR  REW
ZEEE - RIBEZERESIEFEERKLM
ERNEEEERRMOEBZERR -

WEHAN RELEFHELE -

woow NN

HAZOP stands for hazard and operability analysis

Hazard and Operability (HAZOP) 2 1 /& & B2 7] #2 1 1 5 47
SIL stands for safety integrity level

Z 2 58 B 5 {1 (Safety Integrity Level SIL)
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3.3 Employee Health Protection

86

The Company, devoted to protecting the safety and
health of employees, strictly complies with relevant
laws and regulations, including the Production Safety
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law on the
Prevention and Treatment of Occupational Diseases
of the People’s Republic of China, the Law on the
Protection of Workers' Rights and Interests of the People’s
Republic of China, the Provisions on the Supervision and
Administration of Occupational Health in the Workplace,
and the Regulations on the Labour Protection of Jiangsu
Province. The Company formulated corresponding
systems and procedures according to the characteristics
of its production and operation business, including the
Occupational Health Management System, the Labour
Protection Supplies Management System, and the Safety
Protection Equipment and Facilities Management System,
so as to continuously improve the occupational safety and
health protection system and fully implement the main
responsibility for production safety. During the reporting
period, no work-related injury or death occurred in the
Company.

In accordance with the Management System for
Special Operations, we put forward more management
requirements for special jobs, including clarifying the
application scope, duties and relevant safety requirements
for special operations like temporary electricity usage,
lifting and aloft work, and planning the safety supervision
and management of special operations of the safety and
environmental protection department.
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In accordance with the Occupational Health Management
System, the Company designates the general manager
as the first person-in-charge for the prevention and
control of occupational diseases, and systematically
organises the identification of occupational hazards and
investment in occupational health protection. The safety
and environmental protection department is responsible
for supervising and managing the implementation of
occupational health management, and overseeing and
coordinating the “three simultaneousness” on prevention
and control of occupational hazards. It set the standards
for the distribution of the labour protective supplies
according to the Labour Protection Supplies Management
System to provide appropriate labour protective supplies
for employees, and monitored occupational hazards
and evaluated the status of occupational hazards on
a regular basis. The production department and the
equipment department work together to improve the
operating procedures for each post, and organise regular
occupational health training for staff.

After scientific evaluation of our business process, we
have sorted out the influencing factors that may cause
occupational hazards and the categories of occupational
diseases. We carried out occupational health examination
in stages for employees in related positions and ensured
that each front-line employee received at least one
physical examination every year. We are deeply concerned
about the safety and health of employees, provide medical
support for patients with suspected occupational diseases,
and arrange their post adjustment according to the
corresponding system to avoid secondary injuries. During
the reporting period, there were no cases of occupational
contraindications or suspected occupational diseases in
the Company.

R #HERERKRSE

AARBCBEFEE RN E)EERE -
MAKEEIRERIAE—EEA X
FHABETRECEHBLRBEEER
BERA - ZRFAEEBEEREFLE
EENTIE BEEIHBABEEENA
[ZRBITHE KEGBHHERRE L
HIEIEBIESRBMEREE - RET
RESENSRAR  YHRRERBEE
TREEHRERRBERTRMFE -
B N R R R [R) 5T e LR E AR AR
WHABREEHMETREFLEI -

BHARKRERIEOMEFME - BHAE
MELAEEXBERENFEARR
HEBERER  SHEBEERUNETS
EEFARBEERESR  HY KRBT
BREABFEL —RER - RIVRIIE
EEBTIMRERERBN - X RRUBER
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Hazard factor Detection site

EERE R b B

“Benzene, toluene, xylene”
[ BER ZHX]
“Methyl tert-butyl ether”

Loading platform, 3rd area and 4th area
KB/ =& WE

Loading platform, 3rd area

Loading platform, pump rooms in 1st area, 3rd area and 4th

(AR T E B KHELH =&

“Solvent naphtha” Loading platform, 1st area
& B = ] e

“Physical noise”

()38 R 2 |

area, fire pump room and central control room

K#e —BREF ZERF HERFE HEWHRE $E=E

"Power frequency electric field”
[THEE %] fic & 5=

During the reporting period, all of our 32 front-line
employees underwent occupational health examination.
During the reporting period, the Company organised an
occupational health training session, which elaborated on
the occupational hazards and preventive measures.

We keep a close eye on the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic on the safety and health of employees, and
implement practical measures to effectively ensure normal
production and life. When the pandemic situation was
severe, we resolutely responded to the requirements of
the central and local governments, and encouraged all
employees to get vaccinated. With close attention paid
to the health of employees, we set up a production and
handling shift and a commuting shift, and completed
advance reporting and verification of ID card, health
code, travel code, nucleic acid testing, vaccination,
transportation of hazardous chemicals, in order to ensure
the comprehensive prevention of the risk of COVID-19
spread. During the post-pandemic prevention and control
period, we implemented normalised anti-pandemic
measures, such as daily disinfection and cleaning of the
office area, regular temperature checking of employees,
distribution of protective materials and presentation of
anti-pandemic knowledge, and paid attention to the needs
of employees to ensure the safe operation during the
period.
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3.4 Safety Training

We deeply recognise the outstanding role of safety
training in safety management and bring it into the
normal work of through system improvement and activity
planning. We established internal systems, including
the Safety Training and Education Management System,
the Goals and Requirements for Safety Education and
Training and the Safety and Health Training Programme,
with which we carried out the annual safety education
and training programme in an orderly manner and raised
safety education requirements in six aspects, namely

safety needs, safety awareness, safety knowledge,
safety skills, compliance with rules and disciplines, and
emergency response capability, so as to implement safety
management measures and effectively improve the safety
awareness of all staff. We have set forth safety training

objectives in the annual training programme:

While carrying out safety education, the Company
constantly refines its training objectives. It puts forward
the corresponding assessment requirements according to
employees’ jobs and levels. For instance, new employees
or those transferring jobs need to complete the three-
level safety training and pass the three-level educational
assessment before taking up their posts. It is explicitly
required that safety-related managers shall hold safety

titles or certificates.

3.4
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During the reporting period, we held training activities
such as production safety month, production safety
knowledge contest and safety knowledge lecture. In
view of the Company’s business and different personnel
needs, each unit launches production safety training for
front-line employees on a monthly basis. Training types
and themes vary according to trainees, such as drivers
and shift leaders, with content including safety operating
procedures, safety knowledge of hazardous chemicals,
typical accident analysis, first aid methods, and traffic
safety training. After training, the trainees also need to
pass oral or written examinations.

During the reporting period, we conducted a total of
14 production safety training sessions for front-line
employees, administrators, safety managers and special
operators, with a total of 412 attendances. The assessment
results were included in the performance appraisal at the
end of the year. In order to further motivate employees to
value production safety training, the Company provided
year-end incentives for units and individuals with zero
accidents throughout the year, and imposed fines and
warnings on departments that failed to follow the training
programme.
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BERA BRMHERTLZE2EEA %
PHEENBHRE LTEAABESE
mE - REBEZARNEBRTANAER
R BREMNBAU-—REMLETET X
REAEERI - AHEEMBHERS - 0
ARFETRFIGRRATRIFIEL
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AR ZRBERANFEERER - B
—PHBETIERLZELEER - AAY
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RER - ME R ARRBEIG SRS
FNEVEBFT B & bR A ST KA E TR -

Case: Award-winning Quiz in Production Month Safety

RO RE2LEEARREAERY

During the reporting period, we carried out an
award-winning quiz for many times in the production
safety month under the theme of safety management
knowledge such as rules and regulations, operating
procedures, implementation procedures and
emergency preparedness, fully mobilising employees’
enthusiasm for safety learning, promoting the
establishment of safety development concept, and
contributing to the improvement of production safety
level and the continuous and stable improvement of
production safety situation.

BEAN BAIZAHARRE2EEAAREEES &
BATHREREGE - BRIFRE  ATRABRAREEZD
HELZEZEENR  ROAPETLZE2BBNBEENE
HPHELE2ERED  RELXEEEKFEANRT
EEEWERBERENL °
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Case: Annual Meetings and Trainings of Safety Committee

RO - FERZEIFEZIREI

We always pay attention to production safety
management, hold regular meetings of the safety
committee, and dispatch relevant persons-in-charge to
participate in production safety study on policy guiding
ideology, production management regulations and so
forth and to watch educational warning films, sounding
the alarm and raising awareness of production and
operation safety. At the same time, we release videos
about production safety knowledge and lessons from
accidents in the Enterprise WeChat group, creating a
normal mechanism for safety prevention.

BRI Z S EEERIE Y EHREBHREST
fFeE  AESHRAEA2ELR2AERE  BREK
RIEGRE LEERKIE IBEHRFETRR K
ISEE REX2LEEFERH - RAE  MACEMRE
BoOBRMAMTEZEEND FHIIGEE BREE
Dig TIER AR b o

Sustainable Development Practice: Regular Safety Meeting and Hidden Hazard Investigation

IRERRER R20aRBEFETHE

During the reporting period, the leading group for
safety organised a regular safety meeting every
month, conveyed and implemented the spirit of
various documents and notices issued by the superior
safety department, and arranged production safety
work as required. At the meetings, all departments
summarised their monthly work and discussed the
leftover problems. A total of 12 regular safety meetings
were held throughout the year and meeting minutes
were recorded. After the meetings, relevant personnel
were assigned to conduct monthly self-inspections for
hidden hazards, and rectification and implementation
plans were laid down to eliminate the hidden hazards
discovered.

BERARN 22 EENASAEAEGL2Ne  RkEE
ERLEAZE2HMATENTEXF BN HEXRM
ERRINLZELEETH @R LB ARATIFET
me o LHERMBETAEN  2FARRR2RAZ20
BUWKERLE  ERRABHEBARBETEANR
BEERY  HELNRBERFETBREENR

REBHIER RO AR A A
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The Company regularly conducted safety drills in
accordance with the On-site Emergency Measures to
manage and control safety risks, improve the safety
awareness of all employees, and create a healthy and safe
working environment for employees. The safety drills help
all staff to further master the use of safety equipment
and facilities and improve their familiarity with emergency
plans and emergency handling capabilities, and ensure
that front-line employees can make effective and quick
responses and keep unflappable to minimise the harms in
the event of a production safety accident.

NREAKBCR SRR ERE)NESLS
THRETRZER ERL2AR &
SEEREEH O REINERE %2
MTHERE - BBLTZER =ERABS
NE-—FPEELZERBERBOER @ 12
SHESERNATEEEEIRER
N BEREBRELZEEESEHE - K8
TRMBEMAR  RERE  BRETE -
RAREHBREEHNHBE

Case: Safety Emergency Dirills

RO RE2EIER

During the reporting period, Jiangsu Yancheng

Port Storage Petrochemical Co., Ltd. organised

fire emergency drills, checked the scientificity and
effectiveness of each plan, and improved the self-
rescue ability and safety awareness of all employees
in the case of sudden accidents, so as to minimise the
losses caused by accidents and enhance the overall
emergency response capability and emergency skills of
safety management departments. In order to ensure the
effectiveness of the drills, Port Storage Petrochemical
combined the drills with real cases, simulated the
combustible gas alarm system in the central control
room, and divided a drill into several steps, such

as starting emergency plan, rescuing the wounded,
emergency handling and maintenance, and pollution
treatment. The safety drills were rounded off.

BERA - BREOLCEASEBRRBEDESRR 2R
FEERNMBUNBERL PRS2 BB ITEREN
EHRBZENERENNZ2EE  EMRARER
EEHERNELR REX2EEMMINEBERESR
FERE S E BBt - RERBERMEER - BREALS
BRECEERPIFR  BHTEZAIMABRERSR
BE VYORRMPESER BREE EoEER#E
& PRREEZEBIE  RE2RMKDFEMKY
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CHAPTER FOUR TALENT ATTRACTION

4.1

Employment Compliance
Talents are the cornerstone of the Company's
development. We attach importance to every employee,
actively create a fair working environment and create a
pluralistic and inclusive cultural atmosphere. Upholding
the principle of “placing equal stress on ethics and
competence, prioritising ethics”, we give priority to
selecting positive and law-abiding employees. Meanwhile,
we also rely on the employment doctrine of “adopting
job-based and talent-oriented strategy and maintaining
dynamic balance” to restrain and manage our employees,
and put their abilities to good use.

Employment Equity

The Company strictly abides by the Labour Law of
the People’s Republic of China, Regulations on Labor
Security Supervision, Labour Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China and other labour laws and
regulations. It strictly conducts governance according
to the systems established by the local government,
such as Implementation Rules for Collective Welfare
and Consolation Expenditure for Employees of Jiangsu
Yancheng Port Holding Group Co., Ltd., Administrative
Measures for Employees’ Holidays of Jiangsu Yancheng
Ltd. (Trial), and

Administrative Measures for Selection and Employment of

Port Holding Group Co, Interim
Jiangsu Yancheng Port Holding Group Co., Ltd. Internally,
we have formulated the Measures for the Administration of
Labour and Personnel. In terms of personnel recruitment,
we have comprehensively considered the employment,
promotion, dismissal, training, performance, salary,
equality and diversity of employees, and safeguarded
the legitimate rights and interests of employees through
comprehensive and systematic structure and management

measures.

The Company always pays attention to the legality of
employment and prohibits the use of child labour and
forced labour. We impose severe punishments on the
use of child labour and at the same time hand over child
labourers to their parents or other guardians in their
original place of residence. In order to create a diversified
workplace and a healthy working atmosphere, we equally
treat employees regardless of their race, religion, age,
gender, marital status, disability and political orientation,
and prevent any discrimination, bullying and inequality.

R #HERERKRSE

ENE EBRAL

4.1
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Pay and Benefits

The Company abides by national and regional laws and
regulations, including the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China, adheres to the principle of equal
pay for equal work, and provides reasonable salary
and welfare for employees. We implement rules and
regulations like the Implementation Rules for Collective
Welfare and Consolation Expenditure for Employees
of Jiangsu Yancheng Port Holding Group Co., Ltd. and
the Administrative Measures for Employees’ Holidays of
Jiangsu Yancheng Port Holding Group Co., Ltd. (Trial),
and carry out internal policies such as Measures for the
Administration of Labour and Personnel, Measures for
the Administration of Compensation and Benefits and
the Measures for the Implementation of Performance
Appraisal Management. In addition to the fixed salary,
employees of the Company can also receive other
allowances, commissions and other pays in accordance
with the Measures for the Administration of Compensation
and Benefits. At the same time, we provide a variety of
employee benefits including five social insurances and
one housing provident fund, overtime allowance and
hospitalisation allowance. We also provide employees
with extra paid holiday benefits in addition to statutory
holidays.

In order to enhance employees’ sense of happiness
and help them find their sense of belonging, we have
formulated the Measures for the Administration of
Employee Consolation, and provide employee with
benefits for birthdays, weddings, childbirth, traditional
festivals, etc. At the same time, the general department
organises condolence activities during employees’ injuries
and illness. Moreover, we set up a “Star of the Month”
award to motivate employees. We organise a variety of
employee activities to relieve their fatigue, enhance their
cohesion and keep them energetic.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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4.2 Employee Development and Training

96

The Company pays close attention to the growth
and development of employees and devotes itself to
cultivating excellent talents. We have set up suitable
career development channels for employees in different
positions, and defined the development paths for
employees in different departments and promotion
opportunities for employees at different levels. Multiple
professional training courses are available for employees,
which help employees improve their self-competence and
adapt to technological and social changes to meet their
own development needs.

We satisfy employees’ needs to seek progress through
rich education and training courses, enabling employees
to meet our job requirements. The general management
department of the Company coordinates the training for
employees and is responsible for the formulation and
implementation of the Company’s education and training
programmes, including the following specific work:

Developing training
programmes for the
Company and various
departments

78 22 A Ko & #B P95 H
st

Implementing training

programmes results

EieElEt ENE aEEER

The Company provides employees with diversified
development channels from management, technology
and finance, supplemented by corresponding trainings.
According to the needs of employees, trainings can be
divided into onboarding, job transfer training, on-the-
job training. In the meantime, all types of employees can
receive corresponding skills training according to their
future development plans and the Company’s needs.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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Filing and collecting
training files and
teaching materials
iR R T
S

Evaluating the
training effect
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Managerial staff Technical staff Financial staff
EEEET RTEET MBEET
* Training on labour * Technical training * Training on the latest
regulations, secretarial corresponding  to  each financial report
practical skills and position preparation and
preparation of management + Continuously improving the accounting standards
reports techr'lical skills that a job C BB EREEE R e
* RESEER  WEBEBR MEEUIIEE FTERIEEH
BERREEERESEIN . Training on occupational
A health and safety education
and standardised operating
procedures
+ Communicating new
developments and business
information  about trade
logistics industry to enhance
employees' sensitivity to
changes in industry
information
RS R RS
BRI AR KT
R RERERKE
RE LR ERESE
C EEEERBEYRERNH
BRERMARGEE  R#ABT
B &8 1T 5 R E LA B R
=
The Company organises unified training activities for new HWEHET NAlg —HETHFHFELE
hires. The training activities are about the Company's basic P o BYIANBBE : X/ KR
information and cultural education, including corporate SCNRIERERESRREMR - TERRE A
culture, business philosophy, the Company’s development TR HRE  SEPINThEE N EKEHE -
history and current status, industry status, the Company'’s WEHE BITAEGEATELREZE
organisational structure, functions and business scope IR XIERBRBE BABIHIERS
of each department, rules and regulations, and code of MATIHAERE - B —AHFELE
conduct for employees, allowing employees to further TEZ EEKEABRNFE T HiE
familiarise with job duties and the Company. We conduct F o

unified assessment for new hires, and only those who pass
the assessment can become regular full-time employees.
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We designed and implemented the Training Evaluation
Form to continuously absorb the suggestions of trainees
from all sides, in order to continuously improve our training
level and improve employees more effectively. The training
results will be evaluated from classrooms, content, forms,
effects and other aspects for continuous improvement.
We also encourage employees to participate in external
training to acquire new skills. Subject to the approval
of the manager and the human resources department,
employees who apply for any effective external study will
be funded and supported.

Furthermore, all directors and senior management of
the Company have received training on GEM Listing
Rules of the Stock Exchange and continuing professional
development during the year, striving to respond to market
changes and perform their duties from a more professional
perspective.

During the reporting period, we provided training courses
for 80 employees, with a total of 150 training hours.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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CHAPTER FIVE WIN-WIN COOPERATION

5.1

Supply Chain Management

We uphold the principle of fairness and impartiality in
supplier management and implement a strict supplier
management mechanism. In order to achieve sustainable
supply chain management, we strictly abide by relevant
laws and regulations, including the Company Law of the
People’s Republic of China and the Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China, to standardise our supplier
management. We only have the authority to express
our needs in daily procurement, which is subject to the
approval of the superior company. It is to ensure the safety
and stability of the whole industry chain of the Company.

We have defined the responsibilities and authorities of
departments in supplier management in the Measures
for the Administration of Procurement. The procurement
and tender management committee established by the
Company is responsible for supervising procurement
projects, directing procurement implementation and
procurement management, overseeing the performance
of bid-winning suppliers and making centralised decisions
on the projects that the Company needs to attract

investment.

Strict requirements have been put forward for selection
of suppliers. We require suppliers to provide business
licenses, fire safety inspection contracts and other
corresponding qualifications to ensure that their
operations are in compliance with the applicable labour
law, environmental law and other laws and regulations. At
the same time, the products provided by suppliers have
to comply with relevant standards on product quality and

environment.

R #HERERKRSE
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The Company assesses its suppliers’ competence from the
following four perspectives:

Product quality assessment

ERERATIE

based on the test results

KEERE
BHEKF

RAEEMIEIRAE - BE

ZIN/N
—

;E -

A R R BE 1 TTIA T K07 EEYRY

To engage a third-party testing agency to test product quality based on the product
indicators agreed in the contracts between the parties and evaluate the quality level

F=RARBRAEREE  URAERTE

and business registration, etc.

Delivery competence
assessment

RERENFTE

delivery

REFE Wi IEE

RIBA RIERAIR —&szii/ﬁ?f'ix

To learn about the company profile from various channels, such as telephone, Internet

According to the terms of the contracts, the upstream companies are generally required
to pay after delivery while the downstream companies are required to pay before

ERBEBEREFENER
BRAR - THANRERE

Cooperation assessment

EIERRTE
EEE

To undertake assessment from three angles: whether customers carry out the contracts
on schedule; whether customers who apply for postponement due to exceptional cases
have carried out their contracts during extension; the fact that customers have not
carried out the contracts for more than three months

BREZFPRAEHEYN AERENFBCHALETEHAELY  B=EAREN =25

Product price assessment

EmERTE

delivery and payment, etc.

To undertake assessment according to market prices, product indicators, methods of

RIETISERE  EmER  RENFOAFFE

Supplier Safety and Environmental Management

In order to realise sustainable development, we put
forward strict requirements for suppliers who provide
products and services for us, in order to improve their
performance and management level in environment
and safety, and further promote the common positive
development of the industry chain. We have formulated
the Contractor Safety and Environmental Management
System, and require any cooperative suppliers to sign the
Safety and Environmental Agreement prior to cooperation.
We hope that suppliers can improve their environmental
management ability, and give priority to cooperation
to suppliers with outstanding performance. In regard
to suppliers who have established long-term and stable
cooperative relationships with us, we provide them with
regular environment, health and safety (EHS) training on
safety and environmental protection related laws and
regulations, special operating procedures, hazardous
chemicals management standards, etc. We need to ensure
that suppliers who provide us with key services have
high-quality products and services, and also have high
sustainability.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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5.2 Customer Services

Communication with Customers

Our customers are mainly manufacturers and traders. The
Company's products, services and management level is
a necessary prerequisite for customers to trust us. It is
our unremitting pursuit to provide customers with better
quality products and more comprehensive services. We
actively communicate with our customers and constantly
seek more efficient communication methods to get timely
feedback from customers. Meanwhile, we actively analyse
customer feedback and implement corrective measures
accordingly.

The Company has an effective customer complaint
system in place, providing customers with smooth service
complaint channels such as telephone, email, fax and
address. After receiving the complaint from a customer,
we will identify the responsible department, clarify the
reasons for the complaint and follow up the complaint
handling in a timely manner, so as to make a satisfactory
response to customers. If a customer’s loss was caused
by our fault, we will give the customer reasonable
compensation to make up for the loss of the customer.

Customer Privacy

We are well aware of the importance of customer privacy
and promise to respect and protect customer privacy
and personal information security. In daily work, we
require employees not to violate laws and regulations,
industry discipline norms and regulations on customer
privacy protection of their respective departments.
Employees shall not disclose customer data and
transaction information to anyone, and shall not inquire
other colleagues about customer personal information
and transaction information out of curiosity or for other
purposes.

R #HERERKRSE
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5.3 Community Investment

102

We deeply recognise the importance of growing and
making progress together with the community. We believe
that our sustainable development cannot be achieved
without the support of the masses. At the same time,
we continuously scale up our business through our own

53 HEKRA

BPRZ AR ELREKE - HFEESH
EEN - BARREENAFBELERE
TRERNXE RN ZfALEEES
BR - THBEREBRE BBFENOK
RREWTRELZREHE MB YA

MREREE=R  /REMNERBGOE

tax revenue to the local government, thereby ensuring BA e

development, bringing more job opportunities and

the well-being of people and contributing to the local
development.

The Company organised charity activities including

RE - RAREZ AR REBEEER
voluntary blood donation, purchase of agricultural and

m REERFZFENMERAERSE
DAmEE  EERMBREREBEITHEE
County, and actively fulfilled social responsibilities in £ o

sideline products in poverty-stricken areas such as Yijun
various communities.

Case: Volunteer Service Activity Themed on “Warm Harbour, Realising Microdreams”
RE:[EmEE BEMORIISEREES

In response to the national call for Learn from Lei Feng Day, the Company actively organised staff activities,
set up volunteer groups and carried out a volunteer service activity themed on “Warming the Port, Realising
Microdreams”.
ATE2ERREEFEBINRE  AaBGAKE T EY  AESEE/E BHEIMNBESES BEIHL
FElIER R EE o

Since the outbreak of COVID-19, members of Dafeng Port's anti-pandemic shift have long devoted
themselves to the front-line isolation around the wharf, far away from their families. The Company
immediately sent volunteer groups to go everywhere to fulfill the wishes of anti-pandemic workers, in order
to reassure employees and solve their difficulties.

BREAKR REEHREMTAERARSNBEE-—RBETE ERRE SLWETIRE - BRD
RABRHBEMBE  AAF-—HHEAMESHEE)ASBSETKHRAERE -
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE H#ERERE

Energy consumption*

BEFOR#E*

Total energy consumption Kilowatt hours 284,564.20  311,384.13
BERERES TR B

Energy consumption intensity kWh/HK$'000 revenue 0.31 00
RRHERE TRE /T Tk

Direct (Scope 1) energy consumption* Kilowatt hours 43,470.20 42,0443
ER (8RB TR

Indirect (Scope 2) energy consumption Kilowatt hours 241,094.00  269,340.00
il 4% (8505 —) 82 R OH 78 TR

Petrol Litre 2,660 4,458
o o

Diesel Litre 2,000 221
ey #

Electricity Kilowatt hours 241,094 269,340
B TEH

Greenhouse gas emissions*

BE RN

Total greenhouse gas emissions kg CO, eq 176,883.50 164,169.92
BEREBRIN TrR-AtHEE

Greenhouse gas emissions intensity kg CO,eq/HK$'000 revenue 0.19 00
BEREBHREE FTrR-GLHERE /THELTRS

Direct (Scope 1) greenhouse gas emissions® kg CO, eq 11,266.51 10,565.32
ER@EE)REREHENES TrR-AtHREE

Indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions® kg CO, eq 165,616.99  153,604.60
& (8K )R EREBHRE TrR-_atHREE

Water consumption and wastewater discharge*

FKBEBEKERE

Water consumption for production and operation Tonne 23,100 17,200
EEEZERK i

Intensity of water consumption for production and operation Tonne/HK$ million revenue 2543 00
EEEERKEE W/ BEETRES

Data coverage include: Port Storage Petrochemical, Port Shipping International, Qianhai Mingtian, the Company, & ¥l 172 /8 % & & IR
‘A A] (Shenzhen Fanhai Holdings Company*, “Shenzhen Fanhai”) and Zhuhai Hengfeng Heshun Petrochemical Co., Ltd.

BB OERE: BREAL EMBEE  AEBEX  ARA  RYTZEERERATDCRINZED URKESELMEALCERA
Al e

Direct (Scope 1) energy consumption is calculated according to the General Rules for Calculation of the Comprehensive Energy
Consumption (GB/T 2589-2020) published by the State Administration for Market Regulation and the Standardization Administration of
China.

BEER@EE DERERABEEZTSEEEEARNBERBERELCERZE G T B NGRA LT E B A)(GB/T 2589-2020) #{THH -

Direct (Scope 1) greenhouse gas emissions are calculated according to the 2019 Refinement to the 2006 IPCC Guidelines for National
Greenhouse Gas Inventories published by the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC).

BEE@E DAZTABENERBEBRNHRAREEZE(LZEMZEE (PCC) FIEMPCC 20065 Bl Z0R = 748 )5 B 18 1201918 7] hin) #1712
o

Indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions are calculated according to the national grid average emission factors in the Notice on
the Management of Greenhouse Gas Emission Reports of Enterprises in Power Generation Industry from 2023 to 2025 released by the
Ministry of Ecology and Environment.

HE@EED)AEREFRNERBELREDIEMOCEAR M 2023 2025F R ETECERAETREFRBEEREAEIENRA)FR
NEEERTHRREFETRE -
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R HERERRSE

Office domestic water consumption

N PN

Office domestic water consumption intensity

MOEFERKEE
Total wastewater discharge

BRI B E

Wastewater discharge intensity
BEKEE R E

Waste*

BEEM*

Hazardous waste

AERERED

Office domestic waste
WREFERR

Office domestic waste intensity
MOEBNREETE

Office paper consumption
HEN i

Office paper consumption intensity
PARREERE
Employment status*

ERE R

Total number of employees
BI@EH

Employment status by gender
BHREDEREER
Male

SHET

Female

THET

Employment status by age
BRERISERER
Employees aged under 30
0N TET

Employees aged 30 to 50
30-50m & T

Employees aged over 50
50 A LBT
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Tonne
(7

Tonne/HK$ million revenue
W B &S AT

Tonne

WA

Tonne/HK$ million revenue

W/ ABET RS

Tonne

WA

Tonne

i
Tonne/HK$ million revenue
W B EA TS
10,000 sheets
B8R

10,000 sheets/HK$ million revenue
BR/EEB s

Person

A

Person

A

Person

A

Person

A

Person

A

Person

A

3,600

3.96

4,694

5.17

47.50

0.05

25.50

0.028

122

84

38

29

63

30

2,367

00

2,387

00

55

00

23

00

95

73

22

17

54

2%
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Employment status by geographical region

RHEEDEREER

Mainland China Person 106 92

B A B A

Hong Kong, Macao and Taiwan Person 16 3

BRA A

Overseas Person - -

8o A

Breakdown of employment by employment type

REBERESIERER

Full time Person 122 95

28 A

Part time Person = =

B A

Employee turnover*

BIRKER*

Total number of employees who left Person 23 27

FEb N A

Total turnover rate % 18.8 28.4
1R b &

Number of employees who left by gender

EHREIEIRAAY

Male Person 16 16

EMET A

Female Person 7 il

THET A

Employee turnover rate by gender

BERESEIRALE

Male % 18.4 219
FHET

Female % 19.7 50.0
THET

Number of employees who left by age

REREPEIREAAE

Employees aged under 30 Person 8 9

30U TET A

Employees aged 30 to 50 Person 14 12

30-505% B L A

Employees aged over 50 Person 1 6

505 A EET A

Employee turnover rate by age

RFEREPEIRAL R

Employees aged under 30 % 254 529
30U TET

Employees aged 30 to 50 % 22.8 22.2
30-505% B T

Employees aged over 50 % 34 25
50N EET
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Number of employees who left by geographical region

RHBEHIEIREAR

Employees in Mainland China Person 23 27
FEAREET A

Employees in Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan Person - -
BREEET A

Foreign employees Person - -
SNEET A

Employee turnover rate by geographical region

RWBEABEITRAL =X

Employees in Mainland China % 20.3 29.3
MEREST

Employees in Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan % = =
BREEET

Foreign employees % - -
BIET

Health and Safety*

REEZ 2

Number of work-related deaths Person - -
IRTAH A

Work-related death rate % = =
EITX®

Lost days due to work injury Day 32 -
AIGEAIFERY PN

Development and Training*

BRRE

Total number of employees trained Person 77 80
BRIETAH A

Number of employees trained by gender

BUHREINZIETAY

Male Person 62 63
EMET A
Female Person 15 17
TMHET A

1 O 6 Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
Annual Report 2022
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Number of employees trained by rank

ZRAEINZIEIASR

Management (department manager and above) Person 16 20
EBEHEMAEERAL) A
Grass-roots employees (below department manager) Person 61 60
EEBT(RFILEAT) A
Percentage of total employees trained % 63.1 84.2

BEINB TR

Percentage of employees trained by gender

BUHREINZIETL

Male % 73.8 86.3
FHET
Female % 395 77.3
THET

Percentage of employees trained by rank

ERABINZIETL

Management (department manager and above) % 43.2 69
EREEHMAEERAL)
Basic level employees (below the department manager) % 71.8 90.9

EERT(MMEENT)

Total training hours completed by gender

BRUBEINEIZIARR

Male employees (except safety training) Hour 280 150
FUHBET (BT 2HIN N
Female employees (except safety training) Hour 280 150
ZHE BT (B 2EI5N) N

Average training hours completed by gender

BURBINEIZITHRR

Male employees (except safety training) Hour 33 2.1
FUHBT(BRE2HINMN N
Female employees (except safety training) Hour 74 6.8
ZH BT (B2 &5 N

Total training hours completed by rank

ERABMINEIZIARR

Management (department manager and above) (except safety training) Hour 280 150

EREMPALERA L) (BT 2B N

Grass-roots employees (below department manager) (except safety Hour 280 150
training) N

AEEST(HPIEEUT)(FrZ 2HIN)

Average training hours completed by rank

ERABINEIZIFHIRR

Management (department manager and above) (except safety training) Hour 7.6 5.2

EHEEEMERERU L) (BRR2EIN N

Grass-roots employees (department managers and below) (except safety Hour 33 23
training) N

EEST(RFSERAT)(BrR 25N
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Supply Chain Management*

HEEEE-

Total number of suppliers Supplier 30 27

HEEAEH f&

Number of suppliers by geographical region

ZHEHINEEERE

Mainland China Supplier 30 27

B K BE 1@

Outside Mainland China Supplier = =

B K BE DA St [ (]

Anti-corruption*

RES*

Concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against Supplier - -
employees during the reporting period Case ]

MERNEESREITEENETHFAEN

Community Investment*

HERE*

Number of volunteers Person 3 -
EEELEAY A

Hours of volunteer services Hour 12 =
558 AR 7% R & N

1 08 Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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RE #HEREARE

HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX Eﬁ;‘?ﬁﬁé(l RIE - HERERBMERESD
BES

A. Environmental

\y
/]

A RE
Aspect Al: Emissions
BEA: BERY
General Disclosure
—RIRE
ALl The types of emissions and respective emissions data Sustainable Development
HER P 18 28 N AR B B R BUR Performance
AREBEERRR
Al1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas Sustainable Development
emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit  Performance
of production volume, per facility) AFEERRER
BEE@EEHRBERREE D) AERBAHERE (UG E) R (10
BRBEWMUNEESEN  SERMH)
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, Sustainable Development
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility) Performance
Fﬁ?i*ﬁg}%ﬁ%%@\i(u B E)R(WER)ZE(MAEEEN - § AIFEEREAR
AR EETE)
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Sustainable development
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility) performance
EAREEREYESE UBHE) R(MERZE(MNESSMN & AIHERRRE
R E)
A1.5 Emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them Low-carbon Development —
Fral R EE R R AEIE LB EMERIMAN TR Emission Reduction
A% 3 ' - R HE W
Al6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, Low-carbon Development —
and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to  Emission Reduction
achieve them RixER - BAOBEN
REAERBEEEZEYNIE WARITZOHREERERRETEL
B iR PSR ER 9 25 BB
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R HERERRSE

Indicators Details

BE& 3

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EBEA2: BRER

General Disclosure

—REE

A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas
or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility)

RERES>WEER SJEELRWNE  fRIvn)@RE UTAET
ERAHEIMNEE(MUSESEN  BERMAHE)

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility)

REXKENTZEWNESESEN  BERETH)

A2.3 Energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them

PRl UMBERERBmBER R ERNELBBEMERN TR

A2.4 Whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,

water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them
SKEVERKR LA BERMEE - ARFFEIZHAKSZEER AED
ELEBEMERDA TR
Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and,

applicable, with reference to per unit produced

HRBABEMHANEEUHAZE R(MER BLEESBUGE

A2.5 if

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BEHAI:RERXRER

General Disclosure

—REE

A3.1 The significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural

resources and the actions taken to manage them

EGEBHRERRAERNEAFZERERNEERABTENTH

Aspect A4: Climate Change
BEHAL: RIRE 1L

General Disclosure

—REE

A4 The significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and those

which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them

ERMAESHETAELERENEARBKHABEE  REYHTH

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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Report Content Index
BERBRS

Use of Resources

BIREM

Sustainable development
performance

AREZERRR

Sustainable development
performance

AREERERR

Low-carbon Development —
Resource Conservation

EHmER - HHNER

Low-carbon Development —
Resource Conservation

EHER - HHNER

Not applicable: The
Company's business does
not involve the use of
packaging materials

NER  RRRMEB TR
BEMEEE R

Low-carbon Development —
Emission Reduction

BB RE - B AR

Emission reduction

B AR HF K

Low-carbon Development —
Emission Reduction

AR R - B HE R
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RE #HEREARE

Aspect B1: Employment
EEB: &R

General Disclosure Compliance with

— MR E employment management

EHRERER

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full-or part- Talent Attraction —
time), age group and geographical region Employment Compliance
RS EEEAR (B RE)  Ficdn KR EI DR E L2 Sustainable Development
Performance
EREAT -ERER
AREERERR

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region Talent Attraction —
ZMR - FRANRMESZ SO EESRKLL X Employment Compliance
Sustainable Development
Performance
BERAL -EHER
AFEERRE

General Disclosure Safe operations management
— R RREEERE

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past Production Safety —
three years including the reporting year Employee Health
BEZFBRERFR)BFRAITHMAR KL X Protection
Sustainable Development
Performance
Zr4EE-BIRERE
ARHBEEREAR

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury Production Safety —
HIBELATHERH Employee Health
Protection
Sustainable Development
Performance
TEHEE-BIRRERE
ARBERERR

B2.3 Occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how they are Safety and health protection
implemented and monitored ZERREERE
R B AR 2R AREERTRERT A

REBHNIEREBRABERAA 111
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R HERERRSE

Indicators Details

BEE B3

Aspect B3: Development and Training
BEB3: #E REI

General Disclosure
—REE
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category (e.g. senior management, middle management)
hz|$%'J&4E?=&E?:|J(ZZE%Z&EEJ" PREEESR)EINKIIEER
pald

B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and
employee category

BERNNREEERE D  BREBTKI I FIIHEH

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
fEEB4: 5T %A

General Disclosure

—RIE
B4.1 Measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced
labour
B REEANEEARRET NARHISET
B4.2 Steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered

EEHBERBAEHERARRITENARRDNZ R

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
EEBS: ftEHEER

General Disclosure

—RIRE

B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region
rimREASNHEEEHHE

B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and how they
are implemented and monitored

HAEEERHERNED mERTERENNHEERHE Uk
EBAEAHNMITRERAA

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social
risks along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored

MR BEEBN P EESERSORRENESARNED - LAKRHEREHR
TRERFE
B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable

products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored

MAEREHEAREESARREMMREOER  UREBHT
MERTIA
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Report Content Index
BERBTRG

Sustainable development
performance

AREZERRR

Talent Attraction — Employee
Development and Training

Sustainable Development
Performance

ERAT -ERER

ARFEERRR

Talent Attraction —
Employment Compliance

ERAT -ERER

Talent Attraction —
Employment Compliance

ERAT -ERER

Supplier management

HEREE

Sustainable development
performance

AFERERRSE

Win-Win Cooperation —
Supplier Management

}%%/\Egﬂ. - {\E‘Eﬁ:ﬁﬁiﬁ

Win-Win Cooperation —
Supplier Management
?%?/\HER - { \@%EEE

Win-Win Cooperation —
Supplier Management

?%%E/\Hﬁﬂ ﬁi\ﬁgﬁ:}ﬁﬁiﬁ
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Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
EEBs:EmEME

General Disclosure

— 8 5
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for Not applicable: The
safety and health reasons Company's business does
PESEEXEmABTRLZ>EREREAMADNKNE D not involve product recalls
TEA ARRNEB IR
E [ W
B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how Win-Win Cooperation —
they are dealt with Customer Services
EEMNERERENRFHRENREL T X BFHAE - EPRB
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting Not applicable: The
intellectual property rights Company's business does
B E RRE MBS ERESBNIED not involve intellectual
property rights
TEA : ARRHER T R
o
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures Not applicable: Our business
HiEERTABEREREWEF does not involve quality
verification and product
recall
TER : KRR RGN R
EEREREMmAHE
B6.5 Consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are Win-Win Cooperation —
implemented and monitored Customer Services
HEEHBRERLBRE  ARBERATRERF X BFHAE - EFPRB

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
E@EB7: R&T

General Disclosure Compliance with laws and
— R E regulations
FEAR
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought Lean Governance —
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and Compliance Management
the outcomes of the cases BanEs-aHERE
RERMAHBETAXKHEEREIEEENE THFRRENHER
AL EES
B7.2 Preventive measures and whistleblowing procedures, and how they are Lean Governance —
implemented and monitored Compliance Management
refm Mk BHmET  URBERTRERT X BEER-Aa/RE
B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff Lean Governance —
HAMEEREIRENRESEI - Compliance Management

BaER-AaRER
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Aspect B8: Community Investment

EEBS: HERE

General Disclosure

— M=
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, Win-Win Cooperation —
labour needs, health, culture, sport) Community Investment
EIrEMER(MHYE BEFH SLBIHFR -BEFE Xt BB BFHAR -HERA
B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area Win-Win Cooperation —
EEIEREMABAER(NOEEHEFHE) Community Investment
Sustainable development
performance
BFHAR-HREA
ARFEERRE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

mazars

To the shareholders of
Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set
out on pages 123 to 243, which comprise the consolidated
December 2022,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,

statement of financial position as at 31
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022 and of its financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

R T

42nd Floor, Central Plaza

18 Harbour Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong
EBEBEEBISHPIRES42E
Tel E|3E : +852 2909 5555

Fax 8K : +852 2810 0032
info@mazars.hk

www.mazars.hk

H
REENMENKROGERLA
(RESHESTME L2 HRRE) KRR

=R

EECDERENFEI123E 2438 KLY BMIBER &
BHERAR (AR REMNBAR (KEIE
SEZEBEMERE  HPEER-Z2==
+Z A=+ —HBZHGEAUBRARAREEZ
ALFEZHRALHEKRER SAESEHE
MGABRERER  UNBAMBHERMFE
BRIZHBEEHRE -

EERE BAVERRERERESFA
S(ERETMAG) Mo BB BHiRkEE
Al((BERAMEREEMN DEEMAFHRE B
EER T _F+_A=+—B2ZHERR
UWEHEZBEFEZVBRBAMRESRE -
WEBEBRARENZEERTEZRRE -

RRE®
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EEZAETEESZHRERMZBEN T &R
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hrHEMERERET EEHE BEME
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
BYZHMBE

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to the section in

note 2 to the consolidated financial statements concerning the

“Going concern basis”

adoption of the going concern basis on which the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared. The Group incurred
loss of HK$64,241,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022
and, as at that date, the Group had net current liabilities and net
liabilities of approximately HK$34,600,000 and HK$501,793,000
respectively. These conditions, along with other matters as set
forth in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, indicate
that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and, therefore that it may be unable to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. The
directors, having considered the measures being taken by the
Group as disclosed in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, are of the opinion that the Group would be able
to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the directors have
prepared the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis. The consolidated financial statements do not
include any adjustments that would result from a failure of
achieving the measures. We consider appropriate disclosures
have been made in this respect. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
In addition to the matter described in the
"Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern”

on these matters.
section, we
have determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BREETER

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

W* BERREZHE

Refer to notes 4 and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements

BREE I BEIREN iF4R15

The property, plant and equipment with carrying
amounts at 31 December 2022 in aggregate of
HK$122,678,000 as disclosed 15 to the
consolidated financial

in note

impairment in accordance with Hong Kong Accounting
Standard 36 “Impairment of Assets” and a reversal of
impairment loss on property, plant and equipment of
HK$7,334,000 is recognised for the year then ended.
FEMBHRERMESMEEDE BEARBR T
“HFE+ A=t -BZEREEAKB122,678000/E TE
RIBFBF B G ERNEI6HE ERME N ETRERNH
TREBEEZEIEFERIVE BELRXEREREE
#[617,334,0007 7T °

The Group engaged an independent professional
valuer to assess the recoverable amounts of the cash-
generating units (“CGUs"), which involved fair value
calculations.
EEBEZEBVEEGEMTIEReELAEMN(REE
EENDHATREERE HP PR A FERE -

The impairment test of property, plant and equipment
required significant judgement and estimations and the
determination of the level at which impairment should
be tested. Given the significance of the amount and
judgement involved, the impairment assessment is
considered as a key audit matter.

ME BEARBZRENATEZERHE MEER
BErTRETREIAZER ERFRERSE LA
B - RME AR S BRREFE -

statements were tested for —

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZEMEE

RREETEEE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
REFTTEEBERENEEZLE

Our procedures, among others, included:

EENEFBRENRR:

Assessing the appropriateness of valuation
methodology in estimating the recoverable
amounts of those assets;

ARG ZFEEZAI RO BRER 2HE
HERBRE:
Assessing the competence, objectivity,
capabilities and results of the work of the
independent professional valuer that was
appointed by the management to assist
management in determining the recoverable
amount of relevant CGUs;

FEEEEMZEBLEXRMEMZER  BE
B W RIEERUABDHEEEETAERS
ELEBM A ROEER:

Challenging the independent professional valuer
the methodologies and judgements used in
valuing the recoverable amount of CGUs;
FBZEXRHEMRGEERSEESM 27 ER
SRR R H R E 5

Engaging auditor’'s expert to assist us in
assessing the reasonableness of assumptions
and judgements used by management and the
independent external valuer; and
ZEZBMER B E SN EEEE BTN
HEMBRLRHGMAREEE &
Assessing the competence, objectivity,
capabilities and results of the work of the
auditor’s expert.

FEZBMER2ER TEE ORI HES
£

LEMENBEROERDT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
BYZHMBE

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BEETER

Impairment of trade receivables
BZEWEZ 0 E

Refer to notes 4, 21 and 32(a) to the consolidated
financial statements

BEGEHEIREN T4 21K32(a)

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables
amounted to HK$416,066,000 as at 31 December 2022
(net of loss allowance of HK$3,514,000).
RZTE-_ZF+-A=+—H X BEEZZEKRKE
Z BRTEE /3416,066,0007% TT (45 40 kR &5 18 # 183,514,000
) °

Loss allowances for trade receivables are based on
management’s estimate of the lifetime expected credit
losses to be incurred, which is estimated by taking into
account the credit loss experience, ageing of overdue
trade receivables, customers’ repayment history and
customers’ financial position and an assessment of both
the current and forecast general economic conditions,
all of which involve a significant degree of management
judgement. Given the significance of the amount and
judgement involved, the impairment assessment is
considered as a key audit matter.
BORKFBEZERBRBOIUNEBEBHEESX 22
BHEEFRE EGRERE  2HRAGEEFRE K
ZREEERLR BHESERUFTEREK TFPE
TS 8% N B P 2 BE R IR 5 BA K ¥ B AT R TEDRI B B8 O
MR A RRIEL G P EREEN S RERESE
RN - ERFRERNCERALE - BEFHRER
—FERAREAEE -
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RRETEEE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
REFTTEEBRENESEZLE

Our procedures, among others, included:

EENEFEEETER:

Discussing with the management the Group’s
credit control policy and credit terms granted to
the customers;

HEREN® BXEzZEERBERRAEP
BRHZzEES:

Evaluating the management’s loss allowance

assessment of trade receivables, including
reviewing the ageing information, past repayment
patterns and the information of future economic
condition;
AZEREHEZREFEBERREZFGE B
REMHRKRER - BEERT A RARKLEMRR
AR

Assessing the critical judgements made by the
management regarding the factors considered
during the loss allowance assessment; and
FEEEER T EEEREERLMEREREDY
2 EBRHAM: R

Inspecting subsequent cash receipts from
customers relating to those balances as at 31
December 2022, on a sample basis.

MERER T _F+_A=tBZ2%FHE
HRERBER 2 EPIREHIE -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information in
the 2022 annual report of the Company but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report

that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.

R T

ERAESFARAMENAT - HWEHE
B BRR T _FHRAEEHN  ETERE
REMBRERESZZEMBRE °

EEHRAMBREAREZCERY TRERM
BR - BENTERERECAAZRES
Eﬁ o]

J%ﬁﬁﬁé%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁzgﬁiﬁﬁé'

EHEHNEEMER  UHEHARBRPEEH
MEHNESHEAMBRERIETENETLIE
FIESERZABRERTHEMFBR  XkE
EMmFAEBERNEREL - WESZERA
ETTEMESHEMERNEE RERRL 2 &
W AEEAEREEABRL -t TEUE
HEHRZEH o

yag=d

& B e M MR AR
BfE

=
pd

iy [

E”T%%Z%%@FE%QH%“A%WZ
BEEMBHREENRRAEH 2 KR EERK
HEBMAFZHEEMBRE &%fﬁmﬁ
REGEMBRRAVEZ ABEE - UL
EBMBHREATFEARKFRERMER 2 E
K8 RR R ©

=5 &

ERBEEMBHREAK EFAEFM &
BisEREZRN YEBRBRATRERS
BREBBEZEE UREAKBERLERS
Ef - BFEFHEENH EEEBRAUFLE
BB BEMBERERTR -

AREEEEE ESEEZUBERZER -

LEMENBEROERDT

2022 F3R 1 19



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
BYZHMBE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
BYZHMBE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law and
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 23 March 2023

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is:

So Chun Wai

Practising Certificate number: P07513
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REETEWESER

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—ZFE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2022 2021
—_E__F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Revenue Uy & 6 795,967 908,411
Cost of revenue W 25 B AR (781,147) (901,216)
Gross profit EH 14,820 7,195
Other income H A A 7 955 8,577
Administrative expenses TR X (41,900) (36,829)
Finance costs A& A 8 (39,616) (36,938)
Reversal of impairment loss M- BELZBRE
(Impairment loss) on property, BEERCAEEE)
plant and equipment, net FE 15 7,334 (12,676)
Impairment of goodwill B R E 16 (956) -
Provision for inventories FEEE (4,799) -
Loss before taxation BB AT B 1B 9 (64,162) (70,671)
Taxation I8 i (79) (67)
Loss for the year FREE (64,241) (70,738)
Other comprehensive income Hit 2 EB A
Items that are reclassified 7 E B 5 3 Al g iR
or may be reclassified to TEAHEEN SHE
profit or loss in subsequent BmZHE -
periods:
Exchange difference arising BREBINEBEE
from translation of foreign ZE N ERE
operations 2,795 12,935
2,795 12,935
Total comprehensive loss for the FRZHEEHIEHE
year (61,446) (57,803)
Loss attributable to: UTATEEEE:
Owners of the Company ViN/NCIE =N (61,967) (73,472)
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR 5 (2,274) 2,734
(64,241) (70,738)
REEBNERERBERAR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEEWESER

Year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—ZFE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2022 2021
—E-CF T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Total comprehensive loss UTATEEZEEE
attributable to: W
Owners of the Company ViN/NCIEZ =N (56,506) (61,497)
Non-controlling interests JE ¥ % == (4,940) 3,694
(61,446) (57,803)
Loss per share attributable to  AATEZIFTEAEML
equity holders of the Company BRE1E
Basic and diluted HEAN#E (4.81) HK cents  (5.70) HK cents
13 (4.81) %L (5.70) A L
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR R

At 31 December 2022 RAZZE-_—F+_-_A=+—H

2022 2021
—_E__F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#& T F& T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- WMEREE 15 122,678 129,546
Goodwill EES 16 340 1,296
Interest in an associate R—HEBE AR 2R 17 — —
Right-of-use assets FREEE 18 38,873 43,167
Prepayments in relation to HE BEAREREZ
property, plant and equipment ICENE O 19 4,993 5,296
166,884 179,305
Current assets REBEE
Inventories ﬁm 20 977 9,760
Trade and other receivables B 5 K EAth fE Uy FE 21 573,585 210,656
Bank balances and cash ﬁETTmnﬁﬁ?&fﬁﬁ 22 17,863 25,493
592,425 245,909
Current liabilities REBaE
Trade and other payables B 5 K E At fE A 8 23 592,240 379,128
Current portion of bank and other R17 & Eth & & 2~ BN Hi &f
borrowings o 24 606 23,287
Amount due to an associate S — BB S R E 2 5KIE 23(e) 34,179 —
627,025 402,415
Net current liabilities FEREBEME (34,600) (156,506)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABERE 132,284 22,799
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Amount due to an associate JE 15— B 2 ’D\EZTAIE 23(e) = 37,259
Amount due to a connected EA—RBEEARZ R
company 23(c) 7,900 —
Non-current portion of bank and R1T N HAifg & 2 FJERNHA
other borrowings i 24 624,700 424,290
Deferred tax liabilities BEEBIEEE 25 1,477 1,597
634,077 463,146
NET LIABILITIES FEE (501,793) (440,347)
REBHNIEREBRABERAA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B BRI R

At 31 December 2022 RAZZE-_—F+—-_A=+—H

2022 2021
—_E__F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#& T F& T
Capital and reserves EAXRRFE

Share capital A% A 26 12,880 12,880
Reserves i (536,370) (479,864)

Total equity attributable to equity AR A EmFA A KL
holders of the Company R (523,490) (466,984)
Non-controlling interests JE ¥ A% R = 14 21,697 26,637
TOTAL DEFICITS B AL 45 (501,793) (440,347)

These consolidated financial statements on pages 123 to
243 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 23 March 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

Zhao Liang
=)
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERREEHR

Year ended 31 December 2022 &%

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FRARBRAARES

(Note 26) (Note 28(a)) (Note 28(b)) (Note 28(c) (Note 28(d)) (Note 28(e))

—= — —

— =

FHZA=+—BLEE

(Wri2e) (WiEos(a) (MaE28(b) (MiaE28(c) (W&E28(d)) (M¥&E28(e))
Non-
Share Share Capital  Exchange  Statutory Other Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests deficits
Rx RGEE EAREE EXRE LERE EtRE  RHER A FERESE EBALR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THER TER THER TER TER TR TER TR TER
At 1 January 2021 WZZ2=-%-A-8 12,880 201,419 (7,337) (28,857) 1,582 (9151) (576,023) (405,487) 22,943 (382,544)
Loss for the year EFRER - - - - - - (73,472) (73472) 2,734 (70,738)
Other comprehensive income Hit2EKE
Exchange difference arising BEBNEBEEL
from translation of foreign EXZE
operations - - - 11975 - - - 11975 960 12,935
- - - 11975 - - - 1975 960 12,935
Total comprehensive income (loss) 2 W3 (F18) A% - - - 11975 - - (73,472 (61,497) 3,694 (57,803)
Transactions with owners BEFAZRS
Contributions and distributions HERAE
Appropriation to statutory reserve AR ZETEHE - - - - 138 - (138) - - -
At 31 December 2021 KZZZ-F+ZR
=t-8 12,880 201,419 (7,337) (16,882) 1,720 (9151) (649,633) (466,984) 26,637 (440,347)
At 1 January 2022 WZf--%-A-H 12,880 201,419 (7,337) (16,882) 1,720 (9.151) (649,633) (466,984 26,631 (440,347)
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - = (61,967) (61,967) (2,274) (64,241)
Other comprehensive income (loss) ~ E 42 i & (5 8)
Exchange difference arising BEBIEBEEY
from translation of foreign EXER
operations = = = 5,461 = = = 5,461 (2,666) 2,795
= = = 5,461 = = = 5,461 (2,666) 2,795
Total comprehensive income (loss) 2 W% (F18) A% - - - 5,461 (61,967) (56,506) (4.940) (61,446)
At 31 December 2022 RZBZZ£+ZR
=t+-AH 12,880 201,419 (7,337) (11,421) 1,720 (9.151) (711,600)  (523,490) 21,697 (501,793)
REBNENRROBRDLA 127
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—FE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2022 2021
—_E__F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THE T FAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REFTH
Cash used in operations KEEBAARS 29(a) (4,828) (173,154)
Interest paid B A (30,733) (22,306)
Tax paid BT HIR (79) (67)
Net cash used in operating REFTHRAREFE
activities (35,640) (195,527)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZES
Interest received 2 F B 222 2,921
Decrease in pledged bank 2\ R 1717 BB
deposits = 221,820
Purchase of property, plant and BEEWX  BKE K& E
equipment (6,019) (1,323)
Prepayment for purchase of BEME BEERBZ
property, plant and equipment  FE{f 3K E (109) 229
Increase in restricted bank PR I 88 17 45 #R 15 00
balances (4,622) -
Net cash (used in) from investing REZFE (FTA)FFBES
activities FE (10,528) 223,647
FINANCING ACTIVITIES B &R B
New loans from a connected REBERRZHER
company 183,145 -
Repayment of unlisted secured BRI LM ERES
bonds - (388,630)
Net proceeds from placing BeE L E RIG R ER
of listed credit enhanced BEH PSR IBFE
guaranteed bonds = 370,056
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEARE (541) (608)
Repayment of bank borrowings  {E &R T1E R (46) (49)
Repayment of amounts due to BRENBERRE
connected parties (131,984) -
Repayment of loan from a BERE—HBEEQRZ
connected company & (15,215) -
Net cash from (used in) financing &% 5& 8 718 (FTA)
activities HEEHE 29(b) 35,359 (19,231)

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

Year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ—FE-—F+-_A=+—HItFE

2022
—_E__F

HK$'000
FERT

Net (decrease) increase in cash ReMBEEEMORLD)

2021

HK$'000
TR

and cash equivalents N % =8 (10,809) 8,889
Cash and cash equivalents at FNHReRREEEY

beginning of year 25,493 16,107
Effect on exchange rate changes [BEX& &y F & (1,443) 497
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRIBE KRS EEY

of year 22 13,241 25,493
Major non-cash transactions: FEFRERS:
Acquisitions costs of property, FTAEAL B FIEN M E

plant and equipment recorded B R B AR

under other payable - 29,487

REBNEREBRGERA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—FE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

130

CORPORATION INFORMATION

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
13 September 2011 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.
The Company’s shares are listed on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange").
The address of the registered office of the Company
is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal place of
business is located at Unit 1009, Exchange Tower, 33 Wang
Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are detailed in note
14 to the consolidated financial statements. The Company
and its subsidiaries are herein collectively referred to as
the “Group”. In the opinion of the directors, the immediate
and ultimate holding company of the Company is Dafeng
Port Overseas Investment Holdings Limited ("Dafeng Port
Overseas"), which is incorporated in Hong Kong.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand,
unless otherwise indicated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2022 H{Z—F-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a basis consistent with the accounting policies
adopted in the 2021 consolidated financial statements
except for the adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs that
are relevant to the Group and effective from the current
year as detailed in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements. A summary of the principal accounting

policies adopted by the Group is set out in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Going concern basis

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately HK$34,600,000 (2021:
approximately HK$156,506,000) and net liabilities of
approximately HK$501,793,000 (2021: approximately
HK$440,347,000) respectively. These conditions indicate
the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and, therefore, the Group may be unable to
realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business.
Notwithstanding the aforesaid conditions, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a going concern basis on the assumption that the Group
is able to operate as a going concern for the foreseeable
future. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Group can meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due within the next twelve months, after taking into
consideration of the measures and arrangements made by
the Group as detailed below:

(i)  the Group is in negotiation with financial institutions
or connected parties for the renewals of the Group's
bank and other borrowings upon expiry, obtaining
new borrowings and applying for future credit
facilities;

(i) the Company has obtained a RMB1 billion
financial support (equivalent to HK$1,131,900,000)
in formal writing from JT#REEH B R LB EE
A R A A (Jiangsu Yancheng Port Dafeng Port
Development Group Company Limited*, "Dafeng
Port Development Group") (formerly known as JL&k
REFEZERKREEFR AR Jiangsu Dafeng Harbour
Holdings Limited*)), a connected company which has
40% equity interests in Dafeng Port Overseas; and
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)
Going concern basis (Continued)

(i) the Group is expected to generate adequate cash
flows to maintain its operations.

The directors have prepared a cash flow forecast covering
a period up to 31 December 2023 on the basis that
negotiation with financial institutions and connected
parties for the renewals of the Group's borrowings and
credit facilities would be successful, and are satisfied that
the Group will have sufficient working capital to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due within
the twelve months from 31 December 2022. Accordingly,
the directors consider that it is appropriate to prepare
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis.

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties
exist as to whether the directors of the Company will
be able to achieve its plans and measures as described
above. Whether the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern would depend upon the Group's ability to
generate adequate financing and operating cash flows
in the near future, and to obtain the continuous financial
support from its connected parties.

Should the Group be unable to continue to operate as a
going concern, adjustments would have to be made to
restate the values of assets to their estimated recoverable
amounts, to provide further liabilities that might arise and
to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities
as current assets and current liabilities respectively. The
effects of these potential adjustments have not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2022 H{Z—F-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs

The Group has applied, for the first time, the following
new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group:

Amendments to HKFRS 16

RN RETERUBR
HEEA

AEECEREA T EAEEFRE 2
A/ RRERT BB HREER:

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions Beyond 30 June 2021

EREP B MEENF165 (EFTA) TEC-FARNAZTHZREVERASHENEERE R

Amendments to HKAS 16
BB ERFE165 (BE]A)
Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRS 3
EABYB®E LR E35(EFTAX)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

TR WS ERFEE U

Amendments to HKFRS 16: Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions Beyond 30 June 2021

The amendments exempt lessees from having to consider
individual lease contracts to determine whether rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
covid-19 pandemic are lease modifications and allow
lessees to account for such rent concessions as if they were
not lease modifications. It applies to covid-19-related rent
concessions that reduce lease payments due on or before
30 June 2022. The amendments do not affect lessors.

The adoption of the amendments does not have
any significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16: Proceeds before
Intended Use

The amendments clarify the accounting requirements
for proceeds received by an entity from selling items
produced while testing an item of property, plant or
equipment before it is used for its intended purpose. An
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items,
and the cost of those items, in profit or loss and measures
the cost of those items applying the measurement
requirements of HKAS 2.

The adoption of the amendments does not have
any significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

Proceeds before Intended Use

¥ E R & AP 1S SRR

Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

BB G ERAFE3I75% (BT &) BITE&8ZKA

Reference to the Conceptual Framework

HESERZRM

2018 2020 Cycle
—NFEZZ-_ZFHEY
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134

ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37: Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract

The amendments clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost
of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate
directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a
contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (for example, direct labour and materials) and
an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
contracts (for example, an allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used
in fulfilling the contract).

The adoption of the amendments does not have
any significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3: Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments update a reference in HKFRS 3 to the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in
2018. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception
to its requirement for an entity to refer to the Conceptual
Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a
liability. The exception specifies that, for some types of
liabilities and contingent liabilities, an entity applying
HKFRS 3 should instead refer to HKAS 37. The exception
has been added to avoid an unintended consequence of
updating the reference.

The adoption of the amendments does not have
any significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2022 H{Z—F-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs
(Continued)

Annual Improvements Project — 2018-2020
Cycle

HKFRS 1: Subsidiary as a First-time Adopter

This amendment simplifies the application of HKFRS 1 for
a subsidiary that becomes a first-time adopter of HKFRSs
later than its parent — i.e. if a subsidiary adopts HKFRSs
later than its parent and applies HKFRS 1.D16(a), then a
subsidiary may elect to measure cumulative translation
differences for all foreign operations at amounts included
in the consolidated financial statements of the parent,
based on the parent's date of transition to HKFRSs.

HKFRS 9: Fees in the “10 per cent” Test for
Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

This amendment clarifies that — for the purpose of
performing the “10 per cent test” for derecognition of
financial liabilities — in determining those fees paid net
of fees received, a borrower includes only fees paid or
received between the borrower and the lender, including
fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender on
the other’s behalf.

HKFRS 16: Lease Incentives

The amendment removes the illustration of payments from
the lessor relating to leasehold improvements. As currently
drafted, Example 13 is not clear as to why such payments
are not a lease incentive.

HKAS 41: Taxation in Fair Value Measurements

This amendment removes the requirement to exclude
cash flows for taxation when measuring fair value, thereby
aligning the fair value measurement requirements in HKAS
41 with those in HKFRS 13.

The adoption of the amendments does not have
any significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is historical costs.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries. The financial statements of the subsidiaries
are prepared for the same reporting year as that of the
Company using consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
owners of the Company, in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income and within equity in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets in event
of liquidation, are measured initially either at fair value or
at the present ownership instruments’ proportionate share
in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. This choice of measurement basis is made on
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are initially measured at fair value,
unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
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Year ended 31 December 2022 H{Z—F-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to the owners of the Company and
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group's ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest
determined at the date when control is lost and (ii)
the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests at the date when control is lost. The amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted for
on the same basis as would be required if the Company
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Any investment retained in the former subsidiary and
any amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary are
accounted for as a financial asset, associate, joint venture
or others as appropriate from the date when control is lost.
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4.

138

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group reassesses whether
it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the elements of

control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, which
is presented in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements, an investment in subsidiaries is stated at
cost less impairment loss. The carrying amount of the
investment is reduced to its recoverable amount on
an individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable
amount. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends received and

receivable.
Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The Group's interest in associate is accounted for
under the equity method of accounting, except when
the investment or a portion thereof is classified as
held for sale. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter
for the post-acquisition changes in the Group's share
of the investee's net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment. Except to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee, the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses when
the Group's share of losses of the investee equals or
exceeds the carrying amount of its interest in the investee,
which includes any long term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the investee.
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Year ended 31 December 2022 H{Z—F-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Associates (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the investees, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
measured at the excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the fair value of any previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the acquisition date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed of
the acquired business.

Goodwill on acquisition of business is recognised as a
separate asset and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, which is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the
purpose of impairment test and determination of gain or
loss on disposal, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units. An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed.

On the other hand, any excess of the acquisition date
amounts of identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed of the acquired business over the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree, if
any, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit
or loss as an income from bargain purchase.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.
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4.

140

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can
be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefits expected
to be obtained from the use of an item of property, plant
and equipment, and where the cost of the item can be
measured reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an
additional cost of the asset or as a replacement.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress, over their
estimated useful lives from the date on which they are
available for use and after taking into account of their
estimated residual values, using the straight-line method,
at the following rates per annum:

Buildings

BF

Storage facilities

BRI

Leasehold improvements
HEMEREKE

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
B RERRE

Motor vehicles

aE

Computer equipment

BRI

Terminal and related auxiliary facilities

598 S R 48 B) 3R Ik

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item is
included in profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purposes. Construction in progress
is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Cost includes all construction expenditure and other
direct costs, including interest costs, attributable to
such projects. Costs on completed construction works
are transferred to the appropriate asset category. No
depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress until it is completed and ready for its intended
use.

Impairment of other assets, other than
goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indicator that its property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets may be impaired or
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based on the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the smallest group of assets that
generates cash flows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised as an expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversal of impairment losses is
recognised as income in profit or loss immediately.

The accounting policy for recognition and reversal of
impairment loss for goodwill is stated in the accounting
policy for goodwill in the earlier part of this note.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments
Financial assets
Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments and on a trade date basis except for
financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL") which are accounted for on the
settlement date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group's contractual rights to future cash flows from
the financial asset expire or (ii) the Group transfers the
financial asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset,
or (b) it neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset but
it does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises the
financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i)
measured at amortised cost; (i) debt investment measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“Mandatory FVOCI"); (iii) equity investment measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
("Designated FVOCI"); or (iv) measured at FVPL.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Recognition and derecognition (Continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group's business model for managing the
financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics. Financial assets are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group
changes its business model for managing them, in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the
first day of the first annual reporting period following the
change in the business model (the “reclassification date”).

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract in which a host
is an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not separated
from the host. Instead, the entire hybrid contract is
assessed for classification.

1) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising
from impairment derecognition or through the
amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss.

FESHBE@

e®MIAm)
TRMEEH)
7 38 R A8 L 1A ()

TRMEERNIERIAKZOBHETAE
EEREReMEECEBEAREH
BEZARHNAZRERB eREET
ERMPHARENDE  BRIFAKE
HEEREHRSREE CEHRA - N&K
BAT FEXFEZSRMEERNENR
EBRAREAFEREARz2EAE
HOoOBMBBMDEFROER -

TERBAVBRELMERBEANE
EZREAHNZBATEIATEA TR
DHZY - HREBENDEAAGNSETS

ki -
) REMRAHEZOBAR

HEmEEMATIMEAEKRMAFLL
EEEREAFEFABDE A
HERMEERBHKAGE:

) MNEEFEZREENKRES
MREREZEHRARNE
B R

(i) BREFNEEERELEES
XN ARE R EREEREFE
ZHRERE -

HEMERAGFEZEREEERNER
MEEFABWBFELRE - BE - KILEHE
RENBHEBRETEEZRERERR
BREPHER -

HRNERBERGERAR
2022 FHR 143



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)

Bt % R R M RE

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—FE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

4.

144

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities
Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of

the instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when
the liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue
of the financial liabilities.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, bank and other borrowings and amounts due
to connected companies and an assoicate. All financial
liabilities, except for financial liabilities at FVPL, are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method, unless the effect of discounting would be
insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.

Impairment of financial assets and other items

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses ("ECL") on financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost, Mandatory FVOCI, lease receivables,
contract assets, loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts issued to which the impairment requirements
apply in accordance with HKFRS 9. Except for the specific
treatments as detailed below, at each reporting date, the
Group measures a loss allowance for a financial asset at
an amount equal to the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on
that financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2022 H{Z—F-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(Continued)

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e.
the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected
life of the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of
the difference between the contractual cash flows that are
due to an entity under the contract and the cash flows
that the entity expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default
events on a financial instrument that are possible within
12 months after the reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on the following one or
more shared credit risk characteristics:

(i) past due information

(i) nature of instrument

(iii)  nature of collateral

(iv) industry of debtors

(v)  geographical location of debtors
(vi)  external credit risk ratings

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and
loss since initial recognition. The resulting changes in the
loss allowance are recognised as an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to
the carrying amount of the financial instrument, except
in the case of Mandatory FVOCI, the loss allowance
is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the fair value reserve (recycling).

FESHBE@

e®MIAm)

TRMEERHMIBEREA)

FTERAIEEER

BHEEEREASRIAFENEALHR
NEEBEBZBENEGFBIRERE
EBBE) -

NEMEEMS  EEEBEEABRESD
BN TFTERZ2AHR NS HEEEIEH
WRzHeREZ =8 2HE-

2HRYEEBEREER TARBE
REIRABLEMBAREENEHFMER 2
BHEEBE  mM2EAEREEERRA
BESRTARBTERERSHHEKI2E
ARZBEZOEMHMER 2D 2HTA
HEEEE-

EHEEERARAREEGFER R
TARBUT—RAZBEAREERRT

{1 '\ﬁ—g
iy BHEHR

iy TAMH
(i) EHFmMEE

(v, BEHAZITE

v BEHEAZHER

(vi) HNREERBRFR

EFERBRERSRSAMETEFRAEMN
ReRITABVLSERBURNEER
aREREY  BRABREELNEZEHRN
T@/\EPTJEM, RE Y s & E - I AE R
HAETHTANKEE  HEREIRATFE
AR S EMIFRESN - Hp
%?@TW%T&E\A@EEH&ZAEPEE DEQIS
NP ERFE (R EE) RE -

HRNERBERGERAR
2022 FHR 145



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—FE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

4.

146

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(Continued)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes
as historical experience indicates that the Group may
not receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full if
the financial instrument that meets any of the following
criteria.

(i) information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group); or

(i)  there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(Continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account in the assessment:

the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or
interest on the due dates;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

o actual or expected changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have or
may have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(Continued)

Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk

(i) it has a low risk of default;

(i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;
and

(i) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil
its contractual cash flow obligations.

Simplitied approach of ECL

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group
applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL. The
Group recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL
at each reporting date and has established a provision
matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower.

(b)  a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(Continued)

Credit-impaired financial asset (Continued)

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider.

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at
a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit
losses.

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual
cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group has a policy of writing off the gross
carrying amount when the financial asset is 1 year past
due based on historical experience of recoveries of similar
assets. The Group expects no significant recovery from
the amount written off. However, financial assets that are
written off could still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group's procedures for recovery of amounts
due, taking into account legal advice if appropriate. Any
subsequent recovery is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value, net of bank overdrafts.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

Nature of goods or services

The nature of the goods or services provided by the Group

is as follows:

Trading business
Petrochemical products storage business

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods
or services promised in a contract with a customer and
identifies as a performance obligation each promise to
transfer to the customer either:

(@) a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services)
that is distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same and that have the same
pattern of transfer to the customer.

A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct
if both of the following criteria are met:

(a)  the customer can benefit from the good or service
either on its own or together with other resources
that are readily available to the customer (i.e. the
good or service is capable of being distinct); and

(b)  the Group's promise to transfer the good or service
to the customer is separately identifiable from other
promises in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer
the good or service is distinct within the context of
the contract).

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies
a performance obligation by transferring a promised
good or service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is
transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control of
that asset.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

The Group transfers control of a good or service over
time and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation
and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following
criteria is met:

(@)  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance
as the Group performs;

(b) the Group’'s performance creates or enhances
an asset (for example, work in progress) that
the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

(c) the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the promised
asset. In determining when the transfer of control occurs,
the Group considers the concept of control and such
indicators as legal title, physical possession, right to
payment, significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset, and customer acceptance.

Sale of goods is recognised at a point in time at which
the customer obtains the control of the promised asset,
which generally coincides with the time when the goods
are delivered to customers and the title is passed.

Service income of petrochemical products storage services
is recognised over time when services are rendered.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

For revenue recognised over time under HKFRS 15,
provided the outcome of the performance obligation
can be reasonably measured, the Group applies the
output method (i.e. based on the direct measurements
of the value to the customer of the goods or services
transferred to date relative to the remaining goods
or services promised under the contract) to measure
the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation because the method provides a
faithful depiction of the Group's performance and reliable
information is available to the Group to apply the method.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised only to the extent of
the costs incurred until such time that it can reasonably
measure the outcome of the performance obligation.

The principal input applied in the output method is:

—  Storage services for petrochemical products: number
of days of the usage of the storage services

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised
using the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the assets while it is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount net of loss allowance)
in case of credit-impaired financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2022 H{Z—F-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services
to a customer before the customer pays consideration
or before payment is due, the contract is presented as
a contract asset, excluding any amounts presented as a
receivable. Conversely, if a customer pays consideration,
or the Group has a right to an amount of consideration
that is unconditional, before the Group transfers a good
or service to the customer, the contract is presented
as a contract liability when the payment is made or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier). A receivable is the
Group's right to consideration that is unconditional or only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts,
either a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. Contract assets and contract liabilities of
unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

For the trading business, it is common for the Group
to receive from the customer the whole or some of the
contractual payments before the services are completed or
when the goods are delivered (i.e. the timing of revenue
recognition for such transactions). The Group recognises a
contract liability until it is recognised as revenue. During
that period, any significant financing components, if
applicable, will be included in the contract liability and
will be expensed as accrued unless the interest expense
is eligible for capitalisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—FE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

4.

154

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost, which comprises all costs of
purchase and, where applicable, other costs that have
been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition, is calculated using the weighted
average cost method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period of the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised
as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as
an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Foreign currency translation

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in the currency of Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency of each of the Group's entities
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2022 H{Z—F-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

The results and financial position of all the group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency (“foreign operations”) are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

—  Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the end of reporting period;

— Income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
rates;

— Al resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising
from a monetary item that forms part of the Group's
net investment in a foreign operation are recognised
as a separate component of equity;

— On the disposal of a foreign operation, which
includes a disposal of the Group's entire interest
in a foreign operation, a disposal involving the loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in an
associate that includes a foreign operation of which
the retained interest is no longer equity-accounted
for, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to the foreign operation that
is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the separate component of equity
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the
gain or loss on disposal is recognised,;

—  On the partial disposal of the Group's interest in a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation which
does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in
the separate component of equity is re-attributed
to the non-controlling interests in that foreign
operation and are not reclassified to profit or loss;
and
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4.

156

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

—  On all other partial disposals, which includes partial
disposal of associates that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence, the proportionate share
of the cumulative amount of exchange differences
recognised in the separate component of equity is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income over the years necessary to match the grant
on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to
compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair
value is credited to a deferred income account and is
released to profit or loss over the expected useful life of
the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as
an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2022 H{Z—F-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, when it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation, and when a reliable estimate of the amount
of obligation can be made. Expenditures for which a
provision has been recognised are charged against the
related provision in the year in which the expenditures
are incurred. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money
is material, the amount provided is the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. Where the Group expects a provision
to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as
a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains,
a lease at inception of the contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-
term leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments
associated with these leases are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components from lease components, and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

The Group accounts for each lease component within a
lease contract as a lease separately. The Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component.

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a
separate component are considered to be part of the total
consideration that is allocated to the separately identified
components of the contract.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability at the commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which
comprises

(@) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

(c)  any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2022 H{Z—F-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. Depreciation is provided on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful lives of the right-of-use asset (unless the
lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the
Group by the end of the lease term or if the cost of the
right-of-use asset reflects that the Group will exercise a
purchase option — in which case depreciation is provided
over the estimated useful life of the underlying asset) as
follows:

Office premises 2-3 years

Prepaid lease payment 45 years

The lease liability is initially measured at the present

value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date of the contract.

The lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability comprise the following payments for the right
to use the underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date:

(@) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

(b)  variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate;

(c) amounts expected to be payable under residual
value guarantees;

(d) exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(e)  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option
to terminate the lease.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, or where it is not readily determinable,
the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made.

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount
rate when there are changes to the lease payments arising
from a change in the lease term or the reassessment of
whether the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase option.

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original
discount rate when there is a change in the residual value
guarantee, the in-substance fixed lease payments or the
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index
or a rate (other than floating interest rate). In case of a
change in future lease payments resulting from a change
in floating interest rates, the Group remeasures the lease
liability using a revised discount rate.

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement
of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use
asset. If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is
reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the
measurement of the lease liability, the Group recognises
any remaining amount of the remeasurement in profit or
loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

As lessee (Continued)

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease

if

(a)

the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

the consideration for the lease increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

When a lease modification is not accounted for as

a separate lease, at the effective date of the lease

modification,

(a)

in the
modified contract on the basis of relative stand-

the Group allocates the consideration
alone price as described above.

the Group determines the lease term of the modified
contract.

the Group re-measures the lease liability by
discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate over the revised lease term.

for lease modifications that decrease the scope
of the lease, the Group accounts for the re-
measurement of the lease liability by decreasing
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to
reflect the partial or full termination of the lease and
recognising any gain or loss relating to the partial or
full termination of the lease in profit or loss.

for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts
for the re-measurement of the lease liability by
making a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-
use asset.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost
of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as incurred. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund.

Contributions to the state-managed retirement schemes in
jurisdictions other than Hong Kong, which are calculated
on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs,
are charged as expenses when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.

No forfeited contributions for the above plans may be
used by the employer to reduce the existing level of
contributions.

Shared-based payment transactions
Equity-settled transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in
exchange for shares or rights over shares. The cost of such
transactions with employees is measured by reference to
the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a reserve within equity. The fair value is
determined using the binomial model, taking into account
any market conditions and non-vesting conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2022 H{Z—F-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)
Equity-settled transactions (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the vesting conditions are to be fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the entitlement of relevant
employees to the award is no longer conditional on the
satisfaction of any non-market vesting conditions (“vesting
date”). During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest ultimately is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior
periods is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year
of review, with a corresponding adjustment to the reserve
within equity.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for awards that are conditional on a market
condition or non-vesting condition, which are treated as
vested irrespective of whether or not the market condition
or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all non-
market vesting conditions are satisfied.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at fair value
of the goods or services received, except where the fair
value cannot be reliably estimated, in which case they
are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments
granted. In all cases, the fair value is measured at the date
the Group obtains the goods or the counterparty renders
the services.

Cash-settled transactions

A liability is recognised for goods or services acquired,
measured at the fair value of the liability. Until the liability
is settled, the fair value of the liability is remeasured
at the end of each reporting period and at the date of
settlement, with any changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss for the period.
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164

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arises from initial recognition
of goodwill; or other asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss, it is not recognised.

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses
and credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investment in subsidiaries, except where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by
the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2022 H{Z—F-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of the parent of the Group.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v} The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group. If
the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).
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166

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of

which it is a part, provides key management

personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(a) that person's childre and spouse or domestic
partner;

(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes
subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their best economic interest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2022 H{Z—F-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level T — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group can
access at the measurement date

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the

consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at

the end of each reporting period.
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4.

168

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
which are described above, management has made various
estimates and judgements which are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated. The key source of estimation uncertainty
and accounting judgements that result in significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in the next financial year
or significantly affect the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements are discussed below:

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(i) Going concern

As disclosed in note 2, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis. The appropriateness of the going concern
basis is assessed after taking into consideration all
relevant available information about future of the
Group, including cash flow forecasts of the Group.
Such forecasts inherently involve uncertainties.
Actual results could differ significantly and hence
render the adoption of the going concern basis
inappropriate.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(ii)

(ii)

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

The management reviews the useful lives and
depreciation method of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets at the end of
each reporting period, through careful consideration
with regards to expected usage, wear-and-tear and
potential technical obsolescence to usage of the

assets.

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the
event previously causing the impairment no longer
exists, the management has to assess whether an
event has occurred that may affect the asset value
or such event affecting the asset value has not
been in existence. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amounts of the asset would be
determined by using higher of the value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal. Value in use is
determined using the discounted cash flow method.

Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss
allowance for trade receivables by using various
inputs and assumptions including risk of a default
and expected loss rate. The estimation involves high
degree of estimation and uncertainty which is based
on the Group's historical information, existing market
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying amount of
trade receivables. Details of the key assumptions and
inputs used in estimating ECL are set out in note
32(a)(iii) to the consolidated financial statements.

4.

EE

CRREER:E] - 1C 2

HATHBER 2 ETEZRR(A)

(ii)

(ii)

VE BERIEARCEHESE
Z 18 F R K B B

EEENSREPREREREH
EREEZBTHAE  BRIE
RATEE - ARaE - BERR
BAKRE BEEE ZERFR M
Bk

EFETEERGHBARENBES
HREZEMHRETIBHFER &
BEANEECHRANRETEERE
BEZFEHARTEEEBEZS
HEBY N FE - HEEMZED
FEE WEENEREEBRREQYF
ERHERNAZEGEEETEELZ
AE SR - EREEBEIERMARE
ReREBEEE -

FRHZ BEE1RZ R EE

AEEEEEFATREAZSE L
BE - BEENRB RTEREEX
A ESEWRIE 2 BEEE -
HEtr ke EAFRTIEEN - H
ERAEEMNBAER - RITHR
EREREPROAEEER -
FEHEREREGA T — BEEZEH
FEEFRNFBZREE - HE
HHEEERETANTIEZERELE
ABIEFIBEHIN R GG BRI
5 32(a)(iii) °

LEMENBEROERDT

2022 F3R 1 69



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—FE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

4.

170

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Fair value of property, plant and equipment

The Group estimates the fair value of its certain
property, plant and equipment (for impairment
purpose) with reference to valuations performed by
an independent professional valuer. The valuation
of property, plant and equipment is performed
using the depreciation replacement cost (“DRC")
approach. The DRC approach includes estimation
of construction as if building the similar structures,
adjusting for physical deterioration, obsolescence
and optimisation or referring to current market price
of the similar assets.

Impairment of investments and receivables

The Company assesses annually if investment
in subsidiaries has suffered any impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 and follows the guidance
of HKFRS 9 in determining whether amounts due
from these entities are impaired. Details of the
approach are stated in the respective accounting
policies. The assessment requires an estimation of
future cash flows, including expected dividends,
from the assets and the selection of appropriate
discount rates. Future changes in financial
performance and position of these entities would
affect the estimation of impairment loss and cause

the adjustments of their carrying amounts.
Allowance for inventories

The Group’'s management reviews the condition of
inventories, as stated in note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements, at the end of each reporting
period, and makes allowance for inventories that are
identified as obsolete, slow-moving or no longer
recoverable. The Group carries out the inventory
review on a product-by-product basis and makes
allowances by reference to the latest market prices
and current market conditions.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Future changes in HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial

statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/

revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current

year, which the Group has not early adopted.

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies’

Definition of Accounting
Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction’

Insurance Contracts’

Initial Application of HKFRS
17 and HKFRS 9 —
Comparative Information’

Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-
current?

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

3 The effective date to be determined

The directors do not anticipate that the adoption of the
new/revised HKFRSs in the future periods will have any
material impact on the results of the Group.
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5.

172

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company are identified
collectively as the chief operating decision maker. An
operating segment is a component of the Group that
is engaged in business activities from which the Group
may earn revenue and incur expenses, and is identified
on the basis of the internal management reporting
information that is provided to and regularly reviewed by
the Company’s executive directors in order to allocate
resources and assess performance of the segment.

For management purposes, the Group is currently
organised into the following operating segments:

Operating segments

BRERREZIEBARBIHITES o &
M/\*EEZKE.Z—*B R EAREET
BRWEREEBRAZAXLTY  WE
RARRHTESTR Y EER LT EDE
FEMERELEETHEN AN ERS
WMERMIEE ©
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RERME A AR HBUTA
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Principal activities

i«(#&/'\ﬁB IE%;]'%

— Trading business — Trading of electronic products, petrochemical
products, medical treatment, textile and food
disinfection products etc.

— Provision of supply chain management services
— BHEH — TT?E—?FDD AlLEmR BE HBRERHE
— ?Efﬁfﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%

— Petrochemical products storage business — Provision of storage services for petrochemical
products

— RALERRREER — RHALEREFRE

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Company’s
executive directors monitor the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segments assets include all assets except for corporate
assets which are managed on a group basis. All liabilities
are allocated to reportable segment liabilities other than
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities which are
managed on a group basis and certain other payables and
accrued charges.

Revenues and expenses are allocated to the operating
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation of assets
attributable to those segments. The measure used for
reporting segment results is profit/loss before taxation
without allocation of share of results of associates and
other unallocated corporate expenses and income.
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Year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ—FE-—F+-_A=+—HItFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

For the purposes of assessing the performance of the
operating segments and allocation of resources between
segments, the Group's results are further adjusted for
items not specifically attributed to individual segments
and other head office or corporate administration costs.

Inter-segment sales transactions are charged at prevailing
market prices.

Operating segments
Segment information is presented below:

For the year ended 31 December 2022

5.

o EE R (@)
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BRME » ARBXEIL IEEE B E
o EZEB R EMARERH D ITH
RAE—FEHFE -
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DHERZIIMT

BE-—E-——F+-—A=+-—-HLEE:

Petrochemical

Trading products
business storage business Total
AlLtEM
BESXEK EREL et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FHETT FHET
Revenue (from external ¢ NCI=EIN:
customers) 5P) 787,206 8,761 795,967
Results ¥E
Segment results D EE A (18,392) (11,559) (29,951)
Other unallocated corporate  E th 5k %5 fid A &)
income WA 1
Other unallocated corporate  Efth 7k % B A &)
expenses HFa (34,212)
Loss before taxation B %4 A1 B 18 (64,162)
Taxation I8 (79)
Loss for the year FRNERE (64,241)
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. oEER @
Operating segments (Continued) ReE M)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_Z-_—ft+-A=+—HLEE:

Petrochemical

Trading products storage

business business Total
AL E &
B 5% B REE 4@t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TBT T3 7T TH&T
Revenue (from external L&A CIEEIN=
customers) =P) 882,505 25,906 908,411
Results E
Segment results DESEE (1,174) (28,145) (29,319)

Other unallocated corporate  E b & 5 B 2 A
income A 5,399

Other unallocated corporate  Efth 7k % B A &)

expenses X (46,751)
Loss before taxation B T Al BT 18 (70,671)
Taxation I ©7)
Loss for the year FRNER (70,738)
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ—FE-—F+-_A=+—HItFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Operating segments (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022

5. DEERE @)
B E)

R=-B-Z=f+=ZHA=+-—H

Petrochemical

Trading products
business storage business Total
RILE M
ESEK ERER 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TH& T FH& T FHExT
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DELE E 554,685 169,214 723,899
Unallocated corporate assets F 7 B AR EE — — 35,410
Consolidated total assets A BEMRRE 759,309
LIABILITIES afE
Segment liabilities DHEE (735,098) (117,269) (852,367)
Unallocated corporate ROMAFIEBE
liabilities — — (408,735)
Consolidated total liabilities mAEBaBERE (1,261,102)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—FE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. oEER @
Operating segments (Continued) ReE M)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE_ZS-_—H+-A=+—-HLEE:

Petrochemical

Trading products
business storage business Total
ALEm
ESEWK RRE® wE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
THET THERT THET
OTHER INFORMATION Hft&H
Capital additions NI - 6,019 6,019
Depreciation of property, plant #1% + B 5 & &
and equipment BT E 135 9,675 9,810
Depreciation of property, mE - BEIR
plant and equipment HBITE
(unallocated) (K5 = = 70
Depreciation of right-of-use  FRAEEEFNE
assets 115 1,008 1,123
Depreciation of right-of-use  FREEEFRE
assets (unallocated) (XHE) - - 416
Finance costs Bl & B AR 6,999 3,318 10,317
Finance costs (unallocated) &l & AR
(K7 E) = - 29,299
Impairment loss on goodwill 72 5 & &5 18 956 - 956
Reversal of impairment loss M BERR
on property, plant and HRE B E&
equipment, net EPE- - (7,334) (7,334)
Provision for inventories FEEE 4,799 - 4,799
Interest income B A (210) (4) (214)
Interest income (unallocated)  F B Y A
(K7 E) - - (8)
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ—FE-—F+-_A=+—HItFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. DEEE @)
Operating segments (Continued) K& )
At 31 December 2021 R-FB-—-+=-A=+—H

Petrochemical

Trading products storage

business business Total
RILE M
ESEK ERmEX st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THE T FHE T FHExT
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEE E 201,600 186,935 388,535
Unallocated corporate assets KD EAREE - - 36,679
Consolidated total assets LABEMRRE 425,214
LIABILITIES =K
Segment liabilities DEBE (358,353) (117,345) (475,698)
Unallocated corporate RAABARIARE
liabilities - - (389,863)
Consolidated total liabilities LeEaERsE (865,561)
REBHNIEREBRABERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—FE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. oEER @
Operating segments (Continued) ReE M)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_Z-_—ft+-A=+—HLEE:

Petrochemical

Trading products storage

business Total
RILER

BREER ot
HK$’'000 HK$’000

business

EEXR%
HK$'000

178

OTHER INFORMATION
Capital additions

Depreciation of property, plant

and equipment
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
(unallocated)
Depreciation of right-of-use
assets
Depreciation of right-of-use
assets (unallocated)
Finance costs
Finance costs (unallocated)

Impairment loss on property,

plant and equipment, net

Interest income
Interest income (unallocated)

RNl
wITE
wITE
(R EL)

EREEEFE

EREEEFE
(Ro )
(RDEL)
BREERE
#

B A

A B WA
(RDEL)

FTER

177

112

2,038

(2,911)

FER

30,810

12,633

1,151

2,561

12,676
(3)

FTER

30,810

12,810

165

1,263

452
4,599

32,339

12,676
(2,914)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ—FE-—F+-_A=+—HItFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical information

Geographical segment

The Group operates and derives revenue in two principal
geographical areas: Hong Kong and the People’s Republic

of China (the "PRC"). The following table sets out the
revenue derived from geographical areas which are based

on the geographical location of the customers:

5.

o EE B

i & & K

HE 5

N 52 8 5 R 1B 35 8 000 B A 5 2 75 30 JE UK

woBBRPEARAMB(PE]D - TFX
BIREEFPHEBEUES DRI

2022

—=E=-= T — 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#& T FE T

Revenue from external customers: KEIILEPLUE :
Hong Kong &5 129,620 542,900
The PRC + 663,784 345,922
Others (Note) Bt (1 aE) 2,563 19,589
795,967 908,411

Note: The locations of others include Dubai, Asia (other than Hong Kong
and the PRC) and others.

M HtitEeEaR SN (EERTERIN R
Hitipz -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRHME

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—FE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical information (Continued)
Geographical segment (Continued)

The geographical location of non-current assets is based
on the physical location of the assets, in the case of
property, plant and equipment, prepayments in relation
to property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, and
the location of the operation, in the case of goodwill. The
analysis of the Group's non-current assets by geographical

location is as follows:

TEE R (@)
HEE R (7
E 5 W (E)

FRBEEZHWEBEUENZEEZER
NEMAYE BERREBREL: BY
X BMEMRBZENRR: ERAEEE)
REBMAE(NMBEE) NEBERMBIEN
EHFRBEEMEDTET:

2022 2021
—g=-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERFZE
The PRC F 122,678 129,546
Prepayments in relation to property, MME BERZREZE
plant and equipment NS5
The PRC a3 4,993 5,296
Goodwill R
The PRC a3 340 1,296
Right-of-use assets CREEE
Hong Kong BE 743 1,159
The PRC a3 38,130 42,008
38,873 43,167
Total non-current assets ERBEEMTE 166,884 179,305
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

mEMBEmRRHE

Year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ—FE-—F+-_A=+—HItFE
o ERE H )
FEEFEHR

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers contributing individually over

10% or more of the Group's revenue are as follows:

EBHBEEAEE KT BI0O%IIA LTS
Wz

Customer A B2EA
Customer B ZFEB
Customer C EFEC

2022 2021
—EgE-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TET
370,082 N/A 5@
107,021 N/A 5
N/A 3@ A 153,632

All above customers are from trading segment. The
revenue from Customer C was less than 10% of the
Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022.
The revenue from Customer A and B were less than 10%
of the Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December
2021.

REVENUE

FHBERFHKEESHE - ARFC
EEZRAIDREEBRBEE-_T-__F+
“AZT-BLEFEKRFEZI0% - BRF
ARBEAZWALRAEBHZ_ZT=
—F+ A=+ —BLFEEWIE Z10% -

iy 2

2022 2021

—sE=-=

HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TAT

Revenue from contracts with customers & & B ¥R &EEBI 5155

within HKFRS 15 HEEREFAHN KRS
Trading business B S EK 787,206 882,505
Petrochemical products storage AtERBERER
service 8,761 25,906
795,967 908,411
Timing of revenue recognition TR U R
At a point in time A — {E B e 26 787,206 882,505
Over time P — R A 8,761 25,906
795,967 908,411

The revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS
15 is based on fixed price.

BV BREENFISHRBEARTLAL
Y st A FE(ER A &2 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—FE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

7. OTHER INCOME 7. HlA
2022
—Zs==

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F&E T
Bank interest income RIT R B WA 222 2,921
Exchange gain, net P W Uk z5 )% 58 190 5,334
Sundry income FIEMA 543 322
955 8,577

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. WEMAK

2022 2021
—E=-= —E—4F

HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TET

Interest on borrowings wholly repayable ZERAFALEHEE 2 &

within five years B 2R A 2,460 2,561
Effective interest on unlisted secured FELMHAEFELHFZER

bonds B - 8,108
Effective interest on listed credit EHERAERIERESD

enhanced guaranteed bonds (note B RA R K 524 ()

24(c)) 29,274 20,907
Interest on amounts due to connected JENBEH AFIHKIE ZFE

companies 2,848 1,836
Interest on loan from a connected RKE—BHBEFZ

company BHA B 4,992 3,492
Interest on lease liabilities HEABEFE 42 34

39,616 36,938
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ—FE-—F+-_A=+—HItFE

BR Bt A &5 18

BEMBETIERERZ2S:

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 9.

This is stated after charging:

2022
—=E=-=

HK$'000

Staff costs
Salaries, allowances and other short-
term employee benefits including

SEIMAE
o RMREMEHE
@M BREE5H

FTER

HK$'000
TAET

directors’ emoluments 14,479 18,559
Contributions to defined contribution %8 Z 5 &1L &
plans 3,152 3,194
17,631 21,753
Other items Hih1g e
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN 2
— Audit-related assurance services — BB ERE 1,450 1,350
— Other services — EM AR 59 46
Cost of inventories FERAN 773,830 868,575
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BEIREHTE
equipment 9,880 12,975
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEAERE 1,539 1,715
Lease charge — short term lease HERT —RHBAHEE 379 749
REBHNIEREBRABERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—FE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

10. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND 10. EERARBEFA LT ZHMH
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(i) Directors’ emoluments (i) EEHH
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and REBRARFEEENEEMNAKRF
payable to the directors of the Company by the EEHBAENT

Group during the year are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-_ZE_—_f+-A=+—HL#F
B

Salaries, Contributions
allowance to defined

Appointed Resigned during and benefits Discretionary  contribution
during the year the year Fee in kind bonus plans Total

& EER o 2R wt
FRER FRRE e  EWNE  BERA B &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR

Executive directors HES
Mr. Zhao Liang R 27 May 2022
ZE--ERACTHEA - = = = = =
Mr. Yuan Qingfeng REBLE 25 February 2022 27 May 2022
ZE-ZfZFZ+RER ZEZZERACTER = = = = =
Mr. Tao Ying BERE 25 February 2022
- “E-C"f-A-+3A = = = = =
Non-executive directors ~ FHTEE
Mr. Ji Longtao EERLE - - 240 - - - 240
Mr. Yang Yue Xia BHERE - - 240 = = = 240
Mr. Miao Zhibin (note &)~ &% 4 (FHa) - - 240 - - - 240
Independent non- BUFHNES
executive directors
Mr. Zhang Fangmao KHXEE(M )
(Note b) - - 120 - - - 120
Dr. Bian Zhaoxiang ThREEL - - 120 = = = 120
Mr. Lau Hon Kee EEEE - - 180 = = = 180
Mr. Yu Xugang TEREE - - 120 = = - 120

1,260 = = = 1,260
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ—FE-—F+-_A=+—HItFE

10. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND 10. EERIEEREHFATZHM
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (#&)
(Continued)
(i) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) iy EZHFME)
Year ended 31 December 2021 Bz - —F+_A=+—HItHF
E

Salaries, Contributions

allowance to defined

Appointed Resigned during and benefits Discretionary ~ contribution
during the year the year Fee in kind bonus plans

31

FREH Be REDHE  BREEO 8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tar  Taxr  Tar  Tan 7

Executive directors HTES
Mr. Tao Ying BeiE - - - - - - -
Mr. Chen Wen Xiang BRR KA 10 May 2021
- ZTZC-FAATH - 173 - - 173
Ms. Leng Panpan RpBRL 12 August 2021
- ZE--%)\AtzH - 294 - - 29
Non-executive directors ~ FHTEE
Mr. Ji Longtao HEELE - - 20 - - - 240
Mr. Yang Yue Xia BHELE - - 20 - - - 240
Mr. Migo Zhibin 2ERLEE - - 20 - - - 240
Independent non- BUFANES
executive directors
Mr. Zhang Fangmao RAKEE - - 120 - - - 120
Dr. Bian Zhaoxiang ThkEEL - - 120 - - - 120
Mr. Lau Hon Kee BEEEE - - 180 - - - 180
Mr. Yu Xugang Ta&RBEE - - 120 - - - 120
1,260 @ - - 1727
Note a:  Mr. Miao Zhibin resigned as non-executive director on 11 January fisa: BEVREER-T_=F—A+—HHI
2023. FHITES -
Note b:  Mr. Zhang Fangmao resigned as independent non-executive Mib: RAXEERZZTZ=F—A+—BEE
director on 11 January 2023. BUIFRITES -
Note c:  Mr. Zhang Shukai has been appointed as non-executive director Miskc: REBEER-ZZT_=F—A+—HEZ
on 11 January 2023. ERIFENITES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRHME

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—FE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

10. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)

(i) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
no emoluments were paid or payable by the Group
to any of the directors as an inducement to join the
Group or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.

The following directors have waived or agreed to
waive his emoluments during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021:

Mr. Zhao Liang i Bt
Mr. Yuan Qingfeng REHEE
Mr. Tao Ying ) Bt

10. EEROBBREFALTZHH
(#)

iy EBFME)

HE_Z-_FR-F-_—F+=H8
St BLEFE AEBEYEET
MEEZNXNENSFHH - 1FAEKS
MAREBE S MARNEE % 2 2E)
HIERBEREE -

UTEEEREXRAERERETE
BT _FR-F-—FF+A=
+—BIEFE 2 FHE:

2022 2021
—E_——

HK$'000 HK$'000

T FAT

480 -

320 -

160 960

(ii) Loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in
favour of directors

There were no other loans, quasi-loans or other
dealings in favour of the directors that were
entered into or subsisted during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

(iii) Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

After consideration, other than disclosed in note
30 to the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are of the opinion that no transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the Company’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company, or an entity connected with the directors,
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the years or at any time
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ—FE-—F+-_A=+—HItFE

10. EERARBEFA LT ZH M

10. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)

(iv) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals included three
directors (2021: one director) for the year ended
31 December 2022. The aggregate amounts of the
emoluments in respect of the two (2021: four) non-
director individuals are as follows:

(&)

(iv)

EEBREHFAL

BE-_ZT-_—_F#+-_A=+—HL
FE AEAmagALTRE=Z2E=E
(ZEZ—F:—REFH)  MB(ZE
T—F:EOR)EEEALTZHME
BT

2022 2021
—_E__F

HK$'000 HK$'000

TE T FAT

Salaries and allowances e kR 963 1,580
Contributions to defined TE FE M RRET B K

contribution plans 58 78

1,021 1,658

The numbers of the non-director individuals whose
emoluments for the year were within the following
band:

FAFHNFUTHEEZFEEA
TAH:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 1,000,000 7T

No remuneration was paid or payable by the Group
to any of the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join the Group or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office during
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

BHE-Z-—_Fr-_F-—F+=A
=+—HLEFE AEETEAA
EZEEHALINRESETM - F
ARSI A SE B koA K £ E %
2B SRERBEREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—FE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

11. TAXATION

188

" HIE

2022 2021
—s=-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FTET
Current tax: BEA A5 38 -
Current year REE - -
Under provision in prior BAEFERETR
year 79 67
79 67
Deferred tax iR FE 7 I8 25 = -
Total income tax expenses RESBRAZAEHRMAX
recognised in profit or loss ~ #%d 79 67
(i) Hong Kong Profits Tax (i) BRAANESB

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated in accordance
with the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. Under
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the profits tax
rate for the first HK$2 million of estimated assessable
profits of the qualifying group entity is lowered to
8.25% while the estimated assessable profits above
HK$2 million continue to be subject to the rate of
16.5% for corporations. The profits of other group
entities in Hong Kong not qualifying for the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime continue to be taxed
at a flat rate of 16.5%.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made as the Group's entities either had no estimated
assessable profits or incurred tax losses for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ—FE-—F+-_A=+—HItFE

11. TAXATION (Continued) 1. HE@#)

(i) Income taxes outside Hong Kong (i) BBEINIZHE
The Company's subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to ARG ZH BB AR E#MMEE
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”). PRC EIT is calculated FTEB(ERBHD PR
at the prevailing tax rate at 25% on taxable income Fir 45 ¢ 75 AR 1% o B AR B O& 091 K2 #3191
determined in accordance with the relevant laws and HTFEE 2 ERB M AIE25% 2
regulations in the PRC. WITHEGH -
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the British BEEBEXEESE(XRBEELH
Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and the Cayman lIslands, E) AEeBEZRAUREM &
the Group is not subject to any taxation under those SEBAGMNABRIERERE ZEM
jurisdictions. BIA °

Reconciliation of tax expenses BiIR B X ¥ AR

The tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the FABREMTXEGE2ERER 2R

loss before taxation per the consolidated statement of AIE EEERNT

comprehensive income as follows:

2022 2021
—Eg-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT T T
Loss before taxation B %% A ES 18 (64,162) (70,671)
Income tax at applicable tax rate of =i AT E16.5%
16.5% (2021:16.5%) (ZE=—F :116.5%)
FHEZMER (10,587) (11,661)
Effects of different tax rates of P E At B AR [ 4 2 Bt
subsidiaries operating in other BRAIZTRABERZE
jurisdictions (3,358) (1,619)
Non-deductible expenses DGR 6,742 6,522
Tax exempt revenue % T = (661) (535)
Unrecognised temporary differences AERERH =% (1,153) 1,645
Under provision in prior year BEFEBRETE 79 67
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised AERHIBEEE 2
METE 9,017 6,034
Utilisation of previously unrecognised {FABERERZ
tax losses M EE - (551)
Others Hb = 165
Tax expenses for the year FABIBRX 79 67
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRHME

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—FE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

12. DIVIDENDS 12.

The board does not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

13. LOSS PER SHARE 13.

Basic loss per share for the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021
attributable to the owners of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue.

are calculated by dividing the loss

=t

ExglTE# M@E_E::¢+:HE
T-BEEFERNES(CE_—F &) -
BRER
BE_T-_HR-_FT-_—F+-A=+

—HUEFREZEREXRBBREARRER
ANEHBEBERASETERBRNEFS
BEtE

Loss attributable to owners of the RAGEBEARGEER
Company (HK$'000) (F#&7T) (61,967) (73,472)
Weighted average number of ordinary B2 % 17 % i i 10 #& 15 £

shares in issue

1,288,000,000 1,288,000,000

FREAERCEW

Basic loss per share (HK cents)

(4.81) (5.70)

Basic and diluted loss per share are the same as the
Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary
shares during the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.
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14.

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 December
2022 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

MEARER

Dafeng Port Heshun International Investments Limited

REENERRRAERAT

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology (China) Company Limited
Dafeng Port Heshun Technology (China) Company Limited

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology (Indonesia) Company Limited
Dafeng Port Heshun Technology (Indonesia) Company Limited

Luck Sign Investment Development Limited

HERAURERLA

Worldly Development Limited (“Worldly")

EFCREERAR(ENE))

A BB MBI E 5% R AR (Uiangsu Yancheng Port
Port Shipping International Trade Co., Limited*, “Port
Shipping International”) (Formerly known as 379N
YA)EEIRE 5 5B AR (Yancheng Dafeng Heshun
International Trading Company Limited*)

THEENEERERESERAR(ERARDHEERNA
LENRERESBRAT

BGAREEE(RY)ERAF Qianhai Mingtian Supply
Chain (Shenzhen) Company Limited, “Qianhai Mingtian”)

MERREEERINERAR(HERK])

LA & B EALEBRAT (Jiangsu Yancheng Port Port
Storage Petrochemical Co., Limited*, "Port Storage
Petrochemical’), Formerly known as STE S EER (A
FBMRAR (Jiangsu Zhongnanhui Petrochemical Storage

Company Limited*)

Place of incorporation/

operation and legal
form if established in
the PRC
FRMAY/BEBHRE
BRA(HES

Hong Kong
R

The BVI
KERUES

The BYI
RBRABE

The BVI
RERUES

Hong Kong

&k

The PRC, wholly
foreign owned
enterprise

TEENELE

The PRC, sino-foreign
equity joint
venture

TEBRELE

The PRC, wholly
domestically owned
enterprise

THRENEERBMERAA(RRBLDNRIRTEEL T8 2RELE

tRHERRE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ—FE-—F+-_A=+—HItFE
14. RERRIZRE

R A=LES

—RZHBMT:

Issued and paid-up
capital/registered capital Proportion of ownership interest
BRTRARRE/
ERER KR L
Directly held Indirectly held
EERA HEEs

HKS$1 - 100%
BT

Us$t 100% -
(ESH

Us$t 100% -
(ES

US$1,000 100% -
1,000% 7T

HK$10,000 - 100%

10,0007 1

Registered capital and - 100%
paid-up capital
US$64,500,000

HBEARARRA
64,500,000% 7

Registered capital - 51%
US$8,000,000
Paid-up capital
US$6,401,360
(notef})
1 4 78,000,000% 7T
@R 6,401,360
R

Registered and paid-up - 100%
capital RMB32,000,000

AMRARBEAARY
32,000,0007C

RAGIMBARIR-_T -

Effective
ownership

interests held

by the Group

FREAERR

FEgERER

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

51%

100%

Principal activities

TEXH

Investment holding

RARRK

Investment holding

RARRK

Inactive

EES ]

Investment holding

RARRK

Trading and
provision of
supply chain
management
services
B k%

Trading and

investment

HHRRE

Trading and
provision of
supply chain
management
services

AHRRRHEEE
ER#%

Provision of
petrochemical
products
storage
services

REACEREER
%

REBHNIEREBRABERAA 191
2022 F4R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—FE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

14.

192

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/
operation and legal

form if established in  Issued and paid-up

14. AMBLAREIZEBE @)

Effective
ownership

interests held

Name of subsidiary the PRC capital/registered capital Proportion of ownership interest by the Group Principal activities

HMAL/ BERARE ERORAERE/

HEBARERE BRA(METERY) HREX

HBELAIEA{LARAA (Zhuhai Heng Feng Heshun The PRC, wholly Registered capital
Petrochemical Company Limited*, “Zhuhai Heng Feng") domestically RMB10,000,000
owned enterprise  Paid-up capital
RMB500,000 (notefii)
KEBENERLERAR(HEEL]) hE2RALE AR AR 10,000,000
G R RAARK500,0007T
(Wit (i)
RYIiZ BB AR (Shenzhen Fanhai Holdings Company  The PRC, wholly Registered capital and
Limited*, “Shenzhen Fanhai") domestically paid-up capital
owned enterprise RMB10,000,000
ATz eERERLA(RINZE]) REERELE EMEAR B R RA
AR #10,000,0007
Evertime Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1
BREBARAT i 17
Million Sky Business Limited The BVI Us$t
BRERXBRAA EBRAES %7
EEFEEORIERAT The PRC, wholly Registered capital
domestically RMB5,000,000

owned enterprise  Paid-up capital

RMB,200,000 (notefii))

EEBEXRINERAT HE 2RERE & A A R #5,000,0007C
& 2 RA A R1,2000007
(Bt i)
Note

(i) The remaining registered capital of US$1,598,640 are committed
to be injected by the non-controlling interests.

(i1) The remaining registered capital of RMB$,500,000 are committed
to be injected by the Group on or before 31 January 2067.

(iii) The remaining registered capital of RMB3,800,000 are committed
to be injected by Qianhai Mingtian.

All of the above subsidiaries are limited liability companies
and none of the above subsidiaries issue debt securities.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
Annual Report 2022

FEEFEER
i AR RS FEEEE TEXH
Directly held  Indirectly held
EERA MEES

- 100% 100%  Trading of
petrochemical
products

BERES

- 51% 51% Trading of
petrochemical

products

BERES

- 100% 100% Inactive
BXH

100%

100%  Investment holding
RERR

- 51% 51% Trading

25

g3

(i) BR T At 1 & 2K 1,598,6403 T i FE 4 1R 12 5 7

(ii) BT A E AR A R #9500,0007T 7 5= [E #
ERZBENtFEF—A=F AL ZFTE -

(i) BRI E AR A K #3,800,0007T 1 5T )8 8 X

LR EMBARBRBEREERAAR
P EARMERTERES -
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Year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ—FE-—F+-_A=+—HItFE

14. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 14. ARB AR 2R E @)

Financial information of subsidiaries with non-
controlling interests (“NCI")

The following table shows the information relating to
all non-wholly owned subsidiaries, Shenzhen Fanhai and
Qianhai Mingtian and its subsidiary (together the "Qianhai
Mingtian Group”) that have material NCI during the year.
The summarised financial information of each of the NCI
for the period from the later of the beginning of the
reporting period and the date of acquisition to the earlier
of the date of disposal and the end of the reporting period
represents amounts before inter-company eliminations and
excluding the related goodwill.

BEEFERES (FEREST DB
MEARNMBEESR

TRINTFANBRBEERFERER 2
BRZEMBRARRIZERABHX
LEMBAR (SEAISAXEEDZA
BER - BEREMFEHEKEBRHUAR
BRERB)EHEAHNRBEHTHE (AR
RERE)RHEBIFERBER Y BHER
MBI RRREMBEAZEE  ATER
EREEE-

Shenzhen Qianhai Mingtian

Fanhai Group
Rz = ASARES
(Note a)
(Kt =Ea)
At 31 December 2022 R-ZEBE-_—_F+=AH
=+—H
Proportion of NCI's ownership interests JF % i% # & % 5 1
T %5 L1 49% 49%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHE T & T
Non-current assets EmBEE 2 1,010
Current assets mENE E 3,105 143,949
Current liabilities RBEE (40) (84,143)
Non-current liabilities EREEE = (102)
Net assets B EFE 3,067 60,714
Carrying amount of NCI EEREREEA 1,503 20,194

REBHNIEREBRABERAA 193
2022 FiR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRHME

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—FE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE
14. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Financial information of subsidiaries with non-
controlling interests (“NCI") (Continued)

At 31 December 2021

R-B-_—%+=H

14. AMBLAREIZEBE @)

BEFERES (FERESZDHN
B B B B9 BE 7 & R )

Shenzhen Qianhai Mingtian

Fanhai

Y2k

Group
HX&E
(Note a)
(Bff 5% a)

=+—H

Proportion of NCI's ownership interests 3F % i% # 25 # /5 4%
1 2 L 49% 49%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Non-current assets ERBEE 4 946
Current assets REEE 4,461 176,217
Current liabilities B BE (44) (107,721)
Net assets BEFHE 4,421 69,442
Carrying amount of NCI EEREREEE 2,166 24,471

Note a: Qianhai Mingtian Group's total equity disclosed above included
the accumulated profits up to disposal of 49% equity in Qianhai
Mingtian of HK$6,470,000 (the “Pre-acquisition Profits”) in 2017.
However, the non-controlling interests are not entitled to the
Pre-acquisition Profits in accordance with the agreement entered

into between the shareholders.

In 2018, the Group and the non-controlling interests had injected
HK$24,006,000 and HK$2,354,000 respectively. In 2019, the NCI
had injected HK$8,169,000. The non-controlling interests are
not entitled to the excess contribution made by the Group of
approximately HK$13,033,000 in accordance with agreements
entered into between the shareholders.
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B 5Ea:

EXFBERNSAREEZESHERE
RE-F-LFHEMBERRO%BBHEZ R
&t 716,470,000 7T (W AE R ) - A
i RERR ZERI L 2 e - FE R
SEEFTARBAGDA o

RNZT—\F > REERFZEEREDZE D5
7x & 24,006,000/ 7T 52,354,000/ 7T ° 7
ZE-NF - FIERERE T ES169,000
BT e RIBRRZMA L 2 sk - JFEk
R ERFTEARBEMELZEINTED
13,033,000% 7T °
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Year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ—FE-—F+-_A=+—HItFE

14. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 14. RBRA 2 RE @)

Shenzhen Qianhai Mingtian

Fanhai Group
w5z AIEAXER
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T F#& T

Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-ZE-_—_+=A

=+—BLFE

Revenue W = - 247,422
Cost of sales ok BN = (238,970)
Other income NN 8 348
Expenses fi 2 (1,056) (12,394)
Loss for the year FANEE (1,048) (3,594)
Other comprehensive loss Hih 2 mE R (306) (5,134)
Total comprehensive loss for the year N2 M §5 18 25 (1,354) (8,728)
Loss attributable to NCI JE 1 A% = RS S 1B (513) (1,761)

Total comprehensive loss attributable to FEIERE &= G 2 E E 18

NCI R (663) (4,277)
Net cash flows from (used in): KE(AR)UTZREZES
MBI FE
Operating activities LEEE) (1,072) (3,942)
Investing activities KERY 7 2,514
Financing activities BMEE - -
Dividends paid to NCI BT FE R 2 R B = =
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14. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 14. RRBE AR 2R E @)

Shenzhen Qianhai Mingtian

Fanhai Group
RINZ A/BARXEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THETT FAET
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T-_—%+=A
=t+—HIFE
Revenue W = 167,474 705,809
Cost of sales 55 & PR (164,780) (696,569)
Other income E AU 7 2,929
Expenses X (1,258) (8,032)
Profit for the year 1A 5 ) 1,443 4,137
Other comprehensive income Hih2EKA 107 1,851
Total comprehensive income for the year N2 MU i 258 1,550 5,988
Profit attributable to NCI FE 1 iR B 2 FE (G R 707 2,027
Total comprehensive income FEVE AR HE 2 FE G 2T U 5
attributable to NCI B 760 2,934
Net cash flows from (used in): RKEAR)UTEEZRS
MEFE
Operating activities KR g 1,926 (216,724)
Investing activities KEEH 7 224,722
Financing activities BEEH - (115)
Dividends paid to NCI PRI E R 2 IR B - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ—FE-—F+-_A=+—HItFE

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15.

Mk BERRE

Terminal
Furniture, and related
Storage Leasehold fixtures and Motor Computer auxiliary ~ Construction
Buildings facilities improvements ~ equipment vehicles  equipment facilities in progress Total
B %8 FEREEH
B ERRE BENEEE SEL RE EERE B i ERIE Az
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET TR FET FET FET FET FET FET
At cost RERE
At 1 January 2021 W-%--%-f-H 6,680 191,286 1,796 13,066 380 4,389 11,886 6,869 236,352
Additions NE 90 21,222 1,099 4,634 - 317 - 3,448 30,810
Transfer 33 - 10,308 - - - - - (10,308) -
Exchange realignment ERRE 233 6,643 64 21 10 128 kil 104 7760
At 31 December 2021 and 1 RZZZ—4+=f
January 2022 =t-Bk
ZEZZf5-f-H 7,003 229,459 2959 17967 390 4,834 12,197 13 274922
Additions AE - 5,615 - 150 - 2 - 22 6,019
Transfer i - 15 - 51 - - - (66) -
Exchange realignment EXHE (497) (17.914) (408) (839) (26) (346) (807) (12) (20,849)
At 31 December 2022 WZBZZf+ZR
=t+-A8 6,506 217175 2,551 17,329 364 4,520 11,390 257 260,092
Accumulated depreciation RAFERAE
and impairment
At 1 January 2021 R-F=-%-A-R 1916 91,266 1,625 11471 364 3,655 4,634 2,707 117,638
Charge for the year FRAK 134 n,2n 33 788 9 408 332 - 12975
(Reversal of impairment) (BRAE)RE
Impairment - 13,350 (63) 1,280 (265) (290) 1,371 (2,707) 12,676
Exchange realignment EXRE 9 1,863 4 7 9 81 6 - 2,087
At 31 December 2021 and 1~ RZZ=—%5+=f
January 2022 =t-Bk
ZEZZ5-f-H 2,059 117,750 1,642 13,611 1" 3,854 6,343 - 145,376
Charge for the year FRk 131 8,415 - 636 1 424 23 - 9,880
(Reversal of impairment) (BEEE)RE
Impairment - (7,194) (56) (293) - (311 520 - (7,334)
Exchange realignment EX@E (30) (9,220) (209) (541) (24) (314) (170) - (10,508)
At 31 December 2022 WZBZZf+Zf
=t-8 2,160 109,751 1,377 13,413 94 3,653 6,966 = 137,414
Net book value REFR
At 31 December 2022 R-ZB-ZE+ZR
=t-8 4,346 107,424 1174 3916 270 867 4,424 257 122,678
At 31 December 2021 RZZ=Z-F+-8
=t-8 494 111,709 1317 4,356 VIE 980 5854 1 1954
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15.

198

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The directors of the Company have reviewed the
carrying value of property, plant and equipment (storage
facilities and construction in progress) and right-of-use
assets (note 18 to the consolidated financial statements)
of Petrochemical Products Storage Business as at 31
December 2022 after considered that the economic
activities are gradually resumed from the lockdown
brought by the stringent COVID measures imposed by the
local government. The directors of the Company expect
that the economies would be recovered and determined
that the recoverable amount from the use or sale of certain
of these assets would be improved.

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating unit
("CGU"), including property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets of Petrochemical Products Storage
Business (collectively known as the "Assets”) as at 31
December 2022 were higher than their respective carrying
amounts. The recoverable amounts are determined by
the management, with assistance from an independent
professional valuer, based on fair value less costs of
disposal for the Assets, which are significantly higher than
that using value-in-use calculation.

The recoverable amounts of the property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets of Petrochemical
Products Storage Business were HK$130,361,000 and
HK$61,046,000 respectively (2021: HK$140,446,000 and
HK$57,590,000 respectively). Accordingly, net reversal of
impairment losses of HK$7,334,000 (2021: net impairment
losses of HK$12,676,000) and no impairment losses were
provided for property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets in relation to this CGU respectively.

The key assumptions used in estimating the fair value of
the Assets under depreciation replacement cost approach
include estimation of construction as if building the
similar structures, adjusting for physical deterioration,
obsolescence and optimisation or referring to current
market price of the similar assets. The valuation was
categorised as Level 3 fair value measurement.
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15. ¥ - BERKRE®E)

AR EEEEMNEE-_S-_—_F+=A
“t+—HBELERRREBRZDE BE

BB (AREERERIR) RS AE
BEWGEVBRERMEIDZERAME " =
EBEHEZEEWRTEENERETEH R
B EUE - OEEBE S MIE - AAQF
EEEHLCESSIRE  UEEEARE
EETZEELEENTRESEETNRE -

HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=Z+—HZB&E
FEMN(REEEENNBEELALERE
REBZYE BEREZBEUARGERESE
EFHRBIZSEE]) 2R ESBEH AT
AEREZEMNEEE HEREEEB Y
HEMZBO TITREATFERZEEE
ZHEKAETZA BB ERESR
BEHAEAEFTEZAREEHE -

ELERAERBREBRNDE BEER
BEURFEAEEE 2T KE & 5D
£130,361,000/%8 7T K&61,046,0007% JT(=
L = — F: 5 Bl £140,446,000 T &
57,590,000/ L) - Bt - BB A LR
CELEBNZME  BENMEEREE
18 R B # 57,334,00008 (- F — — 4
B B 18 % 812,676,000 7T) » 18 5k ¥
BEEEFIERERISE -

REFEEERNEGLFZFEEZR
FEFMAARBREEMTEEENRZ
ERUER) MELEERRE  ®mE -
BIEELABRLAZREBUEENERN™
BE-HERIBERF=RAATE"
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Year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ—FE-—F+-_A=+—HItFE

16. GOODWILL

16. &

2022
—g-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAET
Reconciliation of carrying amount FR ] 18 #1847

At beginning of reporting period PR & 1,296 1,296
Impairment loss B & 18 (956) -
At the end of the reporting period RBEHR 340 1,296

At 31 December R+=A=+—8H
Cost DN 16,140 16,140
Accumulated impairment loss Z2EHREEBE (15,800) (14,844)
340 1,296

Goodwill arose because the consideration paid for the
acquisitions effectively included amount in relation to the
benefits originated from future market development and
the assembled workforce of the acquired business. These
benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill
because they do not meet the recognition criteria for
identifiable intangible assets. None of the goodwill
recognised is expected to be deductible for income tax
purposes.

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the

Group's CGU as follows:

ELBERHRNMBBINZAEERE
EARMGERREBEGMESSD
NFERNBEZE®E -  ARKFENET
MAmHNEREE ZBRBEE  BA
ERFEOMAER FEHNRECERR
BHRARMBRAER -

HEZEAEIPEEASBERECELE
fzgan

2022 2021
—g—--
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Petrochemical Products Trading AItEMBSEE

Business

Zhuhai Heng Feng KEEZ 340 340

Shenzhen Fanhai wINZ G = 956

340 1,296

The goodwill in relation to Petrochemical Products Storage
Business of HK$14,844,000 has been fully impaired in
previous years.

B ALLERE FE2EE14,844,000
BTERBEFE2HHE -
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16.

200

GOODWILL (continued)

The directors of the Company reviewed the goodwill of
Petrochemical Products Trading Business of Shenzhen
Fanhai as the economic performance is worse than
expected and no revenue has been recognised during the
year. Based on the results of assessment, a full impairment
on goodwill of HK$956,000 was recognised during the
year.

The recoverable amounts of the Petrochemical Products
Trading Business of Zhuhai Heng Feng as at 31 December
2022 and 31 December 2021 have been determined on the
basis of value in use. These recoverable amounts are based
on certain key assumptions. The value-in-use calculation
uses cash flow projection based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a 5-year period by
applying certain key assumptions below:

16. BE®m)

ARREZEZEEBRYZENALERE
S2EBNHE RAAKLEREREL
BE BFRNTEBERIRA - BIETELE
R FADHEREE 2 EURE56,000/8
5T e

KEELENALERBEIEBR-_ZE==
F+-A=+-—HEZZE-_—F+-A=
+—BHZAKEeEHERIEFEREEE
FoUWEERETIERE - FHEAED
REEEMERFHMEREEZRS
MEENFANTETEERRTE:

Petrochemical Products Trading
Business of Zhuhai Heng Feng

KBEEEALERES X
2022
—g=—=
Pre-tax discount rate 75 Bl Bk 3R & 1% 7%
Average growth rate TR E 2% 2%
Perpetual growth rate KA RE 1% 1%
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Year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ—FE-—F+-_A=+—HItFE

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 17. R—EBEQIAT2ER
2022 2021
—E=-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAET
As at 1 January and 31 December R—A—BE+ZA
=+—H = -

Details of the associate at the end of the reporting period
is as follows:

Principal place
of business
and place of
incorporation
TEXRBUR
aE flf A 37 3t B

Issued and paid-up

Name of associate capital

CRTRMRE
BRE/EMER

g & N R £ 7B

THERAEERAOLE
AR AR (Jiangsu
Yancheng Port Hairong

The PRC RMB250,000,000

Petrochemical Terminal
Co. Ltd*, ("Jiangsu
Hairong”) Formerly
known as )T & /5 @k
REB ML I
AR AT Jiangsu
Hairong Dafeng Port
Petrochemical Product
Terminal Company
Limited”)
IEHENBSRALEE HE
BRAR(DIEER])
AITE I 3008 Bt K 2%
mit THEEER A A

A K #250,000,0007T

The above associate is accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.

Proportion of effective

capital/registered ownership interest held by

the Group
AEBREERMAR
18 2 Lk 4

2022

Principal activities

FREH
2021

Provision of terminal
handling and
berthing services

REBEEER
ER)

(T VAN

FaBE RE R AERE
BRPARK °

R a5

REBAENEROERDT
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Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z - _F+_R=+—HIFE

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)
Relationship with associate
Jiangsu Hairong, an integrated logistics handling services
provider in the PRC market, allows the Group to continue
its business segments optimisation and consolidation
that in turn may spur synergy effect of the Group's
Petrochemical Products Storage Business.

Fair value of investments

The above associate is a private company and there is no
quoted market price available for the investment.

202 Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
Annual Report 2022

17 R—EBE QT Z2ER#®)

HEBEQRz2@E

THEMA—HTEMENEE YR E
ERGREED CEASEEREER
EBoMEARES MM AIERBA
SEACEMBREBZIHRRE -

REZNFE

LBt E AR R/FLART - WEAIHEERE
PAE R S



17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ—FE-—F+-_A=+—HItFE

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 17. R—EBERA =@

Financial information of the associate

Summarised financial information of the associate of
the Group is set out below, which represents amounts
shown in the associate’s financial statements prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs and adjusted by the Group for
equity accounting purposes including any differences in
accounting policies and fair value adjustments.

At 31 December 2022

BMERNTA2MBER

AEBEABERRZHMBENREHT
W REEREREBEREVBREER
RMAEZBERNRAPBRRATZEHE A
RASEERNESSTENETRAE &
HREARRZEMEZERAFEAE -

R=B==#+=8=t-8

2022 2021
— ==
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Gross amount # %8
Current assets mENE E 45,178 80,362
Non-current assets IEmBEE 132,173 210,424
Current liabilities B BE (617,379) (700,518)
Deficits &5 At (440,028) (409,732)
Reconciliation HER
Gross amount of deficits &5 4t 4B 58 (440,028) (409,732)
Group's ownership interests AEEBZEREER 40% 40%
Group's share of deficits £ B o S Al (176,011) (163,893)
Unrecognised share of deficits upon REREE QA BRI ER
recognition of an associate % 32 B Al 152,055 152,055
Cumulative translation differences 2t E =% (622) (5,087)
Cumulative unrecognised share of loss R KR D (L E1E 24,578 16,925

Carrying amount of interests w2z REE

REBNERBERBERD R
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Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—FE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 17 R—EBEQ A z2ER @)
Financial information of the associate (Continued) BERNRZUBER &)
2022
—E--
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET

Gross amount LR
Revenue W = 11,679 11,286
Loss for the year FREIE (19,132) (12,473)
Other comprehensive (loss) income Hah2m(EE) ks (11,164) 4,935
Total comprehensive loss T HEIEEE (30,296) (7,538)
Unrecognised share of loss of an associate AERZOE—BBHEQIRER
The Group has not recognised further losses as the AR ASESHIH SR BIEBAR
Group's share of losses of Jiangsu Hairong exceeds the RIS/ 2 EENREE  WAKEY
carrying amount of its interest in Jiangsu Hairong. BHRE T EIE -
The unrecognised share of loss of an associate for the year HE-_Z-_-F+-A=+—HLEFER
ended 31 December 2022 and cumulative up to the end HEREMRBSARER 2 HH—[EHE
of the reporting period amounted to HK$7,653,000 (2021: NAEEE 5 B /R7,653,0008 L (ZE = —
HK$4,989,000) and HK$24,578,000 (2021: HK$16,925,000) £ 1 4,989,000/% JT) K24,578,0005% JT(=
respectively. T = — 4 16,925,000/ L) °
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Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—ZFE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

18. LEASES 18. #HE
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE
Prepaid
lease Office
payments premises
(note a) (note b) Total
BREE WRE
(NS ES
(Mtzra)  (MiEED) HEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FAET
Reconciliation of carrying amount — year FEESER —BZE
ended 31 December 2021 —E-—F+=-A
=+—HIEFE
At beginning of the year R F 7)) 41,906 492 42,398
Addition 0 - 1,247 1,247
Depreciation e (1,151) (564) (1,715)
Exchange differences & X =% 1,234 3 1,237
At the end of the reporting period RER 41,989 1,178 43,167
Reconciliation of carrying amount — year REHEHERE — 82
ended 31 December 2022 —E--—%+=H
=t—BLEFE
At beginning of the year REF 41,989 1,178 43,167
Addition % hn = 387 387
Depreciation e (1,008) (531) (1,539)
Exchange differences fE R =% (3,134) (8) (3,142)
At the end of the reporting period REXR 37,847 1,026 38,873
At 31 December 2021 R-F—_—%
+tZA=+—8H
Cost DN 45,006 3,795 48,801
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  Z2&H3T & KRB E 18
losses (3,017) (2,617) (5,634)
Net carrying amount 41,989 1,178 43,167
At 31 December 2022 R-EBE-Z
+=B=+-—H
Cost (DN 41,873 2936 44,809
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  ZFHiTE KRB E B
losses (4,026) (1,910) (5,936)
Net carrying amount IR EFE 37,847 1,026 38,873
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—FE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

18.

206

LEASES (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Note a: Prepaid lease payments

Upon acquisition of Port Storage Petrochemical by the Group in 2016, the
prepaid lease payments in relation to a piece of land in the PRC were
valued at RMB38.7 million. The prepaid lease payments are amortised
over the remaining leasehold period of 45 years since acquisition. As at 31
December 2022, the prepaid lease payment were pledged to secure loan
from connected party as stated in note 24(b) to the consolidated financial

statements.
Note b: Office premises

The Group leases various office premises for its daily operations. Lease
terms range from 24 to 36 months. Lease payments were usually increased

annually to reflect current market rentals.
Restrictions or covenants

Most of the leases of office premises impose a restriction
that, unless the approval is obtained from the lessor,
the right-of-use asset can only be used by the Group
and the Group is prohibited from selling or pledging
the underlying assets. The Group is required to keep
those properties in a good state of repair and return the
properties in their original condition at the end of the
lease.

The Group has recognised the following amounts for the
year:

18. HEw#®)

FEREEE@E)
M eta: FEMHEERM K

REER —ARFRBERALE  RETEZ
—%iﬁﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ Z BfE & A R #38,700,000

o TR AR B B UL B R S R AR R (AN455F)
ﬁﬁﬁ WZZE-_—Ff+=-A=+—H" E‘EH%EEH
B ARG 4R & B 7% #R 3R MY 5 24(b BERE

Mo HAEWE

AEEREAREEREZERAZYME  BEAN
F24E360E A - MENFBE & FIEMNARKREH
MRS -

PR % = 76

%%@Jﬁt’&%%frﬁ #RBIHE - FRIFESH
MAWHE  BRIEHBEEEEZEHAS
BER AAEETSHERERBBRE
E o AEEASTYERIFOBIENRE
YWRBEERFIZMENRMNE °

AEBREFANER NI

2022 2021
—E=-= —F——
HK$'000

FAT

HK$'000
FTER

Lease payments: HERR:

Short-term leases REIEE 379 749

Expenses recognised in profit or loss ~ RIBZERZFAX 379 749

Total cash outflow for leases HEBReAHEE 876 1,358

Commitments under leases HE AR
R-ZF-_—_F+-A=+—8 AKHE5

At 31 December 2022, the Group was committed to
HK$184,000 (2021: HK$135,000) for short-term leases.
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19.

20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—ZFE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

PREPAYMENTS IN RELATION TO
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Advances to suppliers for purchase of

property, plant and equipment ) FE 7 B K

ABEVE BEAR

2022
—Eg=-=

HK$'000
FERT

4,993

19. %W% BERREZEANSR
I

AOYA
—E-—F
HK$'000
FH T

5,296

INVENTORIES

20. # &

2022

—_F=-=

HK$'000
FTER

2021
—E-—F
HK$'000
THT

Finished goods — TR — BREM
medical treatment products 966 5,448
Finished goods — textile products ST — FEE S 11 -

Finished goods — T m — ALEm
petrochemical products = 4,312
977 9,760

The management expects that the future demand of
certain medical treatment products would be decreased
and therefore a provision for inventories of HK$4,799,000
(2021: Nil) has been recognised as expense during the
year.

EEERHUAREETEREMNT

SRR D

ALFRCHERTEHE

4,799,000 T (ZE-—F M) ABHX -

REBAENEROERDT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—FE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 2. EZRHMEWRIE
2022 2021
—E__F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TBT
Trade receivables B S EWRE
— Third parties -B=5 32(a)(iii) 419,580 27,993
— Less: Loss allowance - SR RE 32(a)(iii) (3,514) (3,514)
416,066 24,479
Other receivables HibEWRIE
Deposits, prepayments and other %4 « BN ZE K E
debtors b JEE LT BR 3K 41,525 49,586
Advanced payments to suppliers [A] {i fE 75 24 3% 108,160 94,669
Value added tax refundable 7] 3R [0 32 (E 7,599 41,668
Interest receivable & U FI B 224 242
Due from a connected company JE i — & 8 &
UNCIE /@ 21(a) 11 12
157,519 186,177
573,585 210,656
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21.

22.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—ZFE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

21(a) Due from a connected company

AEBEBEOEREERR KEEBEBOAR

1. EZREMEWRRE R

21) B —ERAELRRIA

2022 2021

HK$'000
FER

HK$000
FTAET

11 12

(Dafeng Port Harbour HEERAA
Limited Liability Company*,  ([KZig#&])
"Dafeng Harbour")

(i) The company is controlled by a substantial shareholder and

the amount is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed term

of repayment.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

0] ZARBMEIERRIENREHESBEREER
2ERIMEEERY -

22. RERBEEEY

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—4F

HK$'000
FER

HK$'000
TAET

Cash and bank balances Jﬁ@_};ﬁ RITHE & 17,863 25,493
B LR BIRITE &
Less: Restricted bank balances (Note) (Wt &) (4,622) -
Total cash and cash equivalents (as HRE&RBEEEEY
stated in consolidated statement of  #EFE (REAIR D
cash flows) mMERIR) 13,241 25,493
Note: B &

Restricted bank balances represents the bank balance being frozen due to
the legal case with an independent third party (the “Plaintiff”). On 12 January
2021, the Plaintiff lodged a petition in The Primary People’s Court of Qianhai
Cooperation Zone of Shenzhen City of Guangdong Province (“QianHai Court”)
for the dispute on the sales and purchase contract entered between Qianhai
Mingtian and the Plaintiff. The Plaintiff has claimed for the refund of the contract
sum, amounting to RMB9,500,000 and other costs, including the cost of delivery
of the alleged refunded inventory, amounting to RMB186,000, insurance cost of
RMB24,000, legal fee of RMB800,000, breach penalty of RMB1,900,000 and other
associated costs. On 6 September 2021, the QianHai Court has dismissed the
claim from the Plaintiff other than the breach penalty of RMB186,000, which was
determined by the QianHai Court.

During 2022, the Plaintiff has lodged an appeal in Shenzhen Intermediate People’s
Court of Guangdong Province (the “Intermediate Court”), claiming to withdraw
the verdict issued by the QianHai Court and to amend the judgement or remand
for a retrial. The Plaintiff also applied to freeze the bank balances of Qianhai
Mingtian, amounting to RMB4,083,000 (equivalent to HK$4,622,000). On 29
November 2022, the Intermediate Court upheld the verdict issued by the QianHai
Court.

Subsequent to the year end, on 4 January 2023, Qianhai Mingtian has applied for

the discharge of the freeze.

SREBITEBIERNEBYE-H((REEDHEER
HmERENRITES R_TE_—F—A+=H"
RERMESARERETINETCRUNARE
REAFRYMAEEIERVEARER (HEER])
REHFL - REZRRIESRNLEAREY500,000
TREMKRE  EPREIMNMERERT KK
N A R #186,0007T © R B A R 24,0007 « #F %
& A R#800,0007T i #9515k A B #1,900,0007T &
HMHEBEER R-_ZT-_—FNANE  BalEER
HITHE D IR ARKE186,0007T5) » AIE AR K E

FREFARTEK

M2022F - REBRERE R HRREARER ([H
ok ) IR E L 5F - BB RE AR B H A FA
WERHA R BERERE - RENEBEFREANTHR
#9817 45 82 A R #54,083,0007T (4 & 74,622,000/
e RZEZZF+—A=-+hB PRERESF
AT A BT 8 H) #0R -

REZFEERE R-Z-=F—AMA ' AEHARX
ERERBRAERMS -

REBNMENEBRBERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—FE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. ESZRHALE R
2022 2021
—_E__F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Trade payables BEZENRE 23(a) 415,047 36,940
Other payables H ftb P& RRE
Accrued charges and FEstE AR EMEMNER
other creditors 63,246 57,904
Construction cost payables i < 122 5% i Z< 23(b) 22,398 29,487
Contract liabilities AHEE 23(d) 52,361 51,900
Salaries and bonus payable  FEft ¥4 RIEAL 935 929
Amount due to a director EN—2EF R\ 23(f) 660 440
Amounts due to connected  JETRAE AT XA
companies 23(c) 37,593 201,528
177,193 342,188
592,240 379,128
23(a) Trade payables 23) B 5 N HE
The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on BN ERREEZAYN Y ES S
invoice date, is as follows: W F
2022 2021
—E:—-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHETT
90 days or below 90K AT 407,905 31,449
More than 365 days 365K A 7,142 5,491
415,047 36,940
The Group was allowed a credit period of up to 90 AEBREESEREABYYNSS0RM
days by its trade creditors. The trade payables are EEH -GSERZEAEESBBER
interest-free and are normally settled on terms of one — A ALY .
to six months.
23(b) Construction cost payables 23(b) JE 14 22 3% ;R A&
The amounts due are interest-free and repayable S BER I IE AR B & A I B A BT
upon the receipt of the invoices issued by the HE R E g S o

constructors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—ZFE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

23. ESREMESTE S

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

*

23(c) Amounts due to connected companies

23(c) BNBEQRRE

2022 2021

—E-C B —F

HK$'000
FTEx

HK$'000
TAET

Current portion B 2 38
Dafeng Port Development AREBEREEH
Group 23(c)(i) 37,593 43,932
IHEFSREARR IEHEBREERATA
7] (Jiangsu Huahai
Investments Limited*)
("Jiangsu Huahai”) 23(c)(ii) = 157,596
37,593 201,528
Non-current portion FEHED
Dafeng Port Development EAEREEH
Group 23(c)(iii) 7,900 -
45,493 201,528

(i)

(iii)

Dafeng Port Development Group has 40% equity interests
in Dafeng Port Overseas. The amount is unsecured,

repayable on demand and interest-free.

Jiangsu Huahai has 10% equity interests in Dafeng Port
Overseas. The amount due represents the principal portion
in relation to the consideration on the acquisition of Jiangsu
Hairong in 2018 and the associated accrued interest. As
at 31 December 2021, the balance of RMB113,652,000
(equivalent to HK$128,643,000) was unsecured, bore interest
at a rate of 4.35% per annum and repayable on 1 November
2022. The remaining balance was unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand. The whole balance has been

fully settled during the year.

The amount represents the interest payable for loans
from the Dafeng Port Development Group. The amount
is unsecured and interest-free. With reference to relevant
loan agreements, the interest payables of RMB4,199,000
(equivalent to HK$4,753,000), RMB2,041,000 (equivalent to
HK$2,310,000), RMB739,000 (equivalent to HK$837,000) are
repayable on 31 October 2024, 8 September 2025 and 17
January 2024 respectively.

The official name is in Chinese and the English name is translated for

identification purpose only.

*

(i)

(iii)

REBREEEHEARNL BT INZA0%LHE
EHRARBER ARBREERLE -

TRESHARNLEEINZI0%EE - B
CHER_ZE-N\FERREARARFT —MH
BRAT#HEBRZREZAS #H RIEEHE
AAME - R-TB_—F+-A=+—R &#K
AR H113,652,0007T (18 & $128,643,0007%
T REE - FERFNRL3S% AR
o F+-A-HEE-BTHBRER
A RBRAREREE Z2HBREERF
NEHAEE -

ZEHEEREREEREEENERNEN
FE - ZeBEABEAREE - L2 E1HH
B AT ARY4,199,000T (HH5
74,753,000 7T) + A K #2,041,0007T (A8 &
72,310,000/ 7t) & A R #739,0007T (16 & 7
837,000/ T) D RIZANR T _NF+A=+—
B -—Z-_AFAANBR-_Z_WFE—A+
+tHEE -

TXEBABETLE  AXBEAEEHZ2E -

REBHNIERFERDERA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—FE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 23. EZRHMENRE

23(d) Contract liabilities 23d) EHEE
The movements (excluding those arising from FAN - BEBYBE RS EREIS%R
increases and decreases both occurred within the HEARFPEHNZANEBEETH (T
same year) of contract liabilities from contracts with BERR—FEEBBTEES) N
customers within HKFRS 15 during the year are as N
follows:

2022 2021
—s=-=

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER TAETT

At the beginning of the reporting R R & Hi 4

period 51,900 50,440
Recognised as revenue A= (12,541) (50,440)
Receipt of advances of undelivered WEX AR R & 2 B3

goods 13,002 51,900
At end of the reporting period A& H R 52,361 51,900
At 31 December 2022, the advance payments from R-ZTE-—F#+-A=+—H EFZ2¥#
customers are expected to be recognised as revenue NHBERAER —FRNBER WS -

within one year.

23(e) Amount due to an associate 23e) BT — BBt E AR KE
The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and FREENFRERERR 2E8RA
repayable on 31 December 2023. RZZB_=F+_HA=+—HEE-
23(f) Amount due to a director 23(f) B —REERE
The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and has EHRENFEAEER 2ERW
no fixed repayment term. EmETEERKE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—ZFE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

24. BITRHMBEE

2022 2021
—E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Interest-bearing &
Bank loan RITER 24(a) 33,821 36,622
Loans from a connected KE—MBEELA 2
company = 24(b) 184,818 22,859
Lease liabilities HEB®E 1,045 1,182
Listed credit enhanced (s g es R AR
guaranteed bonds &% 24(c) 405,622 386,914
Total bank and other borrowings R 17 & H fib (& & 48 %8 625,306 447,577

2022
===

—_— e —

2021

HK$'000
FTER

HK$'000
TR

Current portion BlHEAERS
— Loan from a connected — KBE—EEENT
company 2ER 24(b) = 22,859
— Lease liabilities — THEAE 606 428
606 23,287
Non-current portion JERNEREf
— Bank loan — RITER 24(a) 33,821 36,622
— Loan from a connected — kE—REEEN
company EIVACEA 24(b) 184,818 -
— Lease liabilities — THEAE 439 754
— Listed credit enhanced — FH{EA%E
guaranteed bonds EIRES 24(c) 405,622 386,914
624,700 424,290
Total bank and other borrowings 17 EM(EE 4458 625,306 447,577
Analysed as follows: ST
Secured and guaranteed HIEHLEER 15,165 -
Unsecured it 170,698 24,041
Unsecured but guaranteed KA R 439,443 423,536
625,306 447,577
REBNEREBRGERA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—FE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

24. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 24. RTREMEE R
(Continued)

RBEAYR  BHRTEEMGERERE
R EMEBERBMZOMMT

At the end of reporting date, the analysis of bank and
other borrowings due based on the scheduled repayment

214

dates set out in the loan agreements is as follows:

2022 2021
—E=-=

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER TR

The above borrowings are repayable as A Ff&E&AZ AT HEE

follows: je
— repayable on demand or within — RERFEFAREE
1 year 606 23,287
— repayable after 1 year but within — PMFHBBE2ERNER
2 years 442,366 418
— repayable after 2 years but within — R2F B BSFRNER
5 years 182,334 423,872
Total bank and other borrowings RTREMEESRE 625,306 447,577

24(a) Bank loan

Pursuant to the loan agreement dated 13 July 2020
entered into between Port Storage Petrochemical
and Jiangsu Yancheng Rural Commercial Bank
Co Ltd, a 5-year term loan facility of up to
RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to HK$33,957,000) was
made available to Port Storage Petrochemical.

As at 31 December 2022, the loan balance of
RMB29,880,000 (equivalent to HK$33,821,000) (2021:
RMB29,920,000 (equivalent to HK$36,622,000))
carries interest rate of 6.99% per annum. In addition,
the loan is unsecured but guaranteed jointly by
Dafeng Port Development Group and Port Shipping
International up to the extent of RMB30,000,000
(equivalent to HK$33,957,000).

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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24(a) RITE K

REBFRAOCEIHERRNEE
RITROBRABAILEH A -
E_TFELAT=ZHZERBH
BROLCERE-FRZHARE
30,000,0007t (1 & 733,957,000/8
TOZEFHERME -

RZEBE-_—_F+-_A=+—H8" ' &
WA A R B A R #29,880,000
7t (#8 %5 733,821,000 j0)(Z & =
— £ A R #29920,0007T (48 2 7
36,622,000 L)) & F Fl £699%
FFE N ZEERAEEE
1El MALERZEENREMEA

BHARAER ERLEBAARK
30,000,000t (48 & #33,957,0007%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—ZFE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

24. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 24. SRITREMEE @)

(Continued)

40b) RE—BEHEATZER

24(b) Loans from a connected company

2022 2021
—EgE—-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Current portion B ER #6 >
Loan A from REREEHREEED
Dafeng Port Development Group BEHA - 22,859
= 22,859
Non-current portion SERNER &
Loan A from KEREERESEE
Dafeng Port Development Group KJE KA 21,139 -
Loan B from KEREERESEE
Dafeng Port Development Group K E 7B 148,514 -
Loan C from KEREERESEE
Dafeng Port Development Group HE FHC 15,165 -
184,818 -
184,818 22,859

Loan A

Pursuant to the loan agreement signed between Port
Shipping International and Dafeng Port Development
Group, the loan of RMB18,676,000 (equivalent to
HK$21,139,000) is unsecured, interest-bearing at
8.04% per annum (2021: 8.04% per annum) and is
repayable in 1 November 2022. During the year, the
loan was extended and is repayable on 31 October
2024.

Loan B

Pursuant to the loan agreement signed between Port
Shipping International and Dafeng Port Development
Group, the loan of RMB131,207,000 (equivalent to
HK$148,514,000) is unsecured, interest-bearing at 7%
per annum and is repayable on 8 September 2025.

BXRA

BRESAMBERNLBEMAEE
EXImERmBE BERARE
18,676,0007T (FH% 721,139,000/ 7T)
BEEE - RFHEL04% (ZT =
— 4 ERNEL0A%) FHE R AN T
ZZHF+—A—REE-FRN &
EREEH YER-_T-_NF+
A=+—HBEE-

EXB

BEEMBZE XL EREE
EX:ImERmBE BERARE
131,207,0007T (48 55 74148,514,000%
T AEET - BEMRI%E R
BAR_E-_HEAANBEE -

REBNENERHAERAR 215
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—FE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

24. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(Continued)

216

24(b) Loans from a connected company

24(c)

(Continued)
Loan C

Pursuant to the loan agreement signed between
Port Storage Petrochemical and Dafeng Port
Development Group, a 2-year term loan facility of up
to RMB25,000,000 (equivalent to HK$28,298,000) is
made available to Port Storage Petrochemical.

As at 31 December 2022, the loan balance of
RMB13,398,000 (equivalent to HK$15,165,000) carries
interest rates at 7% per annum and is secured by
prepaid lease payments as disclosed note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements and is repayable
on 17 January 2024.

Listed credit enhanced guaranteed bonds

On 17 March 2021, the Company, as issuer, Dafeng
Port Development Group, as guarantor, and Tensant
Securities Limited, Haitong International Securities
Company Limited, BOSC International Company
Limited, Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co,,
Ltd., Hong Kong Branch, CEB International Capital
Corporation Limited, China Everbright Securities
(HK) Limited, Huarong International Securities
Limited and China Industrial Securities International
Brokerage Limited (together, the “Placing Agents”),
entered into a placing agreement pursuant to which
the Company agreed to appoint the Placing Agents
as placing agents for the purpose of procuring,
and to use its best efforts, the subscription of the
bonds of up to an aggregate principal amount of
US$55,000,000 (the “Placing”).

The Placing was completed on 24 March 2021. The
bonds in the principal amount of US$55,000,000 has
been placed to bondholders at a coupon rate of
2.4% per annum, and terms of 3 years. The interest
is payable on every 23th of September and March.
The net proceeds from issuance of the bonds after
the issuance costs were US$47,595,600, equivalent to
HK$370,056,000. The effective interest rate is 7.4%
per annum.
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24. BTREMEE @)

24b) RE—EBEELATAZERE)

&EmC

BEEEACEXLERAZEE
RIIMER B BREALTES
IR A A R¥25,000,0007T (4% %
28,298,000/ JT) &) M F HA B X &t
iéf °

RZBEZ_ZF+=ZA=+—H" ' &
4 R A R 513,398,000 (M8 &
15,165,000/ 7T) & F FI R7% 5 B -
WAL A B RRMI 18T IR EM
BEMNEEREERT  YEAR-Z
—mME—A+LHEEE-

8(c) ETHIERAERERES

RZZE-—F=ZA+tH  ARF ({E
BEITAN) KRLEREEEUEA
BRANERXEESFBRAR 58
BERESERAT - LRBEERAER
AR EBHREEBRITBRMDAR
RNEIEBDIT RIEBEBEEXREBR
PR FEXREBHFEGEBERA
A ERBEBESFERARRKEE
B ESERAG (S HENRE])
R HREE R B ARA]
AEZAREREARKRERE &
NBREAZSHRERBLACBER
%55,000,000E€ T2 EHETT2ES
((BREEHE] -

REEER_TE-_—F=A=-1+K
A5 ° 7~ %8 A55,000,000% T2
BEHFERETESFFEA ZEHE
KETF24%  BE=F - ARE
hWARZAz-_+=HXHF A& -
MBRBETREE  BITESFMER
T8 J% 58 /47,595,600 7T HHE R
370,056,000/ 7T - BER F | E /K74
@ °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—ZFE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

24. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 24. RTRHEMEE @)
(Continued)

24(c) Listed credit enhanced guaranteed bonds 8(c) EIERERIERES @)

(Continued)

Based on the deed of guarantee dated on March
2021, the bonds are guaranteed by Dafeng Port
Development Group. Payments of principal, premium
(if any) and interest in respect to the bonds and
the fees and expenses and other amounts payable
in connection with the bonds and the trust deed,
which dated on or about 23 March 2021 among the
Company, Dafeng Port Development Group and The
Bank of New York Mellon, London Branch as trustee
for the holders of the bonds, will have the benefit of
an irrevocable standby letter of credit (the “SBLC")
denominated in US dollars up to US$56,660,000
issued by Bank of Jiangsu Co., Ltd. Yancheng Branch.

For further details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 24 March 2021.

BEARA-ZS-_—F=ANER
R - BHFRAREEREEEREH
ER- -EFBEBELA:  REWEAE)
RAERNFARRESREARFA -
KL EFREEBEEThe Bank of New
York Mellon, London Branch ({fE &
BEFERFAEANITAIRZE_—F
—AZT=HHAEEMEEERE
ENHEARAX  BXmRNIH
RITEROBRARERSITHARN
& %8 N B 1856,660,0003 JT H £ T
FTETARHEERERE(HERE
A®ElD -

B — S S BEHALAE

% o

25. DEFERRED TAXATION 25. IEEHE

AEBEEHBAREBFERNANFEZE

The movements for the year in the Group's net deferred

tax liabilities are as follows: E) N

2022 2021
—s=-=

HK$’000 HK$'000
FH& T FH T
At beginning of the reporting period Rk £ E ) (1,597) (1,551)
Exchange difference E X Z=% 120 (46)
At end of the reporting period REBEHR (1,477) (1,597)
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25. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 25. IE #E ¥ 1E (@)
Recognised net deferred tax liabilities at the end of the REEPRRZEEREENIBEEB R
reporting period represent the following: BTN RIE:
Assets Liabilities
BE =R
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-= = —E=-=
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET FEx FHET
Fair value adjustments NFEEAE = - (6,208) (6,946)
Tax loss MIBEE 4,731 5,349 = -
Deferred tax assets RIETIAE BE
(liabilities) (&) 4,731 5,349 (6,208) (6,946)
Offsetting 1K (4,731) (5,349) 4,731 5,349
Net deferred tax liabilities EZEHEAEFE = - (1,477) (1,597)
Unrecognised deferred tax assets AERELEHEEE

2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—4F

HK$'000 HK$000
TER TAET

Before multiplied by the applicable LA %8 Ik b @ A B & A1 -

tax rate:
Temporary differences TERERE 86,803 93,788
Tax losses HRIBEE 197,809 179,184

284,612 272,972
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25. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 25. 3F E BiE (4)

Unrecognised deferred tax assets (Continued) AERELEHBEEE)
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of BB MK B A0 K 2R FI 2ROR - i A gt

ZERAABRERBEE - KERMR
HERZIHAMT:

these items due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The expiry dates of unrecognised tax losses are
as follows:

2022 2021
—E-_F

HK$'000
FTHExT
ERHAMIEEIE 42,421 41,758
R-ZZE-_+F+-_HA=+—H

Tax losses without expiry date
Tax losses expiring on

31 December 2027 R RY R 36,002 -
Tax losses expiring on RZE-_R"F+-_A=+—H
31 December 2026 AT IE B 18 22,648 24,491
Tax losses expiring on RZE-_RF+=-A=+—H
31 December 2025 AR IEER 5,009 5,417
Tax losses expiring on R-ZZE_NE+-_A=+—H
31 December 2024 MHIEERE 47,788 51,676
Tax losses expiring on RZTE-_=F+-A=+—H
31 December 2023 T BT B E B 43,941 47,517
Tax losses expiring on RZTE__F+-A=+—8H
31 December 2022 AHHRIEER - 8,325
197,809 179,184

REFECEMEHE RPBEKILZ
SIERELERAINEREE DK IR

Pursuant to the PRC EIT Law, a 10% withholding tax is
levied on dividends distributed to foreign investors by

the foreign investment enterprises established in the
PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings accumulated after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between the PRC and jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, no
deferred tax has been recognised for withholding taxes
that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of the
Groups' subsidiaries established in the PRC of HK$581,000
(2021: HK$786,000). In the opinion of the directors, these
accumulated profits, at the present time, are required
for financing the operations of these entities and no
distribution would be made in the foreseeable future.

BRI10% B RGBT - ZHTEZ
ENF—A— Etiﬂi@%#_gzt
FTZA=ZT BB ZRZFHEF o WHE
HAONEHEREEMER AREBEF B
Wi A IRAREZENHRE - R
ZZHERZIEZ—F+ZA=1+—H0 %
ERAEEEPERKIZHBARZ XK
ME SR @A 2 e TR 51 581,000 T (ZF
Z— 4 786,000 ) ERIELERIE o F
ERAE ZFRHENRTEAERN
ZEEBLCEMTES - AR K RT
EEHDIR -
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26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. A
2022 2021
—E-C —E—F
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
4 & B EHE B 1n 0 B EE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of FREE0.01
HK$0.01 each Bz E®k  10,000,000,000 100,000  10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid BERTRAZRNK
(HK$0.01 each): (B R EEO0.01
BT -
At beginning of year and RENRER
at end of the year 1,288,000,000 12,880 1,288,000,000 12,880
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Year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ—FE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) on 3 August 2013. The purpose of the Scheme
is to recognise and acknowledge the contributions that
participants have made or may make to the Group,
to provide participants with an opportunity to have a
personal stake in the Company with the view to achieve
motivating the participants to optimise their performance
and efficiency for the benefit of the Group, to attract and
retain or otherwise maintain ongoing business relationship
with participants, whose contributions are or will be
beneficial to the long term growth of the Group.

Participants include (i) any director and employee,
consultant, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser
of or contractor to the Group or a company in which the
Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company
("Affiliate”); or (i) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary
of which or any discretionary trust the discretionary objects
of which include any director, employee, consultant,
professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser
of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate; or (iii) a
company beneficially owned by any director, employee,
agent,
partner, adviser of or contractor to the Group or an
Affiliate.

consultant, professional, customer, supplier,

The directors may, at their discretion, invite any
participant to take up options. Options may be granted
to participants under the Scheme during the period of 10
years commencing on the effective date of the Scheme.
An option is deemed to have been granted and accepted
by the grantee upon the duplicate letter comprising
acceptance of the option duly signed by the grantee and

paying HK$1 by way of consideration for the grant thereof.

The subscription price of the share options will be
determined by the board and shall not be less than the
higher of (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date
of grant of the relevant option, which must be a business
day (b) the average closing price of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the relevant option and (c) the nominal value of a share
on the date of grant.

27.

BRESTE

ARBR T —=FN\A=ZARNERE
ﬁ%@#%b HEIBME ST R B
PEHAEEHAKEFLERZ2 A
EFoRAZ2EERAKENARFHEEEA
Bt NEHEBH2EEFRMKRERR
MBREAEEZ & - WREI KRB HIA
Hip s X2 E 2 B EBHE
MEEZBEBRENRIHANNAEH
ZERBER-

SEEAR  (\AEEAANEEFERER
ZRAHZRBZMB AR ((HELF])
TWEEREE HH@A TP #HE
B AR A%Ai@ﬁi%“ﬁ = (ii)
NAEEXBBARMEMNES B8 - &
AACBRAL -EF - fiER - KHE
ERARBERI AR AT @A ZEMIE
AXEREAEREBELAALTZER
PRERZIFEA R(NARELBEL

AIEMES - RBE -FEHA BXAL
P HER - RIE - ABA BRSO

BREEDSEAZIAA -

EETHNBEREREMN2EERABRE
%h%Tﬁﬁﬁﬂ\ﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬂiﬁ
FEHRARSEERE - ARALER
R F B O 1 B AR R Bk ST R
BIETKR BRENERRERERE
AR ANEW -

BREZR %1hm§$ BERTHE
“FMTﬁm% AR A EERERD
(BER %m%&%%a%%%%ﬂ&
MR EOEZRRHBBEBRERRA
TEEX AR EARERMIIRDF
B HERQELBABZEMHEIE -
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27.

28.

222

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The maximum number of shares to be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to
time. The total number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 80,000,000
shares of the Company, being 10% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of approval
of the Scheme unless shareholders’ approval has been
obtained. An option may be exercised during a period to
be determined by the directors in their absolute discretion
and in any event such period shall not be later than 10
years after the date of grant of the option.

The maximum entitlement for any participant is that the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant under
the Scheme in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1 percent of the total number of shares in issue of the
Company. Any further grant of options in excess of the
1 percent limit shall be subject to certain requirements
provided under the GEM Listing Rules.

No option has been granted under the Scheme since its
adoption.

RESERVES
28(a) Share premium

Share premium represents the excess of the net
proceeds from issuance of the Company's shares
over its nominal value. Under the law of the Cayman
Islands and the Company’s Articles of Association,
it is distributable to the Company’s shareholders
provided that the Company is able to pay its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business
after the distribution.
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28. f#1E @)

28. RESERVES (continued)

28(b) Capital reserve

28(c)

The capital reserve arises from the business

combination under common control in relation
to the reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) for
rationalising the corporate structure in preparation
for the initial listing of the Company’s shares on
GEM of the Stock Exchange. The Reorganisation
was completed on 3 August 2013. The amount
represents the difference between aggregate net
asset value of the subsidiaries and the investment

costs in the subsidiaries.

The negative capital reserve represents the excess
of “total investment costs in the subsidiaries” over
“the aggregate net assets value of the subsidiaries”.

Under merger accounting the net assets of the
combining entities are combined using the existing
book values from the controlling party’s perspective.
No amount is recognised as consideration for
goodwill or gain on bargain purchase at the time
of common control combination, to the extent of
the continuation of the controlling party’s interest.
Accordingly, the above mentioned difference has
been recorded in the capital reserve under merger
accounting.

Exchange reserve

Exchange reserve of the Group comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from translation of the
financial statements of the Group's subsidiaries in the
PRC. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 4 above.

28(d) Statutory reserve

The statutory reserves are reserves required by the
Accounting Regulations for Business Enterprises
applicable to the Company’s PRC subsidiaries. The
reserves can be used to reduce previous years' losses
and to increase the capital of the subsidiaries.

28(b)

28(c)

28(d)

EXfEfE

EXFEEERRESEHEARFMN
PABSE A2 P GEM B R 7 M 32 JE 2 7
RERAETEA(EAD 2 KARE
HTIEBEEHELE BHEHENR-F
—=F\A=ZHBEK - ZE&mEMN
BRAIZEEFHBRERENE
RAEZKAFEZZE

BENREEHREIREWNBRAR 2 @K
AIBHHBARZEEFEARE]
2B e

BIERTME AHEBETAH

BZEEFRDURBEEREES
AFR o 2SI TR A
HFEZEH A TEREEX
ZEBEREEAETASE - Bt
PR EZBEENEHERBEENERH
AR -

Xk omk

BE 5 1

AEEZENFERRERREAE
EIL = NI B E T TRE| 2
ZHENEZR - ZRHEIRE L
XM AT G R R R -

EEMRE

A TE BT B RN AR R BB
RAZEEGRHIEMRERE -
ZEEAAREIREEFEREER
KB AREAR -
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28. RESERVES (continued)

224

28(e) Other reserve

28(f)

The other reserve has been set up to deal with the
changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control. The difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised in other reserve.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company arose
from the Reorganisation. The balance represents
the difference between the nominal amount of
the Company’s shares issued and the consolidated
shareholders’ fund of the subsidiaries acquired
during the Reorganisation.

28(g) Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve comprises the
fair value of share-based payment transactions dealt
with employees of the Group and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in
note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
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29. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

29(a) Cash used in operations

29.

HthBREREEHR

90 KEXEBHRARSE

2022
—=E=-=

HK$'000
FTER

2021

HK$'000
TAET

Loss before taxation B B4 A &S 18 (64,162) (70,671)
Depreciation of property, plant ME BEREREHITE

and equipment 9,880 12,975
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {F FE&EEITE 1,539 1,715
Foreign exchange differences SN 2= BE (4,033) 8,995
(Reversal of impairment loss) Y - BERZECREE

Impairment loss on property, BREE)REBRE

plant and equipment (7,334) 12,676
Impairment loss on goodwill BB EE R 956 -
Interest income B U A (222) (2,921)
Interest expenses MEFXE 39,616 36,938
Provision for inventories FEEE 4,799 -
Cash flows before changes in EEESPPHNBEERE

working capital: (18,961) (293)

Inventories FE 3,459 168

Trade and other receivables B 5 & E A fE U SR8 (385,964) 25,847

Trade and other payables B 5 & H e FRIE 396,638 (198,876)
Cash used in operations CEEBAR S (4,828) (173,154)
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29. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION 29. HtREREE R @)

(Continued)

29(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing Vb MEZTBHELEEBZEH
activities
The table below details changes in the Group's TRFAVAEEREREEZD 2 AE
liabilities arising from financing activities, including 228 BEAESNFRESEY -
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising KEMEETH  ABEZRERED
from financing activities are those for which cash BRIAARKREREFNAEERLEA
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in ReRERDEABREEHMSE (AT
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as BBReRE -

cash flows from (used in) financing activities.

2022 —Eg=-
Cash flow
Amounts due Bank and (used in)/
to connected other  from financing
companies borrowings activities
METH
EEE BITR (FiR)/ Fi#
AR RE Hit & ReRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER THER
(Note 23(c)) (Note 24)
(Fff 7 23(c)) (Bt E24)
At beginning of the year R EA) 201,528 447,577 =
New loans from a connected REBETOFER
party = 183,145 183,145
New lease HHEE - 387 -
Repayments — principal BER—Xe (131,984) (15,802) (147,786)
Foreign exchange translation HNEE IR & (11,504) (8,971) —
Interest incurred in loan from MBHEREEZFH B
connected party 4,992 = =
Interest incurred in amounts due [ETBEERRIFHIBME
to connected companies HZ B 2,848 - -
Interest incurred in lease HERBEEZFE
liabilities = 42 =
Interest incurred in listed credit Mz AEBERES
enhanced guaranteed bonds EEZFE - 29,274 -
Interest paid BERFE (20,387) (10,346) -
At end of the year RER 45,493 625,306 35,359
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Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—ZFE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

29. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION 29. Ht R & REE B @)

(Continued)

29(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing Vb MEETHMELEEBEZEE
activities (Continued) (#)
2021 —F—F

Amounts due
to connected
companies

JEE 1+ 2 222
NGIE/ Q-]
HK$'000
TAT
(Note 23(c))
(B¥ 5£23(c))

Cash flow
(used in)/

from financing

Bank and
other
activities
BMEED
(FR)/Fif3
Bemn=E
HK$'000
FTAT

borrowings

RITR
HfEE
HK$'000
FHL
(Note 24)
(P 5 24)

At beginning of the year REA) 150,961 460,138 -
Repayment of unlisted BRI LM ERES

secured bonds - (388,630) (388,630)
New listed credit enhanced ¥ ETWE 175 A%

guaranteed bonds issued BIERE S - 370,056 370,056
New lease yHE - 1,247 -
Repayments — principal B — K& - (657) (657)
Expenses paid on behalf RIEFzHAZ 40,060 - -
Foreign exchange translation #MNEEIRE 7,740 (3,881) -
Interest incurred in amount  JE B E QB FIEFR

due to connected EEZHE

companies 5,328 - -
Interest incurred in lease HEBGBEELZFE

liabilities - 34 -
Interest incurred in unlisted FEMERESEAL

secured bonds ZF B - 8,108 -
Interest incurred in EHERAERERE

listed credit enhanced FEEZHE

guaranteed bonds - 20,907 -
Interest paid B FE (2,561) (19,745) -
At end of the year RE R 201,528 447,577 (19,231

REEBNERERBERAR 227
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30. BEEARS
In addition to the transactions/information disclosed BRGAUBREREMBESIEERS, &
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the BN RAFE  AEEBEITUATEZE
Group has the following related party transactions during RS
the year:

2022 2021
—EgE=-= —PE ——4%E

Related party relationship HK$'000 HK$'000
BAE S BAR THET T T

Interest expenses paid/payable

to:
B EERMERX:
Dafeng Port Development Controlled by a substantial 4,992 3,492
Group shareholder
LEREEE H—EEZRRZES
Jiangsu Huahai Controlled by a director of the 2,848 1,836
Company
LRI H—BARRAIESEZEH
Remuneration paid: (a)
B % B -
Salaries and other benefits Key management personnel other 554 520
than directors
¥ M HARE R TZ2EBRAB(EERIN
Contributions to defined 34 26

contribution plans
JE R KET SR

Notes: B &

(a) The remuneration of directors is set out in note 10 to the (@) BEEHFHENGREMBHHRRMFI0 -

consolidated financial statements.
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Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—ZFE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure commitments

Contracted but not provided net of
deposit paid for construction of

property, plant and equipment ERET®

31. E&iE
BT AL

2022
—E=-=

2021

HK$'000
FTER

HK$'000
THT

BERTAEREME  ME2
BEME -BEREREZ

201,750 219,776

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitment of HK$201,750,000 (2021: HK$219,776,000)
principally relating to construction work of petrochemical
products storage facilities.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(@) Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
bank and other borrowings, amounts due from/
to connected companies, bank balances and cash.
The main purpose of these financial instruments
is to raise and maintain finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial
instruments such as trade and other receivables and
trade and other payables, which arise directly from
its business activities.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are (i) foreign currency risk, (i) interest
rate risk, (i) credit risk and (iv) liquidity risk. The
Group does not have any written risk management
policies and guidelines. However, the board of
directors co-operates closely with key management
to identify and evaluate risks and generally adopts
conservative strategies on its risk management
and limits the Group’s exposure to these risks to a
minimum level as follows.

REEHR - NEE A $201,750,0007% 7T
ZETZ— 4 219,776,000 7T) 7 AE
BERAEREEERIRE -

32. £mI A
@) TREKREEEEREXK

AEEZTESBRTABERRITR
Hifg & - U R BEE D RR
HRITERRES - ZF2RT
AZFIZEMRBRERERAKE
REMTRE - AKERESLHE
i FE WK TR A B 5 B B A A 3R
HEZRBREMEM TR  ZFHA
HEERAEXBAPESE -

AEBeMIEEEZEZAKRE
(HMNERBE « (DFIERER - (i)EzE
EBE(v)REE SRR - NEEW
EAMEmMRREREREKKIES -
R EEECHRTEEHREABEER
HE - BRI R ER R - HEE
REREERIVRTRBETHASE
E AT 4 5% 55 R B PR I 7 fR K K
BT -
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

230

(@) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Foreign currency risk

Most of the Group's business transactions were
conducted in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
("RMB") and United States dollars (“US$").
Exposures to foreign currency risk arise
from certain of the Group’s trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables and cash
and bank balances denominated in HK$, RMB
and US$. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments to hedge its foreign
currency risk. The Group reviews its foreign
currency exposures regularly and considers
there is no significant exposure on its foreign
currency risk.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to market risk for
changes in interest rates relates primarily to
its interest-bearing financial instruments (with
floating interest rates) including bank balances
and cash.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest
rates had been 100 basis points (2021: 100
basis points) higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s net
loss would decrease/increase by HK$179,000
(2021: the Group's net loss would decrease/
increase by HK$255,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied
to the exposure to interest rate risk for the
financial instruments in existence at that date.
The 100 basis points increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates
over the period until the next annual end of
the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ—FE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(iii)

Credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets on the
consolidated statement of financial position,
which is net of impairment losses, represents
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
on these financial assets.

Trade receivables

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. The Group limits its
exposure to credit risk from trade receivables
by selecting the counterparties with reference
to their past credit history and/or market
reputation.

risk

The Group's exposure to credit

is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. The default
risk of the industry and country in which
customers operate also has an influence
on credit risk but to a lesser extent. Credit
quality of a customer is assessed based on an
extensive credit rating and individual credit
limit assessment which is mainly based on the

Group's own trading records.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had a concentration of credit risk as 94.0%
(2021: 21.0%) and 98.0% (2021: 59.0%) of the
trade receivables were due from the Group's
largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.
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(iii)

FERRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—FE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

232

(@) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(iii)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group's customer base consists of a wide
range of clients and the trade receivables are
categorised by common risk characteristics
that are representative of the customers’
abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance
with the contractual terms. The Group applies a
simplified approach in calculating ECL for trade
receivables and recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date
and has established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment.
The expected loss rate used in the provision
matrix is calculated for each category based
on actual credit loss experience over the past
years and adjusted for current and forward
looking factors to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which the historical data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group's estimate on
future economic conditions over the expected
lives of the receivables. There was no change
in the estimation techniques or significant
assumptions made during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—ZFE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(iii)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as
at the reporting period, based on the invoice

date is as follows:

32. EMI B
@ EWMEREBEAERBX#®)

(iii)

EERR )

EZEWHE(E)

RS B B 5 M WG R R 3%
SZRMMKREDTET:

2022 2021
—e—=

HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT T T

Non-credit impaired BEERE
Within 90 days 90H I 406,910 24,435
91-180 days 91£180H 5,771 44
More than 365 days 3658 & 3,385 -
416,066 24,479

Credit impaired EERE

More than 365 days 3658 3,514 3,514
3,514 3,514
419,580 27,993

The Group allows a credit period of up to
90 days to its trade debtors. The information
about the exposure to credit risk and ECL for
trade receivables using a provision matrix is
summarised below.

AREETHESEHTARR
WARZIEEH - AHEEZHEY
FRZEERBREBEHEES
1B {5 P 5 R ) R ARE 2
T o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—FE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 32. €M I R
(@) Financial risk management objectives and (@) THEMREEEERBE#)
policies (Continued)
(i) Credit risk (Continued) (i) FERRHE)
Trade receivables (Continued) ESERFHE(E)
As at 31 December 2022 R-—ZB-Z-%+-A=+-—AH

Gross
Expected carrying Loss Credit-
loss rate Amount  allowance impaired

EHEBERR SRE R E BRER FERE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
B FER FER

Non-credit impaired

BEERE

Not past due 0% 406,910 = No

1-90 days past due 0% 5,771 = No

# H1E90H i

More than 365 days past due 0% 3,385 = No

#HR365A M el
416,066 =

Credit impaired

FEERE

Over 365 days past due 100% 3,514 (3,514) Yes

# H365H M + B
419,580 (3,514)

) 3 4 Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—ZFE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 32. EMI B
(@) Financial risk management objectives and @) SREMEEEERBEK @)
policies (Continued)
(i)  Credit risk (Continued) (i) EE R
Trade receivables (Continued) ESEKHE (&)
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZTE_—F+-HA=+—H

Gross

Expected carrying Loss Credit-

loss rate Amount allowance impaired
EHIE AR FREEE BEBEE FERE
% HK$000 HK$'000
Eli=d FAET TB T

Non-credit impaired

BEERE

Not past due 0% 24,435 - No

1-90 days past due 0% 44 - No

# HI1E90R s
24,479 -

Credit impaired

FEERE

Over 365 days past due 100% 3,514 (3,514) Yes

# #3658 M =)
27,993 (3,514)
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RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—FE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE
32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 2. €M I B

(@) Financial risk management objectives and (a) SEEMREEEERBK#)
pO|iCieS (Continued)

(iiiy  Credit risk (Continued) iy EERKE)

236

Trade receivables (Continued)

Included in the Group’'s trade receivables
balance as at 31 December 2022 are debtors
with a carrying amount of HK$9,156,000
(2021:HK$44,000), which are past due as at 31
December 2022 but which the Group has not
impaired as there has not been any significant
changes in credit quality and the directors
believe that the amounts are fully receivable.

Receivables that are neither past due nor
impaired as at 31 December 2022 and 2021
relate to a wide range of customers for whom
there was no history of default.

The Group does not hold any collateral over

ESEWHE (&)

RZEZZF+=A=+—H"
REE 2 BHRWGKIBEHE
5 BR ™ 1 49,156,0007 JT (=
T~ —4F 1 44,0005 7T) 2 FEUR
R BERZRN =T
+_H_+ HE®H - R
SEYEIIRBE  RAAE
BEERUETRNERNEYRE
EHREANE2HEWNEZERIE -

RZEZ—_FR-_TB-_—F+
—A=Z+—8 BEaHITE
BB W GRIE R % 2 £
RiEBZEFER -

R-TE-_—_F+-A=1+—8"

trade receivables as at 31 December 2022 NREBVWERE S EKZFIE
(2021: Nil). FAEEMERR(ZE_—F:
f®) o

As at 31 December 2022, the Group
recognised loss allowance of HK$3,514,000
(2021: HK$3,514,000) on the trade receivables.
The movements in the loss allowance for trade
receivables during the year are summarised
below.

RZZE-—_F+-A=+—8"
KEETE S ERE Eﬁm‘
18 B 153,514,000 T (= =
—4F : 3,514,000 7T) ° ﬂ¢¢
EzBSRKFIABERES
ERiE R N

2022 2021
—E=-= B —

HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TET

At beginning of year and at end R F ] k3R EH K

of the reporting period

3,514 3,514
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ—FE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(iii)

Credit risk (Continued)
Other receivables

The Group performs impairment assessment
on other receivables from various parties based
on 12-month ECL. The credit risk of the Group’s
other receivables arises from default of the
counterparties, with maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amounts of these receivables.
Individual credit limits are set based on the
assessments of the credit quality.

In estimating the ECL, the Group has taken
into account the historical actual credit loss
experience and the financial position of the
counterparties, past collection history, current
creditworthiness, adjusted for forward-looking
factors that are specific to the debtors and
general economic conditions of the industry in
which the counterparties operate, in estimating
the probability of default of these financial
assets, as well as the loss upon default in
each case. The management of the Group
considers the ECL of these financial assets to
be insignificant after taking into account the
financial position, quality of the counterparties
and past settlement records. There was
no change in the estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—FE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

238

(@) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(iv)

Liquidity risk

Management of the Group aims at maintaining
sufficient level of cash and cash equivalents
to finance the Group's operations and
expected expansion. The Group’s primary cash
requirements include payments for operating
expenses, additions or upgrades of property,
plant and equipment and repayment of
borrowings. The Group finances its working
capital requirements mainly by the funds
generated from operations, advances from
related parties and use of bank and other
borrowings.

The Group manages liquidity risk by
forecasting the amount of cash required and
monitoring the working capital of the Group
to ensure that all liabilities due and known
funding requirements could be met. Based
on the assessment of the management, the
overall liquidity risk encountered by the Group
is manageable.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had
net current liabilities of approximately
HK$34,600,000 (2021: HK$156,506,000). The
consolidated financial statements have been
prepared by the directors of the Company
on a going concern basis taking into account
of the measures mentioned in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—ZFE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(iv)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The remaining undiscounted contracted
maturity profile of the Group's non-derivative
financial liabilities at the end of the reporting
period, based on the earliest date in which
the Group is required to settle, is summarised
below:

32. EMI B
@ EWMEREBEAERBX#®)

(ivy, RBEEERE)

RBEMAR  mAREAXN
ZERFAHEDAKEEITE
TRABRZHBRMBEANE
HiERELT

Over Over Over

3 months 1 year but 2 years but

but not not more  no more

On Less than more than than than
demand 3 months 12 months 2 years 5 years

BR=ff BE-F EBBEmF

SR BTHEE (BTEB ETHE
RERXR =R +=fA ik nf At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TRz TEx TRz TEx TE=x

At 31 December 2022 R-B--%+-A=+-A
Trade and other payables BHREMERFE
Amounts due to connected companies {7 & 2 5] 5B
Amounts due to an associate B —HEE AR
Bank loan ROTER
Listed credit enhanced LHERERERE?

guaranteed bonds
Lease liabilities HEAE

Loans from a connected company RE-FBEELAZER

102,216 407,652 = = - 509,868
37,593 - - 5,590 2,310 45,493
= = 34179 = - 34179

- 583 1,826 2,406 34,771 39,586

5,144 5144 433,820 444,108
- 160 480 444 - 1,084
- - - 38,638 176,482 215,120

139,809 413,539 41,629 480,898 213,563 1,289,438

At 31 December 2021 R-2Z-%F+ZA=1-H
Trade and other payables BOREMERRE
Amounts due to connected companies  [E{ & 2 8] 5B
Amounts due to an associate B —REBE AR
Bank loan RTER
Listed credit enhanced IHERERERES

guaranteed bonds
Lease liabilities HEEE

Loan from a connected company RE-—HBEERRZER

Over Over Over

3 months 1 year but 2 years but

but not not more  no more

On Less than more than than than
demand 3 months 12 months 5 years
BB—F BAWE

B (BTERE BTER
A W E %

HEF +=f8
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEL TET TAT TAT AR

90,148 31,176 - - - 1324
62,418 1,492 142,675 - - 206,585
- - - 37,259 - 37,259

- 632 1,980 2,609 40,215 45436

5,146 5,146 10,292 433981 454,565
- 129 324 432 340 1,225
- 453 23942 - - 24,395

152,566 39,028 174,067 50,592 474,536 890,789
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Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—FE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

240

(b)

Capital management

The objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital
and to support the Group's stability and growth.

The capital structure of the Group mainly consists of
bank and other borrowings and equity attributable
to equity owners of the Company.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to ensure optimal
taking
into consideration the future capital requirements

capital structure and shareholder returns,
of the Group. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares
or return capital to shareholders. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes during
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—ZFE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Categories and fair value of financial

instruments

The carrying amounts of each of the following

categories of financial assets and financial liabilities

are set out as follows:

32. EMI B

(c)

EMIRESPERAFE

UTEEeREERERABEZR

EEHIMT :

2022
—=E=-=

HK$'000
FTEx

2021

HK$'000
TR

Financial assets at amortised REEEMERESEA
costs under HKFRS 9: HEOR IR BB AT BR
ZEMEE:
Trade and other receivables g5 & E g W GRIE 457,597 73,994
Bank balances and cash BT MRE 17,863 25,493
475,460 99,487
2022 2021
—Eg=-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Financial liabilities at amortised 3% # 8§ & 4<% iR =~
costs: tREesE:
Trade and other payables B 5 & H R FRIE 535,757 322,852
Current portion of bank and RITREMEBEEZ
other borrowings BVER &8 5 606 428
Current portion of loan from a E— R E DA
connected company B ZENHE S - 22,859
Amount due to an associate BN —REBE AR
IR 34,179 37,259
Non-current portion of bank and BT EMEE 2
other borrowings FEENERER 624,700 424,290
Non-current portion of amount J& 1~ — el B 3 X R SRR
due to a connected company Z FEBNERER 4> 7,900 -
1,203,142 807,688
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not FFEcRTARABEEER-T-_FK
materially different from their fair values as at 31 R —FH+ A=t —RAZATFELE
December 2022 and 2021. BERER-
REBHNIEREBRABERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR R M

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE—FE-—F+-_A=+—HILtFE

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 33. KA T B &R R E
THE COMPANY

2022 2021
—==-= =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH& T TE T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries BB AR ZEE 14 8 8
Right-of-use assets FREEE 743 1,159
751 1,167
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments SCANE/ G 322 457
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE B B8~ B 5 IE 38,600 53,466
Cash at bank RITH 2 1,607 2,281
40,529 56,204
Current liabilities REBaE
Other payables and accrual H e R R ERTE A 2,360 1,790
Amount due to a subsidiary e — M B AR F A 48,616 39,625
Other borrowings H &R 418 408
51,394 41,823
Net current (liabilities) assets RE(EBEEEHE (10,865) 14,381
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABER (10,114) 15,548
Non-current liabilities kFRBERE
Other borrowings H it 3K 405,958 387,668
NET LIABILITIES FEE (416,072) (372,120)
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital [N 26 12,880 12,880
Reserves 1 33(a) (428,952) (385,000)
TOTAL DEFICITS B AL AR (416,072) (372,120)
This statement of financial position was approved and TEEWBREERE_=F=A=+
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 March CEHREESHERRETZE  WHUT
2023 and signed on its behalf by: ATREREFEZ:
Zhao Liang Zhang Shukai
i) RER
Director Director
EFE EE

242 Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

BB _F+-A=+—HILtFE

Year ended 31 December 2022 &

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 33. &2 7] B ik 5w &k &)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

(a)

Movements of the reserves

Share
premium

HK$'000
7
(Note 28(a))
(Ff 728(a))

(a) REEH

Contributed
surplus

HK$'000
TET
(Note 28(f)
GEE)

Share-based
payment
reserve

WA RR 3
RERZ
R G
HK$'000
FAET
(Note 28(g))
(Bt 5£28(g)

Accumulated
losses

ZitER
HK$'000
THET

At 1 January 2021 RZZE=Z—%—-A—H 201,419 34,556 3,063 (591,192) (352,154
Loss and total comprehensive loss ENBERZEBELE

for the year - - - (32,846)  (32,846)
At 31 December 2021 RZZ-—%5+ZA=+—H 201,419 34,556 3,063 (624,038)  (385,000)
At 1 January 2022 RZZE--§-H-H 201,419 34,556 3,063 (624,038) (385,000)
Loss and total comprehensive loss FRNERRZEHBLE

for the year - - - (43,952)  (43,952)
At 31 December 2022 RZB-Z#+-A=t-H 201,419 34,556 3,063 (667,990) (428,952)

REBNEREBRGERA
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Mg E
RESULTS 4
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E-C —ZE-—F ZTZEZF ZT-NF ZTNF
HK$'000  HK$'000*  HK$'000*  HK$'000*  HK$'000*
FTET T FE T T T
Revenue I 795,967 908,411 2,049,861 1,517,072 4,369,900
(Loss) Profit before taxation BrA (& 8B) & A (64,162) (70,671) 562,513 (944,792) (173,315)
Income tax (expense) credit  FTBH (AX)E R 79) (67) 5,410 (199) (695)
(Loss) Profit for the year FREE) & (64,241) (70,738) 567923 (944,991) (174,010)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E-C 22— —E-TF —T-NF ZT-N\EF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FBT FHET FHET FHET FHET

Total assets EEBME 759,309 425,214 643,128 1,411,619 2,769,734
Total liabilities BEEE (1,261,102) (865,561)  (1,025,672)  (2,362,526)  (2,752,807)
Total (deficits) equity (BA R RS (501,793) (440,347) (382,544) (950,907) 16,927

*

operations.

Dafeng Port Heshun Technology Company Limited
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The above figures included both continuing operations and discontinued *
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